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Ms. Blanca Bayo
Director
Florida Public Service Commission

2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0864

Re: Transfer of control of GobalCom Telecommunications, Inc. to
COMCAST Telephony Communications, Inc.

Dear Ms. Bayo:

COMCAST Telephony Communications, Inc. ("CTCI") and GlobalCom
Telecommunications, Inc. ("GlobalCom®), by their attorneys, hereby advise you of the
proposed transfer of control of GlobalCom from its current sharcholders to CTCI through the
sale of all of GlobalCom's stock and request that any necessary approval of this transaction
by the Florida Public Service Commission be expeditiously granted.

GlobalCom is currently certified to provide intrastale toll telecommunications
services in Florida.! Because GlobalCom will continue to provide such service in Florida as
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTCI, the parties will not transfer GlobalCom's operating
authority in connection with this transaction. The parties respectfully request expedited
treatment of this petition in order to permit them to consummate the transaction without
undue delay.

! GlobalCom was authorized by the Commission o provide intrastate
telecommunications service as a reseller in Order No. PSC-94-0418-FOF-TI in
Docket No. 940140-T1, effective May 3, 1994,
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GlobalCom is currently operating as a reseller of telecommunications service
in various states. It also is authorized by the Federal Communications Commission to resell
international telecommunications service and provide domestic interexchange services. [is
address is:

111 Presidential Boulevard, Suite 125A
Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

(610) 568-3802

(610) 668-3912 (Tacsimile)

CTClI, a Delaware Corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Comcast
Corporation, a publicly-held Pennsylvania corporation. CTCI is a non-dominant
telecommunications company which, through commonly-owned subsidiaries, provides (or is
authorized to provide) various domestic (intrastate and interstate) and international voice and
data communications services to the public. The principal offices of both CTCI and
COMCAST Corporation are located at:

1500 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19102-2108
(215) 981-7640

(215) 981-7374 (facsimile)

On May 28, 1997, CTCI and the sharcholders of GlobalCom entered into a
Stock Purchase Agreement (the "Agreement”) whereby CTCI will acquire all of
GlobalCom's outstanding stock for cash. GlobalCom will become a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CTCI. After the transfer of control, GlobalCom will continue o operate as it has in the
past, using the same name, tariff, and operating authority. Two of GlobalCom's principal
shareholders and managers, Nathaniel Cohen and Barry Edelstein, have agreed to continue in
the management of GlobalCom afier the transfer of control. Thus, the transfer of control
will be transparent to, and will have no adverse impact upon, GlobalCom's customers.

CTCl is financially qualified to acquire control of GlobalCom and its business.
In 1996, CTCI's parent, COMCAST Corporation, had revenues of more than 4 billion
dollars, operating cash flow of 1.2 billion dollars, and total assets of more than 12 billion
dollars. A copy of COMCAST Corporation's most recent Securities and Exchange
Commission Form 10-K is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as
Attachment A.
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In addition, affiliates of CTCI already hold telecommunications authorizations
from the Florida Public Service Commission’ so the qualifications of Comcast Corporation,
the ultimate parent in both instances, have already been approved by this Commission.

The transfer of control of GlobalCom from its current sharcholders to CTCI is
in the public interest. The addition of GlobalCom to CTCI's other telecommunications
interests will enhance both CTCI's and GlobalCom's ability to compete in the market for
telecommunications services in Florida and elsewhere. The benefits flowing from these
increased economies of scale will permit GlobalCom to operate more efficiently and thus to
compete more effectively. In addition, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTCI, GlobalCom
will have access to the financial resources it needs to introduce new products and services
and to respond to competition in the competitive telecommunications environment in Florida
and other states. Over time, consumers in Florida will benefit from a greater number of
product and service options, as well as lower prices. Thus, the instant transfer of control
will serve the public interest.

Questions about this matter relating to CTCI should be directed to john
Sullivan at the above address or to CTCI's counsel indicated below.
Questions relating to GlobalCom should be directed to Barry Edelstein at the above address
or to GlobalCom's counsel indicated below.

WHEREFORE, CTCI and GlobalCom respectfully request that the
Commission authorize, 23 promptly as possible, the transfer of control of GlobalCom from

. Florida Telecommunications Services, Inc. and MH Lightnet of Florida, Inc.
both hold AAV/ALEC certificates.
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In addition, affiliates of CTCI already hold telecommunications authorizations
from the Florida Public Service Commission? so the qualifications of Comcast Corporation,
the ultimate parent in both instances, have already been approved by this Commission.

The transfer of control of GlobalCom from its current sharcholders 1o CTCI is
in the public interest. The addition of GlobalCom to CTCI's other telecommunications
interests will enhance both CTCI's and GlobalCom's ability to compete in the market for
telecommunications services in Florida and elsewhere. The benefits flowing from these
increased economies of scale will permit GlobalCom to operate more efficiently and thus to
compete more effectively. In addition, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTCI, GlobalCom
will have access to the financial resources it needs to introduce new products and services
and to respond to competition in the competitive telecommunications environment in Florida
and other states. Over time, consumers in Florida will benefit from a greater number of
product and service options, as well as lower prices. Thus, the instant transfer of control
will serve the public interest.

Questions about this matter relating to CTCI should be directed 10 John
Sullivan at the above address or to CTCl's counsel indicated below. Questions relating to
GlobalCom should be direcled 1o Barry Edelstein at the above address or to GlobalCom's
counsel indicated below. In addition, it would be appreciated if you would receipt stamp the
enclosed duplicate copy of this letter and return it to us in the self-addressed, stamped

envelope provided.

WHEREFORE, CTCI and GlobalCom respectfully request that the
Commission authorize, as promptly as possible, the transfer of control of GlobalCom from

2 Florida Telecommunications Services, Inc. and MH Lightnet of Florida, Inc.
both hold AAV/ALEC certificates,

M DOOIFREEIMATTI AL




.KELLE‘I' DRYE & WARREN LL’

Ms. Blanca Bayo
July 10, 1997

Page 4

its current shareholders to CTCI so that the transaction may proceed without undue delay.

Respectfully submitted,
COMCAST TELEPHONY COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

KELLEY DRYE & WARREN LLP
Iis Attormeys

GLOBALCOM TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Br:M
Patrick D. Crocker

EARLY, LENNON, PETERS & CROCKER, P.C.
900 Comerica Building

Kalamazoo, M1 49007-4762

(616) 381-8844

(616) 381-8844

lts Attorneys
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Washington, D.C. 20549
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BECUMITIES EXUHANGE AU OF 1934
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 1996

OR
11 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19M
FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM m.- -

Commission Mie number 0-6983

COMCAST®

CORPORATION

{Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

PENNSYLVANIA 23 1 w2

(Stnte or other jurisdsction of incorporstion of ofganization (1K 5 Employer ldeanificaton Mo |
1 %00 Market Street, Philadelphia, FA 19102 2an
{Address of principsl executive offices) (#ip Conde')

Registrani's lelephane number, including sres code: (115) 663-1700

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12ib) OF THE ACT:
NONE
SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(g) OF THE ACT:
Class A Commaon Stock, $1.00 par value
Class A Special Common Stock. $1.00 par value
3-MR% / 5-1/2% Step-up Convertible Subordinated Debentures Due 200%
1-1/8% Discount Convertible Subordinated Debentures Due 2007

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be flled by Sectlon 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that
the Registrant was required to fle such reports) and (2) has been subject to such Mling requirements for the

past 90 days.
Yes _ X ) _ No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant o ltem 405 of Regulation 5-K is not
coniained herein, and will not be contalned, to the best of Registrant's knowledge, In definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference ln Part 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendments (o this
Form 10-K. (I

As of February 1, 1997, the aggregate market value of the Class A Common Stock and Class A Special
Common Stock held by non-affillates of the Registrant was $567.5 million and $5.091 billion, respectively.

As of February 1, 1997, there were 283,488,179 shares of Class A Special Common Stock, 11,504,729 shares
of Class A Common Stock and 8,786,250 shares of Class B Common Stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Part 111 - The Registrant's deflnltive Proxy Stalement for lis Annual Meeting of Sharcholders prepently
scheduled (o be beld in June 1997 [
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This Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996, al the time of filing with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, modifies and supersedes all documents filed pursuant lo Sections 13, 14 and 13{d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for purposes of any offers or sales of any securities after the date of such
filing pursuant to any Registration Statement or Prospectus filed pursuant 1o i Securities Act of 1933 which
incorporates by reference this Annual Report.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward looking stalements made pursuant 10 the “safe harbor™ provisions
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Readers are cautioned that such forward looking statements
involve risks and uncertainties which could significantly affect expected results in the future from those expressed in
any such forward looking statements made by, or on behall of the Company. Certain factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially inclode, without limitation, the effects of legislative and regulsiory changes; the potential for
.mmm&umﬁwmnmm ! in the subscriber base by

successfully launching, marketing and providing services in identified mariets; pressures which could affect
ﬁnnmdﬁfﬂuﬂuwnyl lhnCnmpnyl to expand its distribution; changes in labor, programming,
and the Company’s continued ability to create or acquire programming and products that

equipment or
customers will fi mﬂu.mmmﬁmﬂmm general business and economic
conditions; and other risks detailed from time to time in the Company’s periodic reports filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission.
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ITEM1  BUSINESS

Comcast Corporation and its subsidiaries (the "Company”) is principally engaged in the development, management
and operation of wired and wireless telecommunications and the provision of content (see "Description of the
Company's Businesses”). The Company was organized in 1969 under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania and has its principal executive offices at 1500 Market Sureet, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, 19102-2148,
(215) 665-1700,

See Note 10 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for information about the Company's operations
by industry segment.

GENERAL DEVELOPMENTS OF BUSINESS
E! Entertainment

As of December 31, 1996, the Company owned a [0.4% interest in E! Enterininment Television, Inc. ("E!
Entertainment™), an entertainment programming service that currently is distributed 10 more than 42 million
subscribers. The Company has the right, by virtue of various agreements among the sharcholders of E! Entertainment,
to purchase an additional 58.4% interest in E! Entertainment from Time Warner, Inc. ("Time Warner™) for 3321.1
million. In January 1997, the Company and The Wali Disney Company (“Disncy”) eniered inio an agreement to form
a new limited liability company ("Newco”) that will be owned 50.1% by the Company and 49.9% by Disncy

Pursuant to the agreement, the Company will contribute to Newco its 10.4% interest in E! Entertainment, the nght
1o exercise ils option to purchase the Time Warner interest and $132.3 million in cash. Disney will centribute 1o
Newco 31888 million in cash. Newco will use the cash contributed by the Company and Disncy to purchase the
Time Warner interest. Following such purchase, Newco will own a 68.8% interest in E! Entertainment. To fund the
cash portion of its contribution, the Company will borrow $132.3 million from Disney in the form of two 10-year,
7% notes. These transactions are expecied 1o close in the first quarner of 1997, subject 10 regulatory approval and
certain other conditions,

Seripps Cable

In November 1996, the Company acquired the cable ielevision operalions ("Scripps Cable”) of The EW. Scripps
Company in exchange for 93.048 million shares of the Company ‘s Class A Special Common Stock, par value 31 00
per share (the "Class A Special Common Stock™), valued at $1.552 billion (the "Scripps Acquisition”). Scripps Cable
passed more than 1.3 million homes and served more than B0O000 subscribers as of December 31, 1996, with 60%
of its subscribers located in Sacramento, California and Chartanooga and Knoxville. Tennessee. The Company has
accounted for the Scripps Acquisition under the purchase method and Scripps Cable was consolidated with the
Company effective November 1, 1996,

Comcast-Speciacor

In July 1996, the Company completed its acquisition (the "Sports Venture Acquisition”) of a 66% interest in the
Philadelphia Flyers Limited Partnership, a Pennsylvania limited parinership ("PFLP"). the assets of which, afier
giving effect 1o the Sports Venture Acquisition, consist of (i) the National Basketball Association ("NHAT) franchise
to own and operate the Philadelphia 7éers basketball team and related assets (the "Sinens”), (i) the National Hockey
League ("NHL") franchise 1o own and operate the Philadelphia Flyers hockey team and related assets, and (i) two
adjacent arenas, leasehold interests in and development rights related to the land underlying the arenas and other
adjacent parcels of land located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (collectively, the “Arcnas”). Concurrent with the
completion of the Sports Venture Acquisition, PFLP was renamed Comcast Spectacor, | 1" ("Comcast:-Speciacer™)
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The Sports Venture Acquisition was completed in two steps. In April 1996, the Company purchased the Sixers for
$125.0 million in cash plus assumed net liabilities of $11.0 million through a partnership controlled by the Company.
To complete the Sports Venture Acquisition, in July 1996, the Company contributed its interest in the Sixers,
exchanged approximately 3.5 million shares of the Company's Class A Special Common Stock and 6,370 shares of
the Company's newly issued 5% Scries A Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock”), and paid $15.0 million
in cash for its current interest in Comcast-Spectacor. The remaining J4% interest in Comcast-Spectacor is owned
by a group, including the former majority owner of PFLP, who also manages Comcast-Spectacor. In connection with
the Sports Venture Acquisition, Comcast-Spectacor assumed the outstanding liabilities relating to the Sixers and the
Arenas, including a mongage obligation of $155.0 million. The Company accounts for ils interest in Comcast-
Spectacor under the equity method.

Sprint Spectrum

The Company, Tele-Communications, Inc. ("TCI"), Cox Communications, Inc. ("Cox,” and together with the
Company and TCI, the "Cable Parents™) and Sprint Corporation (“Sprint.” and together with the Cable Parents, the
“Parents”), and certain subsidiaries of the Parents (the “Partner Subsicliaries”) engage in the wircless communications
business through a limited partnership known as “Sprint Spectrum,” a development stage enterprise. The Company
owns 15% of Sprint Spectrum and accounts for its investment in Sprint Spectrum under the equily method.

Sprint Spectrum was the successful bidder for 29 personal communications services ("PCS”) licenses in the auction
conducted by the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC™) from December 1994 through mid-March 1995.
The purchase price for the licenses was $2.11 billion, all of which has been paid 1o the FOC. In addition. Sprint
Spectrum has invested, and may continue 1o invest, in other entities that hold PCS licenses, may acquire PCS licenses
in future FCC auctions or from other license holders and may affilisie with other license holders

The Partner Subsidiaries have commitied to contribute $4.2 billion in cash io Sprint Specirum through 1999, of which
the Company's share is $630.0 million. Of this funding requirement, the Company has made total cash contributions
to Sprint Spectrum of $452.8 million through December 31, 1996 and issued a $105.0 million guaranty on a portion
of Sprint Spectrum’s outstanding debt. The Company anticipates that Sprint Spectrum’s capital requirzments over
the next several years will be significant. Requirements in excess of committed capital are planned to be funded by
Sprint Spectrum through external financing, including. but not limited 1o, vendor financing, bank linancing and
securities offered 1o the public. In August 1996, Sprint Spectrum sold $750.0 million principal amount at maturity
of Senior Notes and Senior Discount Notes due in 2006 in a public offering. In October 1996, Sprint Spectrum
closed three credit agreements which provided $2.0 billion in bank financing and $3.1 billion in vendor financing
The timing of the Company's remaining capital contributions to Sprint Spectrum is dependent upon a number of
factors, including Sprint Spectrum’s working capital requirements. The Company anticipates funding its remaining
capilal commitments 1o Sprint Spectrum through its cash flows from operating activities, ity existing cash, cash
equivalents, shori-lerm investments and lines of credit or other external financing. or by a combinaizon of these
sources.

Repurchase Program

Concurrent with the announcement of the Scripps Acquisition in October 1995, the Company announced that 1ts
Board of Directors authorized a market repurchase program (the “Repurchase Program”™) pursuant w which the
Company may purchase, at such times and on such terms as it deems appropriate, up to $300.0 million of s
outstanding common stock, subject 1o certain restrictions and market conditions. During the years ended
[ecember 31, 1996 and 1995, the Company repurchased 10.5 million shares and 680,000 shares, respectively, of
its common stock for aggregate consideration of $180.0 million and $12.4 million, respeciively, pursuant 1o the
Repurchase Program. During January 1997. the Company repurchased an additional 450,(XX) shares of its common
stock for aggregate consideration of $7.6 million. The Repurchase Program will terminate in May 1997

As part of the Repurchase Program, the Company sold put options on 1.0 million and 3.0 million shares of its Class
A Special Common Stock during the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively. ihe put oplions give
the holders the right o require the Company 1o repurchase such shares al specified prices on specific dates in January
through March 1997, As of December 31, 1996, the Company has reclassified $69 6 million, the amount it would
be obligated 1o pay o repurchase such shares upon exercise of the pul optinns, 10 a lemporary equily account in s
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consolidated balance sheet. The temporary equity related 1o these shares will be reclassified to additional capital in
the first quarter of 1997 upon expiration or settlement of the options.

'S BUSINESSES
HE b » }N‘

Wired telecommunications includes cable and iclecommunications services in the United States ("US”) and the United
Kingdom ("UK") (see “Cable Communications - Company's Systems” and " UK Activities™) The Company also
owns a 50% interest in Garden State Cablevision L.P. ("Garden State”), a cable communications company serving
portions of southern New Jersey, and a 16.1% interest in Teleport Communications Group, Inc. ("TCGI™), one of
the largest competitive alternative access providers in the US in terms of route miles

CABLE COMMUNICATIONS

General

A cable communications system receives signals by means of special anlennae, microwave relay systems. carth
stations and fiber optics. The system amplifics such signals, provides locally onginated programs and ancillary
services and distributes programs 1o subscribers through a fiber optic and coanial cable vystem

Cable communications systems generally offer subscribers the signals of all national television networks; local and
distant independent, specialty and educational television stations, satellite-delivered non-broadcast channels, locally
originated programs; educational programs; sudio programming; electronic retailing and public service
announcements. In addition, each of the Company's systems offer, for an extra monthly charge, one or more
premium services ("Pay Cable”) such as Home Box Office®, Cinemax®, Showtime®, The Movie Channel™ and
Encore®, which generally offer, without commercial interruption, feature motion pictures, live and taped sporting
events, concerts and other special features. Substantially all of the Company’s systems offer pay-per-view services.
which permit a subscriber to order, for a separate fee, individual feature motion pictures and special event programs
The Company has also started offering or is field testing other cable-based services including cable modems (see
“Description of the Company's Businesses - Wired Telecommunications - Online Services™). video games and data
transfer.

Cable communications systems arc generally coastructed and operated under non-exclusive franchises granted by
state or local governmental authorities. Franchises typically contain many conditions, such as tine hmiations on
commencement or completion of construction; conditions of service, including number of channels, types of
programmin; and provision of free services 1o schools and other public institutions, and the maintenance of insurance
and indemnity bonds. Cable franchises are subject 1o the Cable Communications Policy Act of 1984 (the " 1984 Cable
Act”), the Cable Television Consumer Protection and Competition Act of 1992 (the "1992 Cable Act.” and wgether
with the 1984 Cable Act, the "Cable Acts™) and the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the “1996 Telecom Act™), as
well as FCC, state and local regulations (see "Legislation and Regulation”)

The Company's franchises typically provide for periodic payment of fees 1o franchising authorities of 5% of
“revenues” (as defined by each franchise agreement), which fees may be passed on 1o subscribers. Franchises are
generally non-transferable without the consent of the governmental authonty. Many of the Company’s franchises
were granied for an initial term of 15 years. Although franchises historically have been rencwed and, under the Cable
Acts. should continue o be renewed for companies that have provided adequate service and have complied generally
with franchise terms, renewal may be more difficult as a result of the 1992 Cable Act and may include less favorable
terms and conditions. Furthermore, the governmental authority may choose to award additional franchises 1o
competing companies at any time (see "Competition” and “Legislation and Regulation”). In addition, under the 1996
Telecom Act, certain providers of programming services may be exempl from local franchising reguircments
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The table below sets forth a summary of Homes Passed and Cable Subscriber information for the Company’s
domestic cable communications systems for the five years ended December 31, 1996

1996 (5) 1995 1994¢4) 1993 1992

{In thousands)
Homes Passed (1X3) 6975 5.570 5491 4,211 4,154
Cable Subscribers (243) 4,280 3407 3. 2,648 2,543

(1) A home is deemed "passed” if it can be connecied to the distnbution system without further extension of the
transmission lines.
(2) A dwelling with one or more television sets connected o a system is counted as one Cable Subscriber '
(3) Consists of systems whose financial results are consolidated with those of the Company. Amounts do not
include information for the Company's investment in Garden State or in other sysiems managed by the
Company in which the Company has less than a 50% interest. As of December 31, 1996, 1otal Homes Passed
and Cable Subscribers for such entities were 331,000 and 227,000, respectively.
(4) In 1994, the Company scquired the US cable television operations of Maclean Hunter Limited.

(5) In 1996, the Company acquired Scripps Cable.

Revenue Sources

The Company's cable communications systems offer varying levels of service, depending primanily on their
respective channel capacities. As of December 31, 1996, a majority of the Company’s subscribers were served hy
systems that had the capacity to carry in excess of 60 channels

Monthly service and equipment rates and related charges vary in accordance with the type of service selected by the
subscriber. The Company may receive an additional monthly fee for Pay Cable service, the charge for which varies
with the type and level of service selected by the subscriber. Additional charges are ofien imposed for installation
services, commercial subscribers, program guides and other services. The Company also generates revenue [rom pay-
per-view services, advertising sales and commissions from electronic retailing. Subscribers typically pay on a monthly
basis and generally may discontinue services at any time (sec “Legislation and Regulation™).

The Company generally pays either a monthly fee per subscriber per channel or a percentage of certain revenues for
programming. Programming costs increase in the ordinary coune of the Company”s business as a result of increases
in the number of subscribers, expansion of the number of channels provided 10 customers and contractual rate
increases from programming supplicrs.

The Company secks and secures long-lerm programming contracts with suppliers, some of which provide volume "
discount pricing structures and/or offer marketing support to the Company. The Company anticipates that future
contract renewals will result in programming costs exceeding current levels, particularly for sports programming

National manufacturers are the primary sources of supplies, equipment and materials utilized in the construction,
rebuild and upgrade of the Company's cable communications systems. Construction, rebuild and upgrade costs for
these systems have immeﬂﬂuwﬂdmmjmmimmnamltﬂwnﬂdln
construct increasingly complex systems, overall demand for labor and other factors,

The Company anticipates that its programming and construction, rebuild and upgrade costs will be significant in
future periods. The amount of such costs will depend on Rumerous factors, many of which are beyond the
Company's control. These factors include the effects of competition, whether a particular sysiem has sufficient
capacity 1o handle new product offerings including the offering of communications services, whether and o what
extent the Company will be able to recover its investment under FCC rate guidelines and other factors, and whether

i




the Company acquires additional systems in need of upgrading or rebuilding. Increases in such costs may be
significant to the Company’s financial position, results of operations and liquidiry.

UK Activities

The Company beneficially owns a 25.7% equity interest and controls 77.6% of the total voting power of Comcast
UK Cable Pariners Limiled, a consolidated subsidiary of the Company ("Comcast UK Cable™). As of December 31,
1996, Comcast UK Cable has equity interests in four operating companies (the "UK Operating Companies”):
Birmingham Cable Corporation Limited (*Birmingham Cable”). in which Comcast UK Cable owns a 27.5% interest,
Cable London PLC ("Cable London™), in which Comcast UK Cable owns a 50.0% interest, Cambridge Holding
Company Limited (“Cambridge Cable™), in which Comcast UK Cable owns a 100.0% interest, and two companics
holding the franchises for Darlington and Teesside, England (“Teesside™). in which Comcast UK Cable owns a
100.0% interest. The UK Operating Companies hold exclusive cable television licenses and non-exclusive
telecommunications licenses and provide integrated cable iclevision, residential iclephony and business
telecommunications services 1o subscribers in their respective franchise areas. When build-oul of the UK Operating
Companies” syslems is complete, these systems will have the potential to serve over 1.6 million homes and the
businesses within their franchise areas.

Based on closed and announced transactions, it is apparent that the UK cable and telecommunications industries are
undergoing a significant consolidation, which trend the Company cxpects to continue in the coming months. The
Company has engaged an investment advisor o assist il in evaluating the current staie of the UK marketplace, the
position of other participants and its alternatives with respect 10 Comeast UK Cable. There can be no assurance that
the Company will 1ake any action, or in what time frame any such action, if undertaken, migh” he accomplished.

UK Operating Companies’ Systems

The table below sets forth Homes Passed, Telephony Subscriber and Cable Subscriber information for the UK
Operating Companies™ cable communications systems for the five years ended December 31, 1996:

1996 1995 1994 1993 1
(In thousands)
Homes Passed (1) (2)
Birmingham Cable 374 32 21 156 104
Cable London L) 246 171 121 . ]
Cambridge Cable I8N 151 15 75 i
Teesside 100 40
[ 5

Birmingham Cable 108 #3 59 36 23
Cable London 60 41 n IX 12
Cambridge Cable 54 44 M 12
Teesside 50 20
Cable Subscribers (2) (4)
Birmingham Cable 1 B8 KE] 55 is
Cable London 67 52 42 30 20
Cambridge Cable 45 36 M) It [
Tecsside 3 14

(1) A home is deemed “passed” if it can be connected to the distribution system without further extension of the
transmission lines.

{2) Homes Passed, Telephony Subscribers and Cable Subscribers have nol been adjusted for the Company's
proportionate ownership interests in the respective UK Operating Companies.

{3) A dwelling with one or more telephone lines connected 1o a system is counted as one Telephony Subscniber,

(4) A dwelling with one or more television sets connecied 1o a system is counted as one Cable Subscriber.
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Cable communications s siems face competition from alternative methods of receiving and distributing television
signals and from other sources of news, information and entertainment such as off-air 1clevision broadcast
programming, newspapers, movie theaters, live sporting events, interactive online computer services and home video
products, including videotape cassette recorders. The extent to which a cable communications system is competitive
depends, in part, upon the cable system's ability to provide, at a reasonable price to consumers, a greater varicty of
programming and other communications services than are available off-air or through other alternative delivery
sources (see “Legislation and Regulation”) and upon superior technical performance and customer service.
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The 1996 Telecom Act makes it easier for local exchange telephone companies ("LECs") and others to provide a
wide variety of video services competitive with services provided by cable systems and 1o provide cable services
directly 10 subscribers (see “Legislation and Regulation - The 1996 Telecom Act”). Various LECs currently are
providing video services within and outside their telephone service areas through a variety of distribution methods,
including both the deployment of broadband wire facilities and the use of wireless transmission facilities. Cable
systems could be placed at a competitive disadvantage if the delivery of video services by LECs becomes widespread
since LECs are not required, under certain circumstances, to obtain local franchises to deliver such video services
or 1o comply with the variety of obligations imposed upon cable systems under such franchises {sec "Legislation and
Regulation™). Issues of cross-subsidization by LECs of video and telephony services also pose strategic disadvantages
for cable operators secking 1o compete with LECs which provide videw services. The Company cannol predict the
likelihood of success of video service ventures by LECs or the impact on the Company of such competitive ventures.

Cable communications systems generally operate pursuant to franchises granted on a non-exclusive basis. The 1992
Cable Act prohibits franchising authorities from unreasonably denying requests for additional franchises and permits
franchising authorities to operate cable systems (see "Legislation and Regulation™), Well-financed businesses from
outside the cable industry (such as public utilities that own certain of the poles on which cable is attached) may
become competitors for franchises or providers of competing services (see “Legislation and Regulation - The 1996
Telecom Act”), Competition from other video service providers exists in the arcas served by the Company. In
addition, LECs in various states either have announced plans, obtained local franchise authorizations or are currently
competing with the Company’s cable communications systems in various areas,

The availability of reasonably-priced home satellite dish carth stations (“H5Ds") enables individual houscholds 1o
receive many of the satellite-delivered program services formerly available only to cable subscribers. Funthermore,
the 1992 Cable Act contains provisions, which the FCC has implemented with regulations, 1o enhance the ability of
cable competilors 1o purchase and make available 10 HSD owners certain salellite-delivered cable progiamming at
compeltitive costs, The 1996 Telecom Act and FOC regulstions implementing that law preempt certain local
restrictions on the use of HSDs and roof-top antennae to receive satellite programming and over-the-air broadcasting
services (see “Legislation and Regulation - The 1996 Telecom Act”)

Cable operators face additional competition from private satellite master antenna ielevision ("SMATV") systems that
serve condominiums, apartment and office complexes and private residential developments. The 1996 Telecom Act
broadens the definition of SMATV systems not subject 1o regulation as a franchised cable communications service.
SMATV systems offer both improved reception of local television stations and many of the same satellite-delivzrea
programming services offered by franchised cable communications sysiems. SMATV operalors often enter into
exclusive agreements with building owners or homeowners’ associations, although some states have enacted laws
to provide franchised cable systems access (o such private complexes, and the 1984 Cable Act gives a franchised
cable operator the right to use existing compatible casements within its franchise area under certain circumstances.
These laws have been challenged in the courts with varying resulis. In addition, some companies are developing
andlor offering packages of telephony, data and video services lo these private residential and commercial
developments, The ability of the Company to compete for subscribers in residential and commercial developments
served by SMATV operators is uncertain,

The FCC and Congress have adopted policies providing a more flavorable operating environment for new and existing
technologies that provide, or have the potential to provide, substantial competition 10 cable systems These
technologies include, among others, the direct broadcast satellite ("DBS”) service whereby signals are transmitied
by satellite to receiving facilities located on customer premises. Programming is currently available to the ownen
of HSDs through conventional, medium and high-powered satellites. In 1990, Primestar Partners, L.P. ("Primestar™),
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a consortium comprised of cable operators, including the Company and a satellite company, commenced operation
of a medium-power DBS satellite system using the Ku portion of the frequency spectrum and currently provides
service consisting of approximately 93 channels of programming, including broadcast signals and pay-per-view
services (see “Wireless Telecommunications - DBS Operations™). In January 1997, Primestar lsunched a replacement
medium-power DBS satellite which will enable it to increase its capacity 1o spproximately 160 channels. In addition,
through one of its owners which is also a Primestar affiliate, Primestar has obtained the right to provide service over
a high-power DBS satellite and, using video compression technology, intends initially to offer approximately 70
channels of video programming in the future. This programming is intended 1o be offered 1o existing cable
subscribers as an addition to their cable service. DirecTV, which includes AT&T Corp. as an investor, began offering
nationwide high-power DBS service in 1994 accompanied by extensive marketing efforts. Several other major
companies, including EchoStar Communications Corporation ("EchoStar™) and American Sky Broadcasting
(“ASkyB"), a joint venture between MCI Telecommunications Corporation and News Corp.. have begun offering
or are currently developing high-power DBS services. EchoStar has already commenced its domestic DBS service
and offers approximately 120 channels of video programming. ASkyB is constructing satellites that reportedly, when
operational, will provide approximately 200 channels of DBS service in the US. The recently announced plans of
News Corp. to purchase an interest in EchoStar may, if consummated. create a more significant competitor to cable
and DBS service providers, including the Company.

DBS systems are expected 10 use video compression technology to increase the channel capacily of their systems
to provide movies, broadcast stations and other program services comparable 1o those of cable systems. Digital
satellite service (“D5S”) offered by DBS systems currently has certain advantages over cable systems with respect
to programming capacity and digital quality, as well as certain current disadvantages that include high up-fromt
customer equipment costs and a lack of local programming, local service and equipment distribution. While D55
presents a competitive threat to cable, the Company currently is increasing channcl capacity in many of its systems
and upgrading its local customer service and technical support. The Company is currently in the process of
implementing ten regional customer service call centers. As of December 11, 1994, three of these call centers were
in operation, servicing more than 950,000 subscribers. These upgrades will enable the Company to introduce new
premium channels, pay-per-view programming. interactive computer-based services and other communications
services in order 1o enhance its ability to compete,

Cable communications systems also compete with wircless program distribution services such as multichannel,
multipoint distribution service ("MMDS") which use low-power microwave frequencies lo transmit video
programming over-the-air 1o subscribers. There are MMDS operators who are authorized (o provide or are providing
broadcast and satellile programming to subscribers in areas served by the Company“s cable systems. Several Regional
Bell Operating Companies ("BOCs") have acquired significant interests in major MMDS companies operating in
certain of the Company's cable service areas. Recent public announcements by Bell Atlantic Corporation ("Bell
Atlantic®), a BOC operating in the northeastern US, indicate that plans to compete with the Company through the
use of MMDS technology may be revised. Additionally, the FCC recently adopted new regulations allocating
frequencies in the 28-GHz band for a new multichannel wireless video service similar to MMDS. The Company is
unable to predict whether wireless video services will have a material impact on its operations.

Other new technologies, including internet-based services, may become competitive with services thal cable
communications systems can offer. The FOC has authorized television broadcast stations 1o transmit textual and
graphic information useful both to consumers and businesses. The FCC also permits commercial and non-commercial
FM stations to use their subcarrier frequencies to provide non-broadeast services including data transmissions. The
FOC established an over-the-air Interactive Video and Data Service that will permit two-way interaction with
commercial and cducational programming along with informational and data services. LECs and other common
carriers also provide facilities for the transmission and distribution 1o homes and businesses of interactive computer-
hased services, including the Internet, as well as data and other non-video services. The FCC has conducted spectrum
auctions for licenses 1o provide PCS. PCS will enable license holders, including cable operators, o provide voice
and data services (see “Wireless Telecommunications - Cellular Telephone Communications - Competition”),

Advances in communications technology as well as changes in the marketplace and the regulatory and legislative
environmenl are constantly occurring. Thus, it is not possible to predict the effect that ongoing or fulure
developments might have on the cable communications industry or on the operations of the Company.




N >

The Cable Acts and the 1996 Telecom Act amended the Communications Act of 193 (as anwaded the
“Communications Act™) and established a national policy 1o guide the development and regulation of cable sysiems
mmm-m::juhmchmmmmquimdmLuﬂuﬂmmm“duﬂmmh
implement the 1996 Telecom Act, and such proceedings may materially affect the cable communications industry,
The following is a summary of federal laws and regulations materially affecting the growth and operation of the
cable communications industry and a description of certain state and local laws.

The 1996 Telecom Act. The 1996 Telecom Act, the most comprehensive reform of the nation’s lelecommunications
laws since the Communications Act, became effective in February 1996. Although the long-term goal of this act is
1o promote competition and decrease regulation of these industries, in the short-term, the law delegates o the FCC
(and in some cases the states) broad new rulemaking authority. The 1996 Telecom Act deregulates rales for cable
programming service tiers ("CPSTs") in March 1999 for large Muluple System Operators ("MSOs"), such as the
Company, and immediately for certain small operators. Deregulation will occur sooner for systems in markets where
comparable video services, other than DBS, are offered by the LECs, or their affilistes, or by third partes vtilizing
the LECs® facilities or where "effective competition” is established under the 1992 Cable Act. The 1996 Telecom
Act also modifies the uniform rate provisions of the 1992 Cable Act by prohibiting regulation of non-predatory, bulk
discount rates oftered to subscribers in commercial and residential developments and permits regulased equipment
rates 1o be computed by aggregating costs of broad categories of equipment at the franchise, system, regional or
company level. The 1996 Telecom Act eliminates the right of individual subscribers to file rate complaints with the
FCC concerning certain CPSTs and requires the FCC to issue a final order within 90 days after receipt of CPST rate
complaints filed by any franchising authority. The 1996 Telecom Act also modifies the existing statutory provisions
governing cable system lechnical standards, equipment compatibility, subscriber notice requirements and program
access, permits certain operators (o include losses incurred prior 10 September 1992 in setting regulated rates and
repeals the three-year anti-trafficking prohibition adopted in the 1992 Cable Act. FCC regulations implementing the
1996 Telecom Act preempt certain local restrictions on satellite and over-the-air antenna reception of video
programming services, including zoning, land-use or building regulations, or any privaie covenant. homeowners’
association rule or similar restriction on property within the exclusive use or control of the anienna user,

The 1996 Telecom Act eliminales the requirement that LECs obtain FCC approval under Section 214 of the
Communications Act before providing video services in their telephone service areas and removes the statutory
telephone company/cable television cross-ownership prohibition, thereby allowing LECs 1o offer video services in
their telephone service areas. LECs may provide service as traditional cable operators with local franchises or they
may opt lo provide their programming over unfranchised “open video systems,” subject to certain conditions,
including, but not limited to, setting aside a portion of their channel capacity for use by unaffilisted program
distributors and satisfying certain other requirements. Under limited circumstances, cable operators also may elect
to offer services through open video systems. The 1996 Telecom Act also prohibits a LEC from acquining a cable
operator in its telephone service area except in limited circumstances. The 1996 Telecom Act removes bamen 1o
entry in the local telephone exchange market by preempting state and local laws that restrict competition and by
requiring all LECs to provide nondiscriminatory access and interconnection 1o potential competitors, such as cable
operators, wireless telecommunications providers and long distance companies (see “Wireless Telecommunications -
Cellular Telephone Communications - Legislation and Regulation™).

The 1996 Telecom Act also conlains provisions regulating the content of video programming and computer services
Specifically, the new law prohibits the use of computer services 1o transmit “indecent” material 1o minors. Several
special three-judge federal district courts have issued preliminary injunctions enjoining the enforcement of these
pravisions as unconstitutional 1o the extent they regulate the transmission of indecent maierial. The U'S Supreme
Court recently announced that it would review one of these decisions. In accordance with the 1996 Telecom Act,
the television industry recently adopted s voluntary ratings system for violent and indecent video programming. The
1996 Telecom Act also requires all new television sets 1o contain a so-called "V-chip™ capable of blocking all
programs with a given rating.

Rate Regulation. The 1992 Cable Act authorized rate regulation for cable communications services and equipment
in communities that are not subject 1o "effective competition,” as defined by federal law Mot cable communications
systems are now subject to rate regulation for basic cable service and equipment by local officials under the oversight
of the FOC, which has prescribed detailec criteria for such rate regulation. The 1992 Cable Act also requires the FCC
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to resolve complaints about rates for CPSTs (other than programming offered on a per channel or per program basis,
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1996 Telecom Act provides for rate deregulation of CPSTs by March 1999 (see “The 1996 Telecom Act”).

FCC regulations, which became effective in September 1993, govern rates thal may be charged to subscribers for
basic cable service and certain CPSTs (together, the "Regulated Services™). The FOC uses a benchmark methodology
as the principal method of regulating rates for Regulated Services. Cable operators are also permitied to justify rates
using a cost-of-service methodology. In 1994, the FCC's benchmark regulations required operators to implement rate
reductions for Regulated Services of up to 17% of the rates for such services in effect on September 30, 1992,
adjusted for inflation, programming modifications, equipment costs and increases in certain operating costs. In July
1994, the Company reduced rates for Regulated Services in the majority of its cable systems 10 comply with the
FCC’s regulations. The FCC has also adopted comprehensive and restrictive regulations allowing operators to modity
their regulated rates on a quarterly or annual basis using various methodologies that account for changes in the
number of regulated channels, inflation and increases in cenain external costs, such as franchise and other
governmental fees, copyright and retransmission consent fees, taxes, programming fees and franchise related
obligations. The Company cannol predict whether the FCC will modify these “going forward® regulations in the
future.

Franchising authorities are empowered 1o regulate the rates charged for additional outlets and for the installation.
lease and sale of equipment used by subscribers to receive the basic cable service tier, such as converter boxes and
remote control units. The FCC's rules require franchising authorities to regulate these rates on the basis of actual
cost plus a reasonable profit, as defined by the FCC.

Cable operators required to reduce rates may also be required to refund overcharges with interest. Rate reductions
will not be required where a cable operator can demonstrate that existing rates for Regulated Services are reasonable
using the FCC's cost-of-service rate regulations which require, among other things, the exclusion of 34% of system
acquisition costs related to intangible and tangible assets used 10 provide Regulated Services. The FCC™s cost-of-
service regulations contain a rebuttable presumption of an industry-wide 11.25% after tax rale of retumn on &n
operator’s allowable rate base, but the FOC has initisted s further rulemaking in which it proposes 1o use an
operator’s actual debt cost and capital structure to determine an operator’s cost of capital or rate of return.

The Company has settled the majority of outstanding proceedings challenging its rates charged for regulated cable
services. In December 1995, the FCC adopled an order approving a negotiated setthement of rate complaints pending
against the Company for CPSTs which provided $6.6 million in refunds, plus interest, given in the form of bill
credits during 1996, to 1.3 million of the Company’s cable subscribers. As pan of the negotisted settlement, the
Company agreed 1o forego certain inflation and external cost adjustments for systems covered by its cost-of-service
filings for CPSTs. The Company cumrently is seeking o justify rates for basic cable services and equipment in certain
of its cable systems in the State of Connecticut on the basis of a cost-of-service showing. The State of Connecticut
has ordered the Company 1o reduce such rates and to make refunds to subscribers. The Company has appealed the
Connecticut decision to the FCC, Recent pronouncements from the FCC, which generally support the Company’s
position on appeal, have caused the State of Connecticut 10 reexamine its prior ruling. While the Company cannot
predict the outcome of this action, the Company believes that the ultimate resolution of these pending regulatory
matters will not have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial position, resulls of operations or

liquidity.

“Ansi-Buy Through” Provisions. The 1992 Cable Act requires cable sysiems to permil subscribers 1o purchase video
programming offered by the operator on a per channel or a per program basis without the necessity of subscribing
to any tier of service, other than the basic cable service tier, unless the system’s lack of addrestable converter boxes
or other technological limitatipns does not permit H 10 do so. The statutory exemption for cable systems that do not
have the technological capability to offer programming in the manner required by the statute is available until a
system obtains such capability, but not later than December 2000, The FCC may waive such time periods. if deemed
necessary. Many of the Company’s systems do not have the technological capability to offer programming In the
manner required by the statute and thus currently are exempt from complying with the requirement

Must Carry/Retransmission Consent. The 1992 Cable Act containg broadcast signal carriage requirements that allow
local commercial television broadcast stations 1o elect once every three years 1o require a cable system to carry the
station, subject 1o cenain exceptions, or to negotiate for “retransmission consent” 10 carry the station. A cable system
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generally is required to devote up 1o one-third of its activaled channel capacity for the carriage of local commercial
television stations whether pursuant 10 the mandalory carriage or retransmission consent requirements of the 1992
Cable Act. Local non-commercial ielevision siations are also given mandatory carriage rights; however, such stations
are not given the option to negotiate retransmission consent for the carriage of their signals by cable systems
Additionally, cable systems are recquired to oblain retransmission consent for all “distant”™ commercial television
stations (except for commercial satellile-delivered independent “superstations™ such as WTBS), commercial radio
stations and certain low-power iclevision stations carried by such systems afier October 1993. The US Supreme Count
is currently reviewing the coastitutional validity of the 1992 Cable Act's mandatory signal carriage requirements.
The Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of this litigation. Pending action by the US Supreme Coun, the
mandatory broadcast signal carriage requirements remain in effect.

Designated Channels. The Communications Act permits franchising authorities to require cable operators to set aside
certain channels for public, educational and governmental access programming. The 1984 Cable Act also requires
a cable sysitem with 36 or more channels (o designate a portion of its channel capacity for commercial leased access
by third parties to provide programming that may compete with services offered by the cable operator. The FCC has
adopted rules regulating: (1) the maximum reasonable rate a cable operator may charge for commercial use of the
designated channel capacity; (ii) the terms and conditions for commercial use of such channels; and (iii) the
procedures for the expedited resolution of disputes concerning rates or commercial use of the designated channel
capacity. The US Supreme Court recently held parts of the 1992 Cable Act regulating “indecent” programming on
local access channels 1o be unconstitutional, but upheld the statutory right of cable operators 1o prohibit or limit the
provision of “indecent” programming on commercial leased access channels.

Franchise Procedures, The 1984 Cable Act affirms the right of franchising authorities (state or local, depending on
the practice in individual stales) 10 award onc or more franchises within their jurisdictions and prohibits
non-grand(sthered cable systems from operating without a franchise in such jurisdictions. The 1992 Cable Act
encourages competition with existing cable systems by (i) allowing municipalities 10 operate their own cable sysems
without franchises; (ii) preventing franchising authorities from granting exclusive franchises or from unreasonably
refusing to award additional franchises covering an existing cable system’s service area; and (iii) prohibiting (with
limited exceptions) the common ownership of cable systems and co-located MMDS or SMATY systems. In January.,
1995, the FCC relaxed its restrictions on ownership of SMATY systems to permit a cable operalor to acquire
SMATYV sysiems in the operalor's eaisting franchise area so long as the programming services provided through the
SMATV system are offered according to the terms and conditions of the cable operator’s local franchise agreement.
The 1996 Telecom Act provides that the cable/SMATY and cable/MMDS cross-ownership rules do not apply in any
franchise area where the operator faces “effective competition™ as defined by federal law,

The Cable Acts also provide that in granting or renewing franchises, local authorities may establish requirements for
cable-related facilities and equipment, but not for video programming or information services other than in broad
categories. The Cable Acts limit the payment of franchise fees 10 5% of revenues derived from cable operations and
permit the cable operator to obtain modification of franchise requirements by the franchise authority or judicial action
if warranted by changed circumstances. The Company s franchises typically provide for periodic payment of fees
10 franchising authorities of 5% of “revenues” (as defined by each franchise agreement), which fees may be passed
on 1o subscribers. The 1996 Telecom Act generally prohibits franchising suthorities from (i) imposing requirements
in the cable franchising process that require, prohibit or restrict the provision of telecommunications services by an
operator, (il) imposing franchise fees on revenues derived by the operator from providing telecommunications
services over its cable system, or (iii) restricting an opersior’s use of any lype of subscriber equipment or
iranamission technology.

The 1984 Cable Act contains renewal procedures designed 1o protect incumbent franchisees against arbitrary denials
of renewal. The 1992 Cable Act made several changes 1o the renewal process which could make it easier for a
franchising authority 1o deny renewal, Moreover, even if the franchise Is renewed, the franchising authority may seek
10 impose new and more onerous requirements such as significant upgrades in facilitics and services or increased
franchise fees aa & condition of remewal. Similarly, if a franchising suthority's consent is required for the purchase
or sale of & cable system or franchise, such authority may atlempt 1o impose more burdensome of onerous franchise
requirements in connection with a request for such consent. Historically, franchises have been rencwed for cable
operators that have provided satisfactory services and have complied with the terms of their franchises, The Company
believes that it has generally met the terms of its franchises and has provided quality levels of service. As such, the
Company anticipates that its future franchise renewal prospects generally will be favorable.




Various courts have considered whether franchising authorities have the legal right 1o limit franchise awards 1o a
single cable operator and to impose certain substantive franchise requirements (e.g. access channcls, univenal service
and other technical requirements). These decisions have been somewhal inconsistent and, until the US Supreme Coun
rules definitively on the scope of cable operators’ First Amendment protections, the legality of the franchising process
generally and of various specific franchise requirements is likely to be in a state of Mux.

Ownership Limirations, Pursuant 1o the 1992 Cable Act, the FCC adopted rules prescribing national subscriber limits
and limiis on the pumber of channels that can be occupled on a cable systern by a video programmer in whicy the
operator has an attributable interest. The effectiveness of these FCC horizontal ownership Limits has been stayed
because a federal district count found the statutory limitation o be unconstitutional, An appeal of that decision has
been consolidated with appeals challenging the FCC's regulatory ownership restrictions and is pemling. The 1996
Telecom Act eliminates the statutory prohibition on the common ownership, operation or control of a cable system
and a lelevision broadcast station in the same service area and directs the FOC o review its broadcast-cable
ownership restrictions to determine if they are necessary in the public interest. Pursuant to the mandate of the |94
Telecom Act, the FCC eliminated lin regulalory restriction on cross-ownership of cable systems and national
broadcasting networks.

LEC Ownership of Cable Systems. The 1996 Telecom Act makes far-reaching changes in the regulation of LECs that
provide cable services. The new law climinates federal legal barriers to competition in the local telephone and cable
communications businesses, preempis legal barriers (o competition that previously existed in state and local laws and
regulations, and sets basic standards for relationships between telecommunications providers (sec "The 1996 Telecom
Act”). The 1996 Telecom Act generally limits acquisitions and prohibits certain joint ventures between LLECs and
cable operators in the same market. The FOC adopted regulations implementing the 1996 Telecom Act requirement
that LECs open their telephone networks to competition by providing competiton inlerconnection, access 1o
unbundled network elements and retail services at wholesale rates. Numerous parties have appealed these regulations.
The appeals have been consolidated and will be reviewed by the US Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit, which
has stayed the FCC’s pricing and nondiscrimination regulations (see “Wireless Telecommunications - Cellular
Telephone Communications - Legislation and Regulation”). The ultimate outcome of these rulemakings, and the
ultimate impact of the 1996 Telecom Act or any flinal regulations adopied pursuant o the new law on the Company
or its businesses cannot be determined at this time.

Pole Anachmeni. The Communications Act requires the FCC 1o regulate the rates, terms and conditions imposed by
public utilities for cable systems' use of utility pole and conduil space unless state authorities can demonstrate that
they adequately regulate pole atiachment rates, as is the case in certain states in which the Company operates. In the
absence of state regulation, the FCC administers pole attachmeni raies on a formula basis, In some cases, utility
companies have increased pole attachment fees for cable systems that have installed fiber optic cables and that are
using such cables for the distribution of non-video services. The FCC concluded that, in the absence of state
regulation, it has jurisdiction 1o determine whether utility companies have justified their demand for additional rental
fees and that the Communications Act does not permit disparate rates based on the type of service provided over
the equipment attached to the utility’s pole. The 1996 Telecom Act and the FCC's implementing regulations modify
the current pole attachment provisions of the Communications Act by immediately permitting certain providers of
telecommunications services to rely upon the protections of the current law and by requiring that utilities provide
cable systems and telecommunications carriers with pondiscriminatory access 1o any pole, conduit or night-of-way
controlled by the wtility. Additionally, within two years of enacimeni of the 1996 Telecom Act, the FCC s required
to adopt new regulations to govern the charges for pole attachments used by companies providing telecommenications
services, including cable operators. These new pole attachment rate regulations will become effective five years after
enactment of the 1996 Telecom Act, and any increase in attachment rates resulting from the FCC's new regulations
will be phased in equal annual increments over a period of five years beginning on the effective date of the new FCC
regulations.

her Statutory Provisions, The 1992 Cable Act, the 1996 Telecom Act and FCC regulations preclude any satellite
video programmer affiliasted with a cable company. or with a common camier providing video programming directly
to its subscribers, from favoring an affiliated company over competitors and requires such programmers o sell their
programming to other multichannel video distributors. These provisions limit the ability of program suppliers
affilisted with cable companies or with common carriers providing satellite delivered video programming directly
to their subscribers 1o offer exclusive programming arrangements to their affiliates. The Communications Act also
includes provisions, among others, concerning horizontal and vertical ownership of cable sysiems, customer service.
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subscriber privacy, marketing practices, equal employment opportunity, obacene of indecent programming, regulation
of technical standards and equipment compatibility.

Other FCC Regulations. The FOC has numerous rulemaking proceedings pending that will implement vanous
provisions of the 1996 Telecom Act; it also has adopted regulations implementing vanous provisions of the 1992
Cable Act and the 1996 Telecom Act that are the subject of petitions requesting reconsideration of vanous aspects
of its rulemaking proceedings. In addition 1o the FCC regulations noted above, there are other FCC regulations
covering such areas as equal employment opportunity. syndicated program exclusivity, network program non-
duplication, registration of cable systems, mainienance of various records and public inspection files, microwave
frequency usage, lockbox availability. origination cablecasting and sponsorship identification, antenna structure
notification, marking and lighting, carriage of local sports broadcast progie aming. application of rules governing
political broadeasts, limitations on sdvertising contained in non-broadeast children’s programming. consumer
protection and customer service, ownership of home wiring, indecent programming, programmer access o cable
systems, programming agreements, lechnical standards, consumer electronics equipment compatibility and DBS
implementation. The FCC has the authority to enforce its regulations through the imposition of substantial fines. the
issuance of cease and desist orders and/or the imposition of other administrative sanctions, such as the revocation
of FCC licenses needed to operate certain transmission facilities often used in connection with cable operations

Orher bills and administrative proposals periaining to cable communications have previously been introduced in
Congress or considered by other governmental bodics over the past several years. It is probable that further atiempts
will be made by Congress and other governmental bodies relating 1o the regulation of COMMUNICALIONS SCTVICES.

Copyright, Cable communications systems are subject o federal copyright licensing covening camage of television
and radio broadcast signals. In exchange for filing certain reports and contributing a percentage of their revenues 1o
a federal copyright royalty pool, cable operators can obtain blanket permission o retransmit copyrighted material
on broadcast signals. The nature and amount of future payments for broadcast signal carmage cannot be predicted
at this time, The possible simplification, modification or elimination of the compulsory copyright license is the
subject of continuing legislative review. The elimination or substantial modification of the cable compulsory license
could adversely affect the Company’s ability to obtain suitable programming and could substantially increase the cost
of programming that remained available for distribution to the Company's subscribers. The Company cannot predict
the outcome of this legislative activity,

Cable operators distribute programming and advertising that use music controlled by the two major music performing
rights organizations, ASCAP and BMI. In October 1989, the special rate court of the US District Coun for the
Southern District of New York imposed interim rates on the cable industry’s use of ASCAP-controlled music. The
same federal district coun recently established a special rate court for BMI. BMI and cable industry representatives
recently concluded negotiations for a standand licensing agreement covering the performan e of BMI music contained
in advertising and other information inseried by operators into cable programming and on certain local access and
origination channels carried on cable systems. The Company s settlement with BMI did not have a significant impact
on the Company's financial position, results of operations or liquidity. ASCAF and cable indusiry representatives
have met to discuss the development of a standard licensing agreement covering ASCAP-controlled music in local
origination and access channels and pay-per-view programming. Although the Company cantot predict the ulumate
outcome of these industry negotiations or the amount of any license fees it may be required 1o pay for past and future
use of ASCAP-controlled music, it does not believe such license fees will be significant 1o the Company’s financial

position, resulls of operations or liquidity.

State and Local Regulation, Because a cable communications system uses lowal sreets and nigits-ol-way, cable
systems are subject to state and local regulation, typically imposed through the franchising process. Cable
communications systems generally are operated pursuant to non-exclusive franchises, permits or licenses granted by
a municipality or other state or local government entity. Franchises generally are granted for fixed terms and in many
cases are terminable if the franchisee fails to comply with material provisions. The terms and conditions of franchises
vary materially from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Each franchise generally contains provisions governing cable service
rates, franchise fees, franchise term, sysiem coastruction and maintenance obligations. system channel capacily.
design and techaical performance, customer service standards, franchise rencwal, sale or transfer of the franchise.
termitory of the franchisee, indemnification of the franchising authority, use and occupancy of public streets and types
of cable services provided. A number of states subject cable communications sy stems to the jurisdictisn of centralized
state governmental agencies, some of which impose regulation of a character similar 1o that of a public wtility.
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Auempts in other states to regulate cable communications systems are conlinuing and can be expected 1o increase.
To date, those states in which the Company operates that have enacted such stale level regulation are Connecticul,
New Jersey and Delaware. State and local franchising jurisdiction is not unlimited, however, and must be exercised
consistently with federal law. The 1992 Cable Act immunizes franchising suthorities from monetary damage awards
arising from regulation of cable systems or decisions made on franchise grants, renewals, transfers and amendments.

The foregoing docs not purport to describe all present and proposed federal, state, and local regulations and legisla-
tion affecting the cable industry. Other existing federal regulations, copyright licensing, and, in many jurisdictions,
state and local franchise requirements, are currenily the subject of judicial procecdings, legislative hearings and
administrative proposals which could change, in varying degrees, the manner in which cable communications systems
operate. Neither the outcome of these proceedings nor their impact upon the cable communications industry or the
Company can be predicied at this time.

UK Regulation. The operation of a cable ielevisionfielephony system in the UK is regulated under both the
Broadcasting Act 1990 (the "Broadcasting Act”) (which replaced the Cable and Broadcasting Act 1984 (the "UK
Cable Act”)) and the Telecommunications Act 1984 (the “Telecommunications Act™). The operator of a
cableficlephony franchise covering over 1,000 homes must hold two principal licenses: (i) a license (a “cable
television license”) issued in the past under the UK Cable Act or since 1990 under the Broadcasting Act, which
allows the operator to provide cable television services in the franchise area, and (ii) a telecommunications license
issued under the Telecommunications Act, which allows the operator 1o operale and use the physical network
necessary 1o provide cable ielevision and ielecommunications services. The Independent Television Commission
("ITC”) is responsible for the licensing and regulation of cable television. The Depariment of Trade and Industry
("DTT") is responsible for issuing. and the Office of Telecommunications ("OFTEL") is responsible for regulating
the holders of, the telecommunications licenses. In addition, an operator is required to hold a license under the Wire-
less Telegraphy Acts of 1949-67 for the use of microwave distribution systems. Any system covering 1,000 homes
of less requires a telecommunications license but not a cable ielevision license, and a sysiem that covers only one
building or two adjacent buildings can operate pursuanl lo an existing general telecommunications license

The 1996 Broadcasting Act (the “1996 Act™) became law in July 1996. The 1996 Act amends the Hroadcasting Act
and makes provision for the broadcasting in digital form of ielevision and sound program services and broadcasting
in digital form on Lelevision. The 1996 Act also addresses rights to ielevise sporting or other events of national
interest. In addition, cable operators must comply with and are entitled 10 the benefits of the New Roads and Street
Works Act 1991, the principal benefit of which is o allow cable opersion 10 “piggy back”™ their construction on that
of local uiilities. However, the aggressive build schedules followed by the UK Operating Companics make waiting
for local wtilities to undertake construction impractical.

The cable ielevision licenses bheld by the relevant subsidiaries of the UK Operating Companies were issued under
the UK Cable Act for |5-year periods. The majority of the UK Operating Companics’ cable tclevision licenses have
been extended to run for 23 years and are scheduled 1o expire beginning in late 2012. The telecommunications
licenses held by these subsidiaries of the UK Operating Companies are for 23-year periods and are scheduled 1o
expire beginning in late 2012.

ONLIN

In December 1996, the Company began marketing high-speed cable modem services in areas served by two of ils
cable systems. High-speed cable modems are capable of providing access to online information, including the
Internet, at much faster speeds than that of conventional or Inlegrated Service Digital Network ("ISDN") modems.
In August 1996, the Company invested in the Al Home Corporation (“@Home™), which uffers a network that
distributes high-speed interactive conlent over the cable industry's hybrid-fiber coaxial distribution architecture. The
Company's @ Home package includes a high-speed cable modem; 24-hour-a-day unlimited access (o the Intcmet’
electronic mail and chat: an Internet guide designed by @Home, featuring & menu of local community conlent, in
addition 1o the vasi Internet contenl already available. @Home is owned by the Company, TCL Cox and Kleiner
Perkins Coufield & Byers. The Company expects io expand the marketing of such services in sclected cable systems
during 1997, The Company anticipates that competition in the online services area will be significant. Competitors
in this area include LECs, long distance carriers and others, many of whom have more substantial resources than
the Company.
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WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS

mm'-mmmpm,mduwummuuw
communications operations. The Company's other wireless telecommunications businesses inclodes its DBS
operations, including the Company's investment in Primestar (see "Wired Telecommunications - Cable
Communications - Competition™), and its interest in Sprint Spectrum, which has acquired 29 PCS licenses and s in
the process of developing operations 1o provide telecommunications services (see “Cieneral Developments of Business
- Sprint Spectrum”). A subsidiary of the Company also was the high bidder on twelve 10-MHz PCS licenses in an
suction conducted by the FOC completed in January 1997. In addition, the Company, through a majority owned and
consolidated subsidiary, provides directory assistance and other information services to usens of wircless telephones
in a number of domestic markets.

The Company is engaged in the development, management and operation of cellular telephone communications
:yminvmm“mm»lmwwhmhhmhmhdivm into segments
referred 1o as "cells” equipped with a receiver, signaling equipment and a low-power tranamitier, The use of low-
power transmitters and the placement of cells close 10 one another permits re-use of frequencies, thus substantially
increasing the volume of calls capable of being handled simultaneously over the number handled by prior generation
systems. Each cell has a coverage area genenally ranging from one to more than 300 square miles. A cellular
telephone sysiem includes one or more computerized central switching facilities known as mobile switching centers
("MISC") which control the sutomatic transfer of calls, coordinate calls to and from cellular telephones and connect
:ﬂhmhlﬂtuhmmm“ﬁmMHSCﬂmrmwd:iﬂmmmnymuuxnundmhcﬁbu
statistics.

Each cell's facilities monitor the strength of the signal returned from the subscriber’s ceilular telephone. When the
signal strength declines 1o a predetermined level and the tranamission strength is greater st another cell in or
interconnected with the system, the MSC automatically and instantaneously passes the mobile user's call in progress
to the other cell without disconnecting the call (“hand of ™). Interconnection agreements between cellular telephone
sysiem operators and various LECs and interexchange carriers establish the manner in which the cellular telephone
system intcgrates with other telecommunications systems.

As required by the FCC, all cellular telephones are designed for compatibility with cellular systems in all markets
within the US 5o that a cellular telephone may be used wherever cellular service is available. Each cellular telephone
system in the US uses one of two groups of channels, termed “Block A” and "Block B,” which the FCC has allotted
for cellular service. Minor adjustments 1o cellular telephones may be required to enable the subscriber to change from
a cellular system on one frequency block to a cellular system on the other frequency block.

While most MSCs process information digitally, most radio transmission of cellular telephone calls is done on an
analog basis. Digital transmission of cellular telephone calls offers advantages. including larger sysicm capacity and
the potential for lower incremental costs for additional subscribers. The FCC allows camiers 1o provide digital service
and requires cellular carriers to provide analog service. The Company's implementation of digital radio technoloy:
is eapecied to commence in 1997. It is anticipated that a substantial portion of increased capacity for subsequent
traffic and subscriber growth will be accommodated using the lower cost digital technology.

The Company provides services 1o its cellular telephone subscribers similar to those provided by conventional
landline telephone systems, including custom calling festures such as call forwarding, call walling, conference calling,
directory assistance and voice mail. The Company is responsible for the quality, pricing and packaging of cellular
telephone service for each of the systems it owns o controls.

Reciprocal agreements among cellular telephone system operators allow their respective subscribers (“roamens”) o
place and receive calls in most service areas throughout the country. Roamers are charged rates which are generally
al a premium to the regular service rate. In recent years, cellular carriers have experienced increased fraud associsted
with roamer service, including Electronic Serial Number ("ESN”) cloning. The Company and other carriers have
implemented a number of features which have decreased the incidents of fraudulent use of their systems. Among
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these are Personal Identification Numbers ("PINs”), which are required 1o be used by a majority of the Company’s
cusiomers, and the Company's Security Zone feature which restricts customer usage outside of the Company®s
scrvice Arcas.

In addition, the Company has implemented authentication and radiofrequency ("RFT) fingerprinting technologies
which associate ESN/mobile number combinations with particular cellular telephone units. The use of digital radio
technology also purportedly will make it more difficult to commit cellular fraud. However, fraudulent use of the

Company's systems remains a significant concern.
Cmy'.riym'
The table below sets forth summary information regarding the 1otal population (“Pops”) in the markets served by the

Company's systems by Metropolitan Statistical Area ("MSA") and Rural Service Area ("RSA") as of December 11,
1996 (in thousands):

Market Ownership Pops (1) Net Pops

MSAs:
Atlantic City, NJ 9% 13 Lk ]
Aurora-Elgin, IL 2% 48 ¥
Joliet, IL 4% L] 30
Long Branch, NJ 100% 591 91
New Brunswick, NJ 1 00%: 700 703
Philadelphia, PA . 100 4894 4,894
Trenton, NJ 5% 131 281
Vincland, NJ 95% 139 132
Wilmington, DE 1 007% 61K (11}
_T,ﬂ? 1.611

RSAs:
Ocean County, NJ 100'% 471 471
Kent and Sussex, DE 0% 257 129
TIR (L]
5421 8,211

(1) Source: 1997 Rand McNally Commercial Atlas & Marketing Guide

As of December 31, 1996, the Company's consolidated cellular telephone business had 762,000 subscribers in the
markets listed above.

Competition

The FCC generally grants two licenses 1o operate cellular ielephone sysiems in each markel. One of the two licenses
was initially awarded lo a company or group affiliated with the local landline telephone carriers in the market (the
"Wireline™ license), and the other license was initially awarded 10 a company, individual, or group not affilisted with
any landline telephone carrier (the "Non-Wireline™ license). The Company’s systems are all Non-Wireline systems
and compete directly with the Wireline licensee in each market in atiracting and ictaining cellular telephone
customers and dealers. The Wireline licensee in the Company's principal markets is Cellco Partnership, a joint
venture between Bell Atantic Mobile Systems, Inc. and NYNEX Mobile Communications Co. The Company's
principal Wireline competitor has a larger coverage area and may have access lo more substantial financial resources
than the Company.

In recent years, new mobile ieleccommunications service providers have entered the market and created additional
competition in the wireless lelecommunications business. Many of such providers have access io substaniial capital
resources and operste, or through affilistes operate, cellular telephone sysiems, bringing significant wireless
experience to the new marketplace. Accordingly, while there are only two cellular providers licensed in a given area,
new competitors continue to emerge utilizing different frequencies and new lechnologies. Competition befween
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wireless operators in each market is principally on the basis of services and enhancements offered, technical quality
of the system, quality and responsiveness of customer service, price and coverage arca

The most prominent new providers are the PCS operalors. PCS is used to describe a variety of digital, wireless
communications systems currently primarily suited for usc in densely populated areas. Al the power levels that the
FOC’s rules now provide, each cell of a PCS sysiem would have more limited coverage than a cell in a cellular
telephone system. The FCC has allocated spectrum and adopted rules for both narrow and broadband PCS services.
In 1994, the FCC completed a spectrum auction for nationwide narrowband PCS licenses, widertook the fint regional
narrowband PCS auction, and began the first suction of broadband PCS spectrum (see “General Developments of
Business - Sprint Spectrum”). All of the 30-MHz Major Trading Area ("MTA") licenses for PCS were isaued by June
1995 and PCS licensees are required to construct their networks 1o be capable of covering one third of their service
arca population within five years of the date of licensing. Winners in the Company's Philadelphia markets were
AT&T Wircless Services, Inc. and PhillieCo, L.P., an affiliate of Sprint Spectrum. Broadband PCS service likely
will become a direct competitor 1o cellular service. In September 1996, the FCC granted, through a bidding process,
an additional 30-MHz Basic Trading Arca ("BTA") PCS license, designated for license 10 small businesses, rural
telephone companies and other entreprencurs. Additional auctions for 10-MHz blocks of PCS spectrum (including
licenses designated for small businesses) were concluded in January 1997, A whally owned subsidiary of the
Company was the high bidder on twelve 10-MHz licenses covering the Philadelphia MTA and the Allentown BTA,
with a bid of $17.5 millicn for these hcenses.

Cellular telephone systems, including the Company’s systems, also face actual or potential competition from other
current and developing technologies. Specialized Mobile Radio (“SMR”) systems, such as those used by taxicabs,
as well as other forms of mobile communications service, may provide competition in certain markets. SMR systems
are permitied by FCC rules to be interconnected to the public switched telephone network and are significantly less
expensive 10 build and operate than cellular telephone systems. SMR systems are. however. licensed 1o operate on
substantially fewer channels per system than cellular telephone systems and currently lack cellular’s ability to expand
capacity through frequency re-use by using many low-power transmiticrs and to hand-off calls. Nextel Commu-
nications, Inc., in which the Company holds an equity interest, has begun 10 implement its proposal 1o use ils
available SMR spectrum in various metropolitan areas more efficiently to increase capacity and to provide a broad
range of mobile radio communications services. This proposal, known as enhanced SMR service, could provide
additional competition to existing cellular carmiers, including the Company. In 1994, the FCC decided to license SMR
systems in the 800-MHz bands for wide-area use, thus increasing potential competition with cellular. The FCC has
also decided 1o license SMR spectrum in contiguous blocks via the competitive bidding process

One-way paging or beeper services that feature volce message, data services and tones are also available in the
Company's markets, These services may provide adequate capacity and sulficient mobile capabilities for some
potential cellular subscribers, thus providing additional competition 10 the Company’s sysiems

The FCC requires cellular licensees to provide service 1o resellers of cellular service which purchase cellular service
from licensees, usually in the form of blocks of numbers, then resell the service (o the public. Thus, a reseller may
be both a customer and a competitor of a licensed cellular operator. The FOC currently is secking comment on
whether resellers should be permitied 1o install separate switching facilities in cellular systems, although it has
tentatively concluded not to require such interconnections. The FCC is also comidering whether resellers should
receive direct assignments of telephone numbers from LECs

It is likely that the FCC will offer additional specirum for wireless mobile licenses in the future. Spectrum in the
"Wircless Communications Service” is to be auctioned in Apnl 1997. Applicanis also have received and others are
secking FOC authorization to construct and operate global satellite networks 1o provide domestic and internatinal
mobile communications services from goostationary and low earth orbit satellites In addition, the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1993 (* 1993 Budget Act”) provided, among other things, (o the release of 200-MHz of Federal
government spectrum for commercial use over a fifteen year period. These developmenis and further technological
advances may make available other alicrnatives to cellular service thereby creating addinonal sources of competition.




Legislation and Regulation

FCC Regulation. The FCC regulates the licensing, construction, operation and acquisition of cellular telephone
systems pursuant to the Communications Act. For licensing purposes, the FCC divided the US into separate markets:
A6 MSAs and 428 RSAs. In cach market, the allocated cellular frequencies are divided into 1wo blocks: Block A,
initially awarded for utilization by Non-Wircline entities such as the Company, and Block B, initially awarded for
utilization by affilistes of local exchange Wireline telephone companies. There is no technical or operational
difference between Wireline and Noa-Wircline systems other than different frequencies.

Under the Communications Act, no party may transfer control of or assign a cellular license without first obtaining
FCC consent. FCC rules (i) prohibit an entity controlling one system in a market from holding any interest in the
competing cellular system in the market and (ii) prohibit an entity from holding non-controlling interesis in more
than one system in any market, if the common ownership inlerests present anli-competitive concerns under FCC
policies. Cellular radio licenses generally eapire on October | of the tenth year following grant of the license in the
particular market and are renewable for periods of len years upon application to the FCC. Licenses may be revoked
for cause and license renewal applications denied if the FCC determines that a renewal would not serve the public
interest,. FCC rules provide that competing renewal applications for cellular licenses will be considered in
comparative hearings, and establish the qualifications for competing applications and the standards 1o be applied in
such hearings. Under current policies, the FOC will grant incumbent cellular licensees a “renewal expectancy™ if the
licensee has provided substantial service 1o the public, substantially complied with applicable PCC rules and policies
and the Communications Act and is otherwise gualified 1o hold an FCC license. The FOC has granted renewal of
the Company's licenses for the Philadelphia, PA, Wilmington, DE and New Brunswick and Long Branch, NJ MSAs.
The Company's license for the Trenton, NJ MSA expires in October 1997. The balance of the Company s licenses
expire from 1998 through 2006.

The FCC regulates the ability of cellular operators 1o bundle the provision of service with hardware, the resale of
cellular service by thind parties and the coordination of frequency usage with other cellular licensees. The FCC also
regulates the height and power of base station transmilting facilitics and signal emissions in the cellular system.
Cellular systems also are subject 10 Federal Avistion Administration and FCC regulations concerning the siting,
construction, marking and lighting of cellular transmitter towers and anilennae. In addition, the FCC also regulates
the employment practices of cellular operators.

The Communications Act currently restricts foreign ownership or control over commercial mobile radio licenses,
which include cellular radio service licenses. The FCC recently decided to consider the opportunities that other
nations provide to US companies in their communications industries as a factor in deciding whether to permit higher
levels of indirect foreign ownership in companies controlling common carrier and cenain other radio licenses. The
1996 Telecom Act relaxes these restrictions by eliminating the stalutory provisions restricting foreign officers and
directors in licensees and their parent corporations. In February 1997, the US government entered into a World Trade
Organization agreement with respect to telecommunications. Upon its effectiveness, the agreement will reguire the
LIS, among other things, to afford "national” treatment to forei gn investors secking indirect ownership of commercial
mobile radio service ("CMRS") licenses in the US. These changes may permit additional foreign investment and
participation in the US wireless marketplace and therefore may enhance competition,

Allegations of harmful effects from the use of hand-held cellular phones have caused the cellular industry to fund
additional research to review and update previous siudies concerning the safety of the emissions of electromagnetic
energy from cellular phones. In August 1996, however, the FCC adoptod new standards for evaluating the extent to
which wireless facilities will expose both employees and the public to RF radiation. At that time, the FOC determined
that state and local regulation of RF radiation from facilities used 1o provide “personal wireless services,” including
cellular and PCS, is preempied to the extent the Tacilities comply with the FCC's RF exposure limits.

The FCC also requires LECs in each market to offer reasonable terms and facilities for the interconnection of both
cellular telephone systems in that marke! 1o the LECys' landline network. Cellular telephone companies affiliated with
the LEC are required to disclose how their systems will interconnect with the landline network. The licensee nast
affiliated with the LEC has the right o interconnect with the landline network in a manner no léss favorable than
that of the licensee affiliated with the LEC. In addition, the licensee not affiliated with the LEC may, at its discretion,
request reasonable inlerconnection arrangements that are different than those provided 1o the affiliated licensee in
that markel, and the LEC must negotiste such requests in good faith. The FOC reiteraled il position on
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interconnection issues in a declaratory ruling which clarified that LECs are expected to provide, vithin a reasonable
time, the agreed-upon form of interconnection. In June 1996, the FCC adopted a national regulatory framework for
implementing the local competition provisions of the 1996 Telecom Act, including adoption of rules delineating
interconnection obligations of incumbent LECs (“ILECs"), unbundling requirements for ILEC network elements,
requirements for access to local rights-of-way, dialing parity and telephone numbering, and requirements for resale
of and non-discriminatory access to ILEC services. In many instances, the FCC left the task of implementing the
FOC's regulatory standards 1o the individual states. Numerous LECs have appealed the FCC's decisions and a
judicial determination of the legality of the FCC's interconnection rules is pending at the US Coun of Appeals for
the Eighth Circuil, which has stayed certain portions of the FCC’s new regulations concerning ILEC pricing and

Notwithstanding the federal court stay of cerain FCC iuierconnection regulations. a subsidiary of the Company has
renegotiated its interconnection contracts with Bell Atlantic pursuant 10 the 1996 Telecom Act. The agreements,
covering Pennsylvania, New Jerscy, Delaware and Maryland, provide for the reciprocal transport and termination
u[mmﬁ:hﬂdlmMhCmyﬂMhﬂrrﬁmdm.Thuqmmhuchun
submitted to each of the four stale public utility commissions for their approval, and have been approved in three
of such states. Because the terms of these agreements, including pricing, are similar to agreements already approved
by those states, the Company expects to reccive regulatory approval by the remaining public utility commission
without substantial modification.

To date, the FOC has undertaken significant efforts to reconsider the regulation of CMRS providers in the wake of
competitive developments in the telecommunications marketplace. For instance. in June 1996, the FCC climinated
the cellular/PCS cross-ownership rule in favor of a single, generally applicable, CMRS spectrum cap rule. The
change permits cellular providers to hold attributable interests in 20-MHz of PCS spectrum (c.g. two 10-MHz
licenses) in arcas where there is significant service area overlap. The FCC is also considering whether all CMRS
providers should provide interconnection to all other CMRS providers, The FCC recently initiated a rulemaking 1o
establish new federal universal service mechanisms. The proceeding will determine the extent 1o which cellular
operators and other wireless and wircline telecommunications service providers will be required o contribute (o state
and federal universal service funds, as well as their ability o draw universal service suppor. The FCC also initiated
a rulemaking 1o reform its system of interstate access charges to make it compatible with the 1996 Telecom Act and
with federal and state actions 10 open local networks 1o competition. The new rules will establish a transtion to an
access charge structure that more closely reflects the economic costs of accessing landline networks for the
termination of long distance calls. Further, the FCC is considering new rules 10 govern how customer proprictary
network information ("CPNI") may be used by telecommunications camers, including the BHOUs, in marketing a
broad range of telecommunications services to their customers, and the customens of affilialed companies. Resolution
of the isswes raised in this proceeding may affect the costs of providing cellular service and the way in which the
Company conducts its business, However, the Company does not anticipate that resolution of these issues will result
in a significant adverse impact on its financial position, results of operations or liguidity

Finally, the 1996 Telecom Act relieves BOC-affiliated cellular providers of their equal access obligations. As such,
BOC-affiliated carriers are afforded greater flexibility in contracting with interexchange carriers for the provision
of long distance services. Prior 1o the legislative change, cellular systems affilisted with the BOCs were required 0
offer equal access 1o intereachange carriers and those affiliated with ATAT voluntanily provided equal access
Neveriheless, the FCC retains suthority to require all CMRS operaton to provide unblocked access through the use
of other mechanisms if customers are being denied access 1o the telephone toll service providen of their choice, and
if such denial is contrary to the public interest.

State Regulation and Local Approvals. Except for the State of llinois. the states in which the Company prescotly
operates currently do not regulate cellular telephone service. In the 1993 Budget Act, Congress gave the FCC the
authority to preempt states from regulating rates or entry into CMRS, including cellular. In the CMRS order,
described above, the FOC preempted the states and established a procedure for stales to petition the FCC for
authority 1o regulate rates and entry into CMRS. The FCC, to date, has denied all state petitions o regulate the rates

charged by CMRS providers.
The scope of the allowable level of state regulation of CMRS, however, remains unclear. The 1993 Budget Act docs

not identify the "other terms and conditions” of CMRS service that can be regulated by the states. Moreover, the
extent to which states may regulate intrastate LEC-CMRS interconnection remains unresolved. The resolution of this




issue will impact the extent 1o which cellular providers will be subject 1o state regulation <. CMRS inlerconnection
to the LECs. The siting of cells also remains subject 1o state and local jurisdiction although petitions seeking
clarification of states’ siting authority are currently pending at the FCC.

DBS OPERATIONS

Primestar, in which the Company holds an equity interest (see “Description of the Company's Businesses - Cable
Communications - Competition™), provides programming and marketing support 10 its partners. The Company is also
a franchisee of the Primestar DBS service, which is provided 1o customers via medium-power communications
satellite 1o leased HSDs of approximately three feet in diameter. Through its DBS operations. the Company provided
service 10 approximately 121,000 Primestar subscribers as of December 31, 1996,

CONTENT

Conitent consists primarily of the Company's 57% ownership interest in QVC, Inc. and its subsidianies ("QVC™),
which is consolidated with and managed by the Company. In addition, Comcast Content and Communication
Corporation ("C3") is engaged in the development of content in four distinct arcas: development and production of
programming for the Company and other media outlets; enhancement of existing and creation of new distnbution
channels; expansion of transactional services; and acquisitions of programming and media related companies. In the
programming sector, C3 assists the Company with its programming investments which include E! Entertainment (vee
“General Developments of Business - E! Entertainment”), Viewer's Choice, The Goll Channel, Speedvision, Cutdoor
Life, Music Choice, Lightspan and the Sunshine Network.

ELECTRONIC RETAILING

General

The Company provides electronic retailing services through QVC, a domestic and international general merchandise
retailer. Through its merchandise-focused television programs, QVC sells a wide variety of products directly o
consumers. The products are described and demonstrated by program hosts and onders are placed directly with QVC
by viewers who call a toll-free telephone number. QVC television programming is produced at its Tacilities in
Pennsylvania and is distributed nationally via satellite to affilialed Jocal cable system operators and other
muliichannel video programming providers ("Program Carriers”) who have entered into camage agreements (the
"Affiliation Agreements”) with QVC and who retransmit QVC programming 1o their subscribers.

QVC Services

Products, QVC sells a variety of consumer products and accessories including jewelry, apparel and accessorics,
housewares, collectibles, electronics, toys and cosmetics. QVC obtains products from domestic and foreign
manufacturers and wholesalers and is often able 10 make purchases on favorable terms based on the volume of the
iransactions. QVC intends to continue introducing new products and product lines. QVC is it dependent upon any
one particular supplier for any significant portion of its inventory.

Process. Viewers place orders 1o purchase merchandise by calling a toll-free telephone number. QVC uses automatic
call distributing equipment to distribute calls to its operators. The majority of all payments for purchases are made
with a major credil card or QVC's private label credit card. The accounts receivable from QVC's private labe! credu
card program are purchased (with recourse) and serviced by an unrelated third party. QVC's policy i o ship
merchandise promptly from its distribution centers, typically within 24 hours after receipt of an order. QVC offers
a return policy which permits customers to return within 30 days any merchandise purchased from QVC for a full
refund of the purchase price and original shipping charges.

Primary Channel. QVC's main channel (the "Primary Channel”), is transmitted live 24 hours a day, 7 days a week,
1o approximately 54 million cable television homes and on a part-time basis to approximately two milbon additional
cable television homes. In addition, the Primary Channel can be received by approximately five million HSD users.
The QVC program schedule consists of one-hour and multi-hour program segments. Each program segment has a
theme devoted 1o a particular category of product or lifestyle. From time 1o time, QVC features special progrem




segments devoted 10 merchandise associated with a particular celebrity, event, geographical region or seasonal
interest. .

©2. QVC's secondary channel ("Q2") broadeasts 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, o approximately nine million cable
television hames and on a pari-time basis to approximately two million additional cable television homes. In addition,
the Q2 service can be received by approximately four million HSD users. In the first half of 1996, the format of Q2
programming was changed 1o become a faster-paced, news-like formal, combining live hosts and edited tape of top
products and stories from the Primary Channel.

QVC UK. In October 1993, QVC launched an clectronic retailing program serice in the UK ("QVC--The Shopping
Channel”) through a joint venture agreement with British Sky Broadcasting Limitzd. This service currently reaches
over five million cable television and HSD-served homes in the UK.

QVC Germany. In December 1996, QVC launched an electronic retailing programming service in Germany. The
service currently reaches over four million cable television and HSD-served homes in Germany.

iQVC. In December 1995, QVC launched its interactive shopping service (IOVCT) on The Microsoft Network
("MSN"), Microsoft Corporation’s on-line service. In 1996, iQVC was also made available through the Intemet. The
IQVC service offers a diverse array of merchandise, available on-line, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week

QVC Transmission

The QVC signal is transmitted via two exclusive, protecied, non-preemptible transponders on communications
satellites. Each communications satellite has a number of separate transponders. 'Protected” stalus means that, in the
event of transponder failure, QVC's signal will be transferred to a spare transponder or, if none is available, to a
preemptible transponder Jocated on the same satellite or, in certain cases, (o a transponder on another satellite owned
by the same lessor if one is available at the time of the failure. "Non-preemptible’ status means that the transponder
cannol be preempted in favor of a user of a "projecied’ transponder that has failed QVC has never had an
interruption in programming due (o transponder failure and belicves thal because it has the exclusive use of two
protected, non-preemptible transponders, such interruption is unlikely to occur. There can be no assurance. however,
that there will not be an interruption or termination of satellite transmission due to transponder failure. Such
interruption or termination could have a material adverse effect on QVC

Program Casriers

QVC has entered into Affiliation Agreements with Program Carriers to carry its programming. There are generally
no additional charges to the subscribers for distribution of QVC. In return for carrying QVC, each Program Carmier
receives an allocated portion, based upon market share, of five percent of the net sales of merchandise sold to
customers located in the Program Camier's service area. The terms of most Affiliation Agreements are automatically
renewable for one-year terms unless terminated by cither party on at least 90 days notice priof 1o the end of the term
Affiliation Agreements covering most of QVC's cable television homes can be terminated in the sinth year of their
respective terms by the Program Carvier unless the Program Carrier carns a specified minimum level ol sales
commissions. QVC's sales are currently at levels that meet such minimum requirements. The Affiliation Agreements
provide for the Program Carrier to broadcast commercials regarding QVC on other channels and 1o distribute QVC's
advertising material to subscribers. As of December 31, 1996, approsimately 0% of the total homes reached by
QVC were atuibutable to QVC's Affiliation Agreements with the Company and TCI, the indirect owner of the
minority interest in QVC, and their respective subsidiaries.

Renewal of these Affilistion Agreements on [avorable terms is dependent upon QVC's ability 1o negotiate
successfully with Program Camiers. QVC competes for cable channels with competitive programming, as well as
alternative programming supplied by a variety of other well-established sources, including news, public affairs,
entertainment and sports programmers, QVC's business is highly dependent on its affiliation with Program Clarmiens
for the transmission of QVC programming. The loss of a significant number uf vable television homes because of
termination or non-renewal of Affiliation Agreements wiwld have a matenial mdvene elfect on QVC. To induce
Program Carriers to enter inlo or extend Affiliation Agreements of to increase the number of cable elevision homes
under existing AfMliation Agreements, QVC has developed other incentive programs, including various forms of
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marketing. launch and equipment purchase support. QVC will continue to recruil additional Program Carmiers and
seck 10 enlarge its audience.

The FCC does not directly regulate the content or transmission of programming services like those offered by QVC.
The FCC does, however, exercise regulatory authority over the satellites and uplink facilities which transmit
programming services such as those provided by QVC. The FCC has granied, subject to periodic reviews, permane ot
licenses to QVC for its uplink facilities (and for backup equipment of cenain of these facilities) at sufficient power
levels for transmission of QVC. Regarding the satellites from which QVC obtains transponder capacity, the FCC
presently exercises licensing authority but does not regulate the rales, lerms or conditions of service provided by
these facilities. Pursuant to its residual statutory authority, the FCC could, however, alter the regulatory obligations
applicable to satellite service providers,

- -

QVC operates in a highly compelitive environment. As a gencral merchandise retailer, QVC competrs lir consumer
expenditures and interest with the entire retail industry, including depariment, discount, warchouse and specialty
stores, mail order and other direct sellers, shopping center and mall tenants and conventional free-standing stores,
many of which are connected in chain or franchise systems. On television, it is also in competition with other
saicllite-transmitied programs for channel space and viewer loyalty. QVC belicves that, at the present tlime, most
Program Carriers are not willing 1o devole more than two channels 1o lelevised shopping and may allocale only one
until digital compression is utilized on a large-scale basis several years in the future. Many systems have limited
channel capacity and may be precluded from adding any new programs at the present time. The development and
utilization of digital compression is expecied 1o provide Program Carriers with greater channel capacily thereby
increasing the opportunity for QVC, in addition 10 other home shopping programs, to be distributed on additional
channels.

Seasonality
QVC’s business is scasonal in nature, with its major selling scason during the last quarier of the calendar year. Net

revenue for the fourth guarter of the year ended December 31, 199 accounted Tor W% of QVC's annual net sales
from electronic retailing.

EMPLOYEES
As of December 31, 1996, the Company had 16,400 employees, excluding employees in managed operations. Of
these employees, 7,700 were associated with domestic cable communications, 5,500 were associated with electronic

retailing and 1,500 were associated with cellular telephone communications. The Company believes that its
relationships with its employees are good.

ITEM 2 PROPERTIES
Domiestic Cable Communications

The principal physical assets of a cable communications system consisl of a central receiving apparatus, distribution
cables, converters, regional customer service call centers and local business offices. The Company owns of leases
the receiving and distribution equipment of cach system and owns or leases parcels of real property for the receiving
sites, regional customer service call centers and local business offices. The physical components of cable
communications systems require maintenance and periodic upgrading and rebuilding 10 keep pace with technological
advances. A significant number of the Company's systems will be upgraded or rebuill over the next several yean

Cellular Communications

The principal physical assets of a cellular ielephone communications system include cell sites and central switching
equipment. The Company primarily leases its sites used for iis transmission facilities retail stores and its
administrative offices, The physical components of a cellular telephone communications sysiem require maintenance



and upgrading 10 keep pace with technological advances. It is anticipated that digital capability will be added 1o the
Company's system beginning in 1997.

Electronic Retalling

The principal physical assets of the Company’s electronic retailing operations consist of television studios,
telecommunications centers, Jocal business offices and various product warehouses and distribution centers. The
Company, through QVC, owns the majority of these assets. The physical components of electronic retailing
operations require maintenance and periodic upgrading and rebuilding 1o keep pace with =chnological advances.
QVC's warchousing and distribution facilities will be upgraded or rebuilt over the next several yean

The Company's management believes that substantially all of s physical assets are in good operating condition

ITEM3  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is not party to litigation which, in the opinion of the Company’s management, will have & material
adverse effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

At a Special Meeting of Shareholders on November 7, 1996, the shareholders approved the following proposal

To issue Comcast Class A Special Common Stock in the Merger of The EW. Scripps Company with and into
the Company.

Class of Stock Fox Against Abstain
Class A 21,215,706 90,737 48.151
Class B 131,793,750

[TEM 4A EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The current term of office of each of the officers expires at the firt meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Company following the next Annual Mecting of Sharcholders, presently scheduled to be held in June 1997, or as
soon thereafier as each of their successors is duly elected and qualified.

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the principal executive officers of the Company.
including their ages, positions and tenure as of February 1, 1997

Officer
Name Age Since Position with the Company

Ralph J. Roberts 76 19645 Chairman of the Board of Directors;
Director

Julian A. Brodsky 63 1964 Vice Chairman of the Board of

Brian L. Roberts 37 1986 President, Director

Lawrence 5. Smith 49 1988 Executive Vice Presideni

John R. Alchin 48 1990 Senior Vice President; Treasurer

Stanley L. Wang 56 1981 Senior Vice President; General
Counsel; Secretary




Ralph J. Roberts has served as a Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company for more than
five years. Mr, Roberts has been the President and a Director of Sural Corporation, a privately-held investment
company (“Sural”), the Company’s largest shareholder, for more than five years. Mr. Roberts devotes a major portion
of his time o the business and affairs of the Company. As of December 31, 1996, the shares of the Company owned

by Sural constitute 80.6% of the voting power of the two classes of the Company’s voting common stock combined.
Mr. Roberts currently has voting control of Sural. Mr. Roberts is also a Director of Comcast UK Cable Partners

Limited and Storer Communications, Inc.

Julian A. Brodsky has served as a Director and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors for more than five years
Mr. Brodsky presently serves as the Treasurer and a Director of Sural. Mr. Brodsky devotes a major portion of his
time 10 the business and affairs of the Company. Mr. Brodsky is also a Director of Comcast UK Cable Partnen
Limited, Storer Communications, Inc. and RBB Fund, Inc.

Brian L. Roberts has served a3 President of the Company and as a Director for more than five yearn. Mr. Roberis
presently serves as Vice President and & Director of Sural. Mr. Roberts devotes a major portion of his time 1o the
business and affairs of the Company. Mr. Roberts is also a Director of Teleport Communications Group, Inc.,
Comcast UK Cable Partners Limited and Storer Communications, Inc. He is a son of Ralph J. Roberts.

Lawrence 5. Smith was named Executive Vice President of the Company in December 1995. Prior to that time, Mr.
Smith served as Senlor Vice President of the Company for more than five years. Mr. Smith is the Principal
Accounting Officer of the Company. Mr. Smith is a Director of Teleport Communications Group, Inc. and Comcast
UK Cable Partners Limited and is s Partnership Board Representative of Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P

John R. Alchin has served as Treasurer and Senior Vice President of the Company for more than live years
Mr. Alchin is the Principal Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. Alchin is a Director of Comcast UK Cable
Partners Limited.

Stanley L. Wang has served as Senior Vice President. Secretary and General Counsel of the Company for more than
five years. Mr. Wang is a Director of Storer Communications, Inc.
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The Class A Special Common Stock and Class A Commeon Stock of the Company are traded in the over-the-counter
market and are included on Nasdaq under the symbols CMCSK and CMCSA, respectively. There is no established
public trading market for the Class B Common Stock of the Company. The Class B Common Stock is convertible,
on a share for share basis, into Class A Special or Class A Common Stock. The following table sets forth, for the
indicated periods, the closing price range of the Class A Special and Class A Common Stock as furnished by Nasdagq

Class A

P - i Class A

High Low High _Low
1996
First Quarter .. .......... $21 116 $17 112 $20 5% $17 114
Second Quaner ... ....... 18 34 16 14 I8 B 16§16
Third Quarter . . ........: I8 AR 13 7TM IH 154 13 7R
Fourth Quarter .......... 17 7% 14 S 17 34 14 14
1995
First Quarter .. .......... 316 Si6 $14 Wb 16 B $14 AW
Second Quarter .. ........ 19 W6 14 IR TR 13 4
Third Quanter ........... 22 18 5% 22 I 18 916
Fourth Quarter .... ..... 20 5m I 5M 20 Wi I6 112

The Company began paying quarterly cash dividends on its Class A Common Stock in 1977, Since 1978, the
Cmplnyhupddoqulldivﬂundtuﬂ“ﬂbﬂhﬂmﬂmhﬂwnmﬂlmkwhﬂntH(‘ﬂmmnnSmci..
Since December 1986, when the Class A Special Common Stock was issued, the Company has paid equal dividends
on shares of the Class A Special, Class A and Class B Common Stock. The Company declared dividends of $.091)
for each of the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995 on shares of Class A Special, Class A and Class B
Common Stock. The declaration and payment of future dividends and their amount depend upon the results of
operations, financial condition and capital needs of the Company, contractual restrictions of the Company and its
subsidiaries and other factors.

The holders of the Class A Special Common Stock are not entitled 1o vote in the election of directors or otherwise,
except where class voting is required by applicable law, in which case, cach holder of Class A Special Common
Stock shall be entitled to one vote per share. Each holder of Class A Common Stock has one vote per share and cach
holder of Class B Common Stock has 15 votes per share. Under applicable law, holders of Class A Special Common
Stock have voting rights in the event of certain amendments to the Anticles of Incorporation and centain mergers and
other fundamental corporate changes. In all other instances, including the election of directors, the Class A Common
Stock and the Class B Common Siock vote as one class. Neither the holders of Class A Common Stock nor the
holders of Class B Common Stock have cumulative voting rights. g

As of February 1, 1997, there were 2,672 record holders of the Company's Class A Special Common Stock and

1,793 record holders of the Company's Class A Common Stock. Sural Corporation is the sole record holder of the
Company's Class B Common Stock.
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ITEM6  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Year Ended December 31,

1996 (1) 1995 (1) 1994 (1) 1993 (k) 1992 (6)
{Dollars in millions, except per share data)
Statement of Operations Data:

REVENUES ... .....c0coeeens $4,008.4 $13629 $1.375.3 $1.338.2 $900.3
Operating income . ., .......... 5089 129K 2198 29 165.1
Equity in net losses of affilistes . . . 1448 Kbb 409 289 143
Loss before extraordinary items

and cumulative cffect of

accounting changes . . .. ... (52.5) (17 8) (75.3) (98.9) (2179)
Extraordinary items . .. ........ {1.0) (6.1) (LT (17.6) (52.3)
Cumulative effect of nccounting

changes (2) ............ (742.7)
Netloss .....oovvonnnnanres (53.5) (419) i%7.0) (859.2) (270.2)
Loss per share before extraordinary

items and cumulative effect of

sccounting changes (3) .. ...... (.21) (.16} (.32) i 46) (1.08)
Extraordinary items per share (3) . . (02) (. 05) {.08) (.26)
Cumulative effect of accounting

changes per share (3) . .... ... 1347)
Net loss per share {(3) . ... ...... (.21) i(.18) (A7) i4.01) (1.34)
Cash dividends

declared per share (3) ... ...... 0933 W33 LR R (AR (LT
Balance Sheet Data:
At year enid

Total assels . . oo vvvrce s osss 12,088.6 9,5H0.3 6, 763.0 49483 43719

Working capital (deficiency) . . . . 409 531.6 (52.1) 176.6 69

Longterm debt . .. .......... 7.102.7 69418 48105 41548 19735

Stockholders' equity (deficiency) . 551.6 (8271.7) (726.8) (870.5) (181.6)

Supplementary Financial Data:
Operating income belore

depreciation and amortization (4) . 1,201.2 LOIBY 5761 66 4 M2
Net cash provided by
operating activities (5) ........ 79,6 5207 9.0 59 2523

(1) See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” for a discussion of events
which affect the comparability of the information reflected in the above selected financial data

{2) Primarily represents the cumulative effect of the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” effective January 1, 1993,

{3) As adjusted for the Company’s three-for-two stock split effective February 2, 1994,

(4) Operating income before depreciation and amortization is commonly referred 1o in the Company’s businessen as
“operating cash flow.” Operating cash flow is a measure of a company's ahility to generate cash o service its obligations,
including dett service obligations, and 1o finance capital and other expenditures. In pan due 1o the capital intcnsive nature
ol the Company's businesses and the resulting significant level of non-cash depreciation and amortization expense,
operating cash flow is frequently used as one of the bases for comparing businesses in the Company’s indusiries
Operating cash Now does not purport 1o represent net income or net cash provided by operating activities, as those lerms
are defined under generally accepted accounting principles, and should not be considered as an alternative 1o such
measurements as an indicator of the Company's performance

(%) Hepresents net cash provided by operating activities as presented in the Company ‘s consolidated statement ol cash MNows

(6) Comparability of the information presented for the years ended December 31, 1991 and 1992 is affected by the
Cuompany's acquisition of AWACS, Inc., the Non-Wireline cellular telephone system serving the Philadelphia MSA, lrom
Metromedia Company in March 1992 and the split-off of Storer Communications, Inc. ("Storer”) between the Company
and Storer's other shareholder in December 1992. Prior 10 December 1992, the Company had a 50°% interest in Storer
which was accounied for under the equity method.
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ITEM 7 1 N s : FINANCIAL CO AND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

The Company has experienced significant growth in recent ycars through both strategic acquisitions and growih in
its existing businesses. The Company has historically met its cash needs for operations theough its cash Nows from
operating activities. Cash requirements for acquisitions and capital expenditures have been provided through the
Company’s financing activities and sales of long term investments, as well as its existing cash, cash equivalents and
short-lerm invesiments,

G Jeveli

E! Entertainment

As of December 31, 1996, the Company owned a 104% interest in E! Entertainment Television, Inc. ("E!
Entertainment”), an entertainment programming service that cumently is distributed to more than 42 million
subscribers. The Company has the right, by virtue of various agreements among the sharcholders of E! Entertainment,
to purchase an additional 58.4% interest in E! Entertainment from Time Warner, Inc. ("Time Warner™) for $321.1
million. In January 1997, the Company and The Walt Disney Company ("Disncy”} entered inlo an agreement 1o fomm
a new limited liability company ("Newco”) that will be owned 50.1% by the Company and 499% by Disncy.
Pursuant 1o the agreement, the Company will contribute 1o Newco its 10.4% interest in ! Entertainment, the right
10 exercise its option 1o purchase the Time Warner interest and $132.3 million in cash. Disney will contribute to
Newco $188.8 million in cash. Newco will use the cash contributed by the Company and Disney to purchase the
Time Warner interest. Following such purchase, Newco will own a 68 8% interest in E! Entertainment. To fund the
cash portion of its contribution, the Company will borrow £132.3 million from Disncy in the form of two 10-year,
7% notes (the "Disney Notes”). These transactions (collectively, the "E! Acquisition”) are eapected 10 close in the
first quarter of 1997, subject 1o regulatory approval and certain other conditions.

Scripps Cable

In November 1996, the Company acquired the cable television operations (“Scripps Cable™) of The 1 W Scnpps
Company in exchange for 93.048 million shares of the Company’s Class A Special Common Stock, par value 31.00
per share (the “Class A Special Common Stock”), valued at $1.532 hillion (the “Scripps Acgquisition” ). Scripps Cable
passed more than 1.3 million homes and served more than 800,000 subscribers as of December 11, 1996, with 60%
of its subseribers located in Sacramento, California and Chattanooga and Knoxville, Teanessee. The Company has
accounted for the Scripps Acquisition under the purchase method and Scripps Cable was consolidated with the
Company cffective November 1, 1996.

Comcarl-Spectacor

In July 1996, the Company completed its acquisition (the “Sports Venture Acquisition”) of a 66% interest in the
Philadelphia Flyers Limited Partnership, a Pennsylvania limited partnership ("PFLP7), the assets of which, after
giving effect 1o the Sports Venture Acquisition, consist of (i) the National Basketball Association ("NBA") franchise
to own and operate the Philadelphia 76ers basketball team and related assets (the “Siners”), (i1) the National Hockey
League ("NHL") franchise to own and operate the Philadelphia Flyers hockey team and related assets, and (i) two
adjacent arenas, leaschold interests in and development rights relaied o the land underlying the arenas and other
adjacent parcels of land located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania {collectively. the ~“Arenas™) Concurrent with the
completion of the Sports Venture Acquisition, PFLP was renamed Comcast Spectacor, L. {"Comcast-Speciacor)

The Sports Venture Acquisition was completed in two steps. In April 1996, the Company purchased the Sixers for
$125.0 million in cash plus assumed net liabilities of $11.0 million through a partnership controlled by the Company
To complete the Sports Venture Acquisition, in July 1996, the Company contributed its interest in the Sixen,
exchanged approximately 3.5 million shares of the Company s Class A Special Commaon Suxck and 6,170 shares ol
the Company’s newly issued 5% Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock”), and paid $15.0 million
in cash for its current interest in Comcast-Spectacor. The remaining 3% interest in Comcast-Spectacor is owned
by a group. including the former majority owner of PFLP, who alwo manages Comcast-Spectacor (the "Minority
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Group®). In connection with the Sports Venture Acquisition, Comcast-Spectacor assumed the outstanding liabilities
relating to the Sixers and the Arenas, including a morigage obligation of $155.0 million. The Company accounts for
its interest in Comcast-Spectacor under the equity method.

Sprint Spectrum

The Company, Tele-Communications, Inc. ("TCI”), Cox Communications, Inc. ("Cox,” and together with the
Company and TCI, the "Cable Parents”) and Sprint Corporation ("Sprint,” and together with the Cable Parents, the
“Parents”), and certain subsidiaries of the Parents (the "Partner Subsidiaries™) engage in the wireless communications
business through a limited partnership known as “Sprint Spectrum,” a development stage enterprise. The Company
owns 15% of Sprint Spectrum and accounts for its investment in Sprint Spectrum under the equity method

Sprint Spectrum was the successful bidder for 29 personal communications services ("PCS™) licenses in the asction
conducted by the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC*) from December 1994 through mid-March 1995
The purchase price for the licenses was $2.11 billion, all of which has been paid to the FCC. In addition, Sprint
Spectrum has invested, and may continue to invest, in other entities that hold PCS licenses, may acquire PCS licenses
in future FCC auctions or from other license holders and may affiliate with other license holders

Repurchase Program

Concurrent with the announcemen! of the Scripps Acquisition in October 1995, the Company announced that its
Board of Directors authorized a market repurchase program (the “Repurchase Program®) pursuant to which the
Company may purchase, al sich times and on such terms as it deems appropriate, up to $500.0 million of its
outstanding common stock, subject to certain restrictions and market conditions. During the years ended December
31, 1996 and 1995, the Company repurchased 10.5 million shares and 680,000 shares, respectively, of its common
stock for aggregate consideration of $180.0 million and $12.4 million, respectively, pursuant to the Repurchase
Program. During January 1997, the Company repurchased an additional 450,000 shares of its common stock for
aggregale consideration of $7.6 million. The Repurchase Program will terminate in May 1997

Qve

In February 1995, the Company and TCI acquired all of the outstanding stock of QVC. Inc. and its subsidiaries
("QVC”) not previously owned by them (approximately 65% of such shares on a fully diluted basis) for $46, in cash,
per share (the "QVC Acquisition”), representing a total cost of approximately $1.4 billion. The QVC Acquisition,
including the exercise of certain warrants held by the Company, was financed with cash contributions from the
Company and TCI of $296.3 million and $6.6 million, respectively, borrowings of $1.1 billion under a $1.2 billion
QVC credit facility and existing cash and cash equivalents held by QVC. Following the acquisition, the Company
and TC1 owned, through their respective subsidiaries, 57.45% and 42 55%, respectively, of QVC. The Company,
through a management agreement, is responsible for the day to day operations of QVC. The Company has accounted
for the QVC Acquisition under the purchase method and QVC was consolidated with the Company effective

February 1, 1995,
Maclean Hunter

In December 1994, the Company, through Comcast MHCP Holdings, L.L.C. (the “LLC*), acquired the US cable
television and allernate sccess operations of Maclean Hunter Limited ("Maclean Huniei”) from Rogens
Communications Inc, and all of the outstanding shares of Banlen Communications, Inc (collectively, such
acquisitions are referred to as the “Maclean Hunier Acquisition”™) for approximately 1.2 billion in cash. The
Company and the Californis Public Employees' Retirement System ("CalPERS") invested $305.6 million and $250.0
million, respectively, in the LLC, which is owned 55% by o wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and 45% by
CalPERS, and is managed by the Company. The balance of the Maclean Hunter Acquisition was financed through
borrowings under a credit facility of a wholly owned subsidiary of the LLC. The Company has accounted for the
Maclean Hunter Acquisition under the purchase method and Maclean Hunter was consolidated with the Company
effective December 22, 1994,
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Liguidi j Capital R
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Shori-term Investments

The Company has traditionally maintained significant levels of cash, cash equivalents and short-lerm investments
10 meet its short-term liquidity requirements. Cash, cash equivalents and shor-term investiments as of December 31,
1996 and 1995 were $539.6 million and $910.1 million, respectively. As of December 31, 1996, 3376 8 million of
the Company's cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments is restricted 1o use by subsidianies of the Company
under contractual or other arrangements, including $213.7 million which is restricted 1o use by Comcast UK Cable
Partners Limited ("Comcast UK Cable”), a consolidated subsidiary of the Company.

The Company's cash equivalents and shori-term investments are recorded at cost which approximates their fair value
As of December 31, 1996, the Company s short-term investmenis of $208.3 million include 1.27 million shares of
Time Warner common stock recorded at fair value of $47.4 million (see “Investments™) The remaining short-term
investments, of $160.9 million, had a weighted average matunty of approximately 10 months

Accounts Receivable - Electronic Retailing

The Company has an agreement with an unrelated third party which provides for the sale and servicing of accounts
receivable relating 1o the Company's electronic retailing operations. The Company sold sccounts receivable at face
value of $687.0 million and $530.2 million under this agreement in 1996 and 1995, respectively. The Company
remains obligated 10 repurchese uncollectible accounts pursuant 1o the recourse provisions of the agreement and is
required 1o maintain a specified percentage of all outstanding receivables under the program as a depu..  with the

third party to secure its obligations under the agreement.

The uncollected balance of accounts receivable sold under this program was $317.7 million and $283.1 million as
of December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively, of which $284.5 million and §234.5 million, respectively, represent
deposits under the agreement, that are included in accounts receivable. Total recorded reserves relating to the possible
repurchase of uncollectible accounts was $73.2 million and $71.6 million as of December 31, 1996 and 1995,
respectively. The receivables sold under the program are considered, for financial reporting purposes, 1o be financial
instruments with off-balance sheet risk. The carrying value of accounts receivable, adjusted for the reserves described
above, approximates fair value as of December 31, 1996 and 1995,

Investments

Under the provisions of the Sprint Spectrum partnership agrecment, the Panner Subsidiaries have committed 1o
contribute $4.2 billion in cash to Sprint Spectrum through 1999, of which the Company's share is $630.0 million.
Of this funding requirement, the Company has made total cash contributions to Sprint Spectrum of $452 K million
through December 31, 1996 and issued a $105.0 million guaranty on a portion of Sprint Spectrum’s outstanding debt
The Company anticipates that Sprint Spectrum’s capital requirements over the next several yean w ill be significant
Requirements in excess of committed capital are planned to be funded by Sprint Spectrum through external financing,
including, but not limited to, vendor financing. bank financing and securities offered to the public. In August 1996,
Sprint Spectrum sold $750.0 million principal amount at maturity of Senior Notes and Senior Discount Notes due
in 2006 in a public offering. In October 1996, Sprint Spectrum closed three credit agreements which provided $2 0
billion in bank financing and $3.1 billion in vendor financing. The timing of the Company's remaining capital
contributions to Sprint Spectrum is dependent upon a number of faciors. including Sprini Spectrum’s working capital
requirements. The Company anticipates funding its remaining capital commitments to Sprint Spectrum through its
cash flows from operating activities, its existing cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and lines ol eredit
or other external financing, or by a combination of these sources

The Company held 693,000 shares of common stock of Nextel Communications, Inc. ("Nextel”) as of December
11, 1995. In February 1996, in connection with cerlain preempiive rights of the Company under previously existing
agreements with Nextel, the Company purchased an additional §.16 million shares of Neatel common stock ar $12.25
per share, for a total cost of $99.9 million. During the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, the Company sold
.6 million shares and 11.3 million shares, respectively, of Nexiel common stock for $105.4 million and $212.6
million, respectively, and recognized pre-tax gains of $35.4 million and $36.2 million, respectively, as investment
income in its consolidated statement of operations. As of December 11, 1996, the Company held 3.3 million shares
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of Nextel common stock, classified as long-term investments available for sale. As of December 31, 1996, the
Company held options, which expire in September 1997, 10 acquire an additional 25.0 million shares of Neatel
common stock at $16 per share. These options are also classified as long-term investments available for sale. In
1997, the Company sold these options to Nextel for $25.0 million.

The Company received 1.36 million shares of Time Wamner common stock (the “Time Warner Stock”) in exchange
(the “Exchange”) for all of the shares of Turner Broadcasting System, Inc. ("TBS") stock (the “TBS Swck”) held
by the Company as a result of the merger of Time Warner and TBS in October 1996. As a result of the Exchange,
the Company recognized & gain of $47.3 million in the fourth quarter of 1996, representing the difference between
the Company’s historical cost basis in the TBS Stock of $8.9 million and the new basis for the Company’s
investment in Time Warner Stock of $56.2 million, which was based on the closing price of the Time Warner Stock
on the merger date of $41.375 per share. In December 1996 and January 1997, the Company sovkd ‘92, %00 shares and
1.27 million shares, respectively, of the Time Warner Stock, representing the Company’s entire interest in Time
Warner, for $3.7 million and $48.6 million, respectively.

The Company does not have any additional significant contractual commitments with respect to any of its
investments. However, to the extent the Company does not fund its investees' capital calls, it exposes itself to
dilution of its ownership interests. The Company continually evaluates its existing investments as well as new

investment opportunities.

LS

Investment Rights

Beginning in January 1998, the Company has the right to purchase the minority interests in Comcast-Spectacor from
the Minarity CGroup for the Minority Group’s pro rata portion of the fair market value (on a going concern basis as
determined by an appraisal process) of Comcasi-Spectacor. The Minority Group also has the right (together with the
Company's right, the “Exit Rights") 1o require the Company to purchase its interests under the same terms, The
Company may pay the Minority Group for such interests in shares of the Company’s Class A Special Common
Stock, subject to certain restrictions. If the Minority Group exercises its Exit Rights and he Company elects not (o
purchase their interest, the Company and the Minority Group will use their best efforts ti sell Comcast-Spectacor,

Assuming consummation of the E! Acquisition, afier the |8 month anniverary of the closing date of the E!
Acquisition, Disney, in certain circumstances, is entitled to cause Newco o purchase Disney's entire interest in
Newco at its then fair market value (as determined by an appraisal process). If Newco elects not o purchase
Disney's interests, Disney has the right, at its option, to purchase either the Company's entire interest in Newco or
all of the shares of stock of E! Entertainment held by Newco, in each case mt fair market value. In the eveni that
Disney exercises its rights, as described above, a portion or all of the Disncy Notes may be replaced with a three
year note due lo Disney,

Liberty Media Corporation (“Liberty”), a majority owned subsidiary of TCI. may, at cenain times following
February 9, 2000, trigger the exercise of certain exit rights with respect 10 its investment in QVC. If the exit nghts
are triggered, the Company has first right to purchase Liberty's stock in QVC at Liberty’s pro rata portion of the
fair market value (on a going concern or liguidation basis, whichever is higher, as determined by an appraisal
process) of QVC. The Company may pay Liberty for such stock, subject 1o certain rights of Liberty 10 consummate
the purchase in the most tax-¢fficient method available, in cash, the Company's promissory nofe matunng aol more
than three years after issuance, the Company's equity securities or any combination thereof. If the Company elects
not to purchase the stock of QVC held by Liberty, then Liberty will have a similar right to purchase the stock of
QVC held by the Company. If Liberty elects not 10 purchase the stock of QVC held by the Company, then Liberty
and the Company will use their best efforts 1o sell QVC

As & result of the Maclean Hunter Acquisition, sl any time afier December 18, 2001, CalPERS may elect to liquidate
its interest in the LLC at a price based upon the fair value of CalPERS' interest in the LLC, adjusted, under certain
circumstances, for certain performance criteria relating (0 the fair value of the LLC or 1o the Company’s commaon
stock, Except in certain limited circumstances, the Company, sl its option, may satisfy this liquidity arrangement by
purchasing CalPERS' interest for cash, through the issuance of the Company’s common stock (subject (o cerain
limitations) or by selling the LLC.
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Capilal Expenditures

It is anticipated that, during 1997, the Company will incur approximately $1.1 billion of capital expenditures,
including $600 million fior the upgrading and rebuilding of certain of the Company’s cable communications sysiems,
$125 million for the upgrading of QVC's warehousing and distribution facilitics, $125 million for the upgrading of
the Company's cellular communications sysiems and $150 million for the build-out of the Company’s consolidated
United Kingdom ("UK") affilistes’ systems. The remaining $100 million of anticipated capital expenditures for 1997
ﬁﬂhmﬂhdhhtmp-r':dhmmmmmmmut-im.'l'htumnanhum

offering of cable modem. cable telephony and telecommunications services, whether and to what extent the Company
wmhwhmmhhmumMMgmumudﬁum.mmmwy Bcquires
.dditimljr.lhl:lymmhnddwuwumuiu,mcm.mrmﬂidpﬂuuﬁmupmdnwu
for years subsequent to 1997 will continue 1o be significant. As of December 31, 1996, the Company does not have
any significant contractual obligations for capital expenditures.

UK Indusiry Consolidation

Based on closed and announced transactions, it is apparent that the UK cable and telecommunications industrics arc
undw:nin;-dpﬂﬂcmmum.wﬁchwmdh(:ompmy expects to continue in the coming months The
Company has engaged an investment sdvisor to assist it in evaluating the current state of the UK marketplace. the
pﬂﬁmddﬂﬁkiﬂﬂlﬂhﬂﬂhﬂimtﬂhmﬁih&uﬂﬂﬂm. There can be no assurance that
the Company will take any action, or in what time frame any such action, if undertaken, might be accomplished.

Financing

The Company has historically utilized a strategy of financing its acquisitions through senior debi at the acquired
mqmw.wm;mmmmmwnwy through the issuance of
whmﬂin;wdﬁh-hmwuuwnylndp-ﬂmhmh and, to some extent, through
public offerings of & subsidiary company’s stock and debl instruments. As of December 31, 1996 and 1995, the
Company's long-term debt, including current portion, was $7.332 billion and $7.029 billios, respectively, of which
45.2% and 54.0%, respectively, was at variable rates. Maturities of long-term debdt outstanding as of December 31,
1996 for the five years commencing in 1997 are $229.5 million, $671.5 million, $462.5 million, $668.1 million and
$1.282 billion. As of February |, 1997, certain subsidiaries of the Company had unused lines of credit of $1.679
billion. The availability and use of these unused lines of credit is restricted by the covenants of the related debx
agreements and to subsidiary general purposes and dividend declaration. In addition, of the 1otal unused lines ol
credit, $625.0 million was established by a subsidiary for debt refinancing. The Company's long-term debt had
estimated fair values of $7.323 billion and $7.089 billion as of December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively The
Company's weighted average interest rate was 7.90%, 8.32% and 7.75% during the ycars ended Dec-mber 31, 1996,
1995 and 1994, respectively. The Company continually evaluates its debt structure with the intention of reducing its
debi service requirements when desirable.

In November 1995, Comcast UK Cable received net proceeds of $291.1 million from the sale of $517.3 mullion
phﬁpdmm-mhﬂhll,mududMMdumuh =2007 Discount Debeniures” )
Interes! accretes on the 2007 Discount Debentures st 11.20% per annum, compounded semi-annually from
November 15, 1995 10 November 15, 2000, afier which date interest will be paid in cash on each May 15 and
November 15, through November 15, 2007, The net proceeds from the offering are being utilized by Comcast UK
Cable for advances and capital coatributions 1o its equity investees and subsidiaries primarily for the build-out of
their telecommunications networks in the UK.

As part of the Repurchase Program, the Company sold put options on 1.0 million and 3.0 million shares of its Class
A Special Common Stock during the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1993, respectively. The pul options give
the holders the right 1o require the Company 1o repurchase such shares al specified prices on specific dates in January
through March 1997. As of December 31, 1996, the Company has reclassified $69.6 million, the amount it would
be obligated to pay to repurchase such shares upon exercise of the put options. to & lemporary eqnity account in its
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consolidated balance sheet, The temporary equity related 1o these shares will be reclassified to additional capital in
the first quarter of 1997 upon expiration or settlement of the options

On March 27, 1997, the Company announced that its wholly owned subsidiary, Comcast Cellular Holdings Inc.
(“Comcast Cellular™), intends 1o offer approximately $900 million of senior notes (the "Notes™) in a private
pl-nmmnl.mHnmwitlhwdmmmmmllmhnulﬂma.mluulnlmdhr.l:h:
Cmmy.ﬂwhmmmmmwﬂhﬂmhumyuhmmm. However, there can
be no assurance that acceptable terms will be reached or that the offering will be consummated. Comcast Cellular
anticipates using the net proceeds from the offering to redeem or retire existing long-term debt of its subsidianes.

Interest Rate and Foreign Currency Risk Managemeni

The Company is exposed to market risk including changes in intcrest rates and foreign currency exchange raies. To
manage the volatility relating to these exposures, the Company enlers into various derivative transactions pursuant
to the Company's policies in arcas such as counterparty exposure and hedging practices. Positions are monitored
using techniques including market value and sensitivity analyses. The Company does not hold or issue any denivalive
financial instruments for trading purposes and is not a party 1o leveraged instruments. The credit risks associated with
the Company's derivative financial instruments are controlled through the evaluation and monitoring of the
creditworthiness of the counterparties. Although the Company may be exposed to losses in the event of nonper-
formance by the counterpartics, the Company does not expect such losses, if any, tn be significant

The use of interest rate risk management instruments, such as interest rate exchange agreements (“Swaps”), interest
nmm.pmnut'cm"}udhwmmdhw{‘ﬂdh'},hwmuﬂm:n{Mn
of the Company’s outstanding debt agreements. The Company's policy is 1o manage interest costs using a mix of
fixed and variable rate debt. Using Swaps, the Company agrees 1o exchange, af specified intervals. the difference
between fixed and variable interest amounts calculated by reference (o an agreed-upon notional principal amount.
Caps are used to lock in a maximum interest rate should variable rates rise, but enable the Company to otherwisce
pljrhwumutﬂmu.ColluleilﬂlﬂCnmpnr'lupmmmmbemﬁuhmunmuhﬂmiomm
variable rate debt 1o within a certain range of rates.

The following table summarizes the terms of the Company’s existing Swaps, Caps and Collars as of December 31,
1996 and 1995 (dollars in millions):

Notional Average Estimated

As of December 31, 1996

Variable 10 Fixed Swaps $1,080.0 1997-2000 S H5% 574
Caps 250.0 1997 B.55%

Collars 620.0 1997-1998 698% /7 5.16% 0.1

As of December 31, 1995

Variable 1o Fixed Swaps $650.0 1997-2000 6.05% ($6.8)
Caps 250.0 1997 B.20%

Collars 300.0 1997 7.21% 7 5.09% {0.9)

The notional amounts of interest rale agreements, as presented in the above table, are used 1o measure interest 10 be
paid or received and do not represent the amount of exposure 1o credit loss. The estimated fair value approximates
the proceeds (costs) to settle the outstanding contracts. While Swaps, Caps and Collars represent an integral pan of
the Company's interest rate risk management program, their incremental effect on interest expense for the ycan
ended Decernber 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994 was not significant

The Company has entered into certain foreign currency exchange option contracts ("FX Options™) as a normal parn
of its foreign currency risk management cfforts. During 1995, Comcast UK Cable entered into cerain foreign
exchange put option contracts ("FX Puts”) which may be setled only on November 16, 2000 These FX Puts are
used 10 limit Comcast UK Cable's exposure 10 the risk that the eventual cash outflows related 1o net monetary
lishilities denominated in currencies other than its functional currency (the UK Pound Sterling or "UK Pousd”)
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(principally the 2007 Discount Debentures) are adversely affected by changes in exchange rates. As of December 31,
1996 and 1995, Comcast UK Cable had £250.0 million notional amount of FX Puts to purchase US dollars at an
exchange rate of $1.35 per £1.00 (the "Ratio™). The FX Puts provide a hedge. to the extent the exchange rate falls
below the Ratio, against Comcast UK Cable’s net monetary liabilities denominated in US dollars since gains and
losses realized on the FX Puts are offset against foreign exchange gains or losses realized on the underlying net
liabilities, Premiums paid for the FX Puts, of $21.4 million, have been recorded as assets in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet. These premiums are being amortized over the terms of the related contracts. As of
December 31, 1996, the FX Puts had a cammying value of $18.4 million and an estimated fair value of $5.5 million.
The differences between the carrying amounts and the estimated fair value of the FX Puts were not significant as

of December 31, 1995,

In the fourth quarter of 1995, in order to reduce hedging costs, Comcast UK Cable sold foreign exchange call option
contracts (“FX Calls") to exchange £250.0 million notional amount. Comcast UK Cable received $5.3 million from
the sale of these contracts. These contracts may only be setiled on their expiration dates. Of these contracts, £200.0
million notional amount, with an exchange ratio of $1.70 per £1.00, expired unexercised in November 1996 while
the remaining contract, with a £50.0 million potional amount and an exchange ratio of $1.62 per £1.00, has a
settlement date in November 2000. In the fourth quarter of 1996, in order o continue 1o reduce hedging costs,
Comcast UK Cable sold additional FX Calls, for proceeds of $3.5 million, to exchange £200.0 million notional
amount al an average exchange ratio of $1.75 per £1.00. These contracts may only be settled on their expiration dates
during the fourth quarter of 1997. The FX Calls are marked-to-market on a current basis in the Company’s
consolidated statement of operations.

As of December 31, 1996 and 1995, the estimated (air value of the liabilities related 10 the FX Calls, as recorded
in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet, was $12.2 million and $5.8 million, respectively. Changes in fair value
between measurement dates relating to the FX Calls resulied in exchange losses of $2.2 million during the year ended
December 31, 1996 in the Company s consolidated statement of operations, There were no significant exchange gains
or losses relating 10 these contracts during the year ended December 31, 1995,

As a result of the Scripps Acquisition, the Company no longer has a stockholdens’ deficiency. However, the
Company expects o continue 1o recognize significant losses for the foreseeable future resulling in decreases in
stockholders’ equity. The iclecommunications industry, including cable and cellular communications, and the
electronic retailing industry are experiencing increasing competition and rapid technological changes. The Company s
future results of operations will be affected by its ability 1o react 1o changes in the competitive environment and by
its ability to implement new technologics. However, the Company believes that competition, technologica: changes
and ils significant losses will not significantly affect its ability 1o obtain financing

The Company believes that it will be able 10 meet its current and long-term Liguidity and capital requirements,
including fined charges, through its cash flows from operating activities, existing cash, cash equivalents, short-lerm
investments and lines of credit and other external financing.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents decreased $207.8 million as of December 31, 1996 from December 31, 1995 and increased
$203 8 million as of December 31, 1995 from December 31, 199%4. Changes in cash and cash equivalents resulied
from cash flows from operating, financing and investing activities which are eaplained below

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted 1o $799.6 million, $520.7 million and $369. 1 million for the years
ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. The increase of $278.9 million from 1995 o 1996 was
principally due w changes in working capital as a result of the timing of receipls and dishursements and the increase
in the Company's operating income before depreciation and amortization (sce “Results of Operations”), including
the effects of the Scripps Acquisition. The increase of $151.6 million from 1994 1o 1995 was princinally due o
effects of the QVC Acquisition and the Maclean Hunter Acquisition,

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities, which includes the issuances of securities as well as bomowings,
was ($81.2) million, $2.036 billion and $1.115 billion for the years ended December V1, 1996, 1995 amd 1994,

« 32 -




respectively. During 1996, the Company bormowed $839.5 million under new and existing lines of credit and repaid
$734.4 million, including 5257.4 million in coonection with the refinancing of certain indebtedness and $123.7
million of repayments under a vendor financing arrangemeni. Net repurchases of the Company s common stock in
1996 were $175.9 million. During 1995, the Company borrowed 3$3.728 billion including $1.1 billion in connection
with the QVC Acquisition, $1.085 billion in connection with the refinancing of certain indebtedness. $300.9 millivn
associated with the funding of Sprint Spectrum, $300.0 million of the 2007 Discount Debentures, $250.0 million of
the Company's 9-3/8% senior subordinated debentures due 2005 and $250.0 million of the Company's 9-1/8% senior
subordinated debentures due 2006. In sddition, during 1995, the Company retired and repaid $1.620 billion of is
long-term debt, including $1.186 billion in connection with the refinancing of centain indebledness, and $175.0
million of optional repayments on QVC's credit facility. Proceeds from borrowings of $1.201 billion in 1994 included
$1.015 billion relating to the Maclean Hunter Acquisition, During 1994, the Company repurchased or redeemed and
retired $509.0 million of its long-term debt, including the Company's $150.0 million. 11-7/8% senior subordinated
debentures due 2004. Net cash provided by financing activities in 1994 excludes the conversion of $186.2 million
of long-term debt into 16.8 million shares of Class A Special Common Stock of the Company. In 1994, the Company
received an equily contribution 10 a subsidiary of $250.0 million in connection with the Maclean Hunter Acquisition
and received proceeds from the issuance of common stock of Comcast UK Cable of $209.4 million.

Net cash used in investing activities was $926.2 million, $2.353 billion and $1.309 billion for the years ended
December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. During 1996, net cash used in investing activities includes
acquisitions, net of cash acquired, of $60.4 million, additional cash investments in affilistes of $502.0 million,
including $159.6 million in connection with the Company's investment in Comcast-Spectacor, capital contributions
to Sprint Spectrum of $106.8 million and the purchase of Nexiel shares of $99.9 million, and capital expenditures
of $670.4 million. Cash proceeds from investing activities include proceeds from the sales of short-term and long-
term investments of $377.7 million, including $105.4 million from sales of Nextel shares and $52.5 million of
distributions from Garden State Cablevision, L.P. ("Garden State”™), an investee of the Company. As the Company
issued shares of its Class A Special Common Stock as consideration in the Scripps Acquisition, the transaction had
no significant impact on investing activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows. During 1995, net cash used
in investing activities includes acquisitions of $1.386 billion, principally the acquisition of QVC, net of cash acquired,
additional cash investments in affilistes of $480.2 million, including capital contributions to Sprint Spectrum of
$327.5 million, capital expenditures of $623.0 million and net purchases of short-term investments of $240.8 million,
Such amounts were offset by proceeds from sales of long-lerm investments of $410.5 million, principally in
connection with the Heritage Transaction (see "Results of Operations - Consolidated Analysis™) and the sale of Nextel
shares. Acquisitions in 1994 consisted principally of $1.2 billion paid, including certain transaction costs, in
connection with the Maclean Hunter Acquisition. Net proceeds of $389.3 million from the sale of shori-term
investments during 1994 were used principally to redeem and retire long-term debt. In addition, during 1994, the
Company made capital expenditures of $26%.9 million and made additional cash investmenis in affiliates of $125.0
million.

The effects of the Company's recenl acquisitions have been (o increase significantly the Companys revenues and
expenses, resulting in substantial increases in its operating income before depreciation and amortization, depreciation
expense, amortization expense and interest expense. In addition, the Company's equity in net losses of affiliales has
increased principally as a result of the stari-up nature of cenain of the Company’s equity investees (sce “Operaling
Results by Business Segment” and "Consolidated Analysis®). As a resull of the increases in depreciation expense,
amortization expense and interest expense associated with these acquisitions and their financing and the expected
increases in equity in net losses of affiliates, it is expected that the Company will continue to recognize significant
losses for the foresceable future.
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Summarized consolidated financial information for the Company for the three years ended December 31, 1996 is
as follows (dollars in millions, "NM" denotes percentage is not meaningful):

Year Ended
December 31, Increase/(Decrease )
1996 1993 3 3
Revenues 4084 313629 $6755 20 1%
Cost of goods sold from electronic retailing L1109 KOR.1 2126 217
Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses 1,720.3 14458 274 5 190
Operating income before depreciation and
amortization (1) 1,207.2 1.OIRK 188 4 185
Depreciation M46 iwe {25.%) (7.4)
Amortization 3837 3491 .6 99
Operaling income S08.9 29K 17l 543
Interesi capense 40 8 $24.7 161 LN |
Investment income (122.6) (2298 (107.2) {46.6)
Equity in net losses of affiliates 144.8 6.6 582 672
Gain from equity offering of affiliate (40.6) 406 NM
Other 26 i(6.3) {R9) (141.3)
Income lax cxpense K44 421 4213 1005
Minority interest (48.0) 49.7) (.7 (34)
Extraordinary items (1.0) {61} i51) (B3.6)
Net loss (§51.5) _ (3419 9.6 219%
Year Ended
December 11, Increase/(Decreasc)
1993 194 3 k.
Revenues $3.3629 51,3753 $1.987.6 144 5%
Cost of goods sold from electronic retailing HYR.3 K9K. 3 NM
Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses 1,445 8 799.0 (X7 810
Operating income before depreciation and
amortization (1) 1OIRE 5763 4425 THH
Depreciation 1399 122 157.7 6.6
Amortization 3491 1543 194 N 1262
Operating income 1298 MR S0 s
Interest enpense 5247 RIRE 2113 67.4
Invesiment income (229.8) (24.6) 2082 NM
Equity in net losses of affiliates Ro 6 409 457 17
Onher 6 f d NM
Income tax expense (benefit) 421 9.2) 513 NM
Minority interest {(49.7) (54) 443 NM
Extraordinary items i) (11.7) 156) 479)
Net loss ($419) ($87.0) (8411 (49 5%)

(1) Operating income before depreciation and amortization is commonly referred 1o in the Company’s businesses

as “operating cash flow.” Operating cash flow is a measure of a company’s ability to generate cash L service

its obligations, in-'uding debt service obligations, and to finance capital and other expendiiures In part due o

the capital intensive nature of the Company’s businesses and the resulting significani level of non-cash

depreciation and amortization expense, operating cash Mow s frequently used as one of the bases for comparing

businesses in the Company's industries. Operating cash flow does not purport to represent net income of nel cash

provided by operating activities, as those terms are defined under generally accepted accounting principles, and

_should not be considered as an alternative 10 such measurements as an indicator of the Company’s performance
See “Statement of Cash Flows™ above for a discussion of net cash provided by operaling activitics
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The following represent the operating results of the Company's significant business segments, including: "Domestic
Cable Communications,” the most significant of the Company’s wired telecommunications operations; “Electronic
Retailing,” the most significant of the Company's content businesses; and “Cellular Communications,” the mosi
significant of the Company®s wireless telecommunications operations. The remaining components of the Company s
operations are pol independently significant 1o the Company ‘s consolidaied financial position or resulis of operation.
{sce Note 10 1o the Company's consolidated financial statements).

Domestic Cable Communications

The following table sets forth the operating resulis for the Company’s domestic cable communications segment
{dollars in millions):

Year Ended
December 31, Increase
1996 1993 3 %
Service income 51,6409 514549 S$I86.0 12 8%
Operating, sclling, general and
sdministrative expenses B0.9 Ti6.4 94.5 12.8
Operating income before depreciation
and amortization {(a) S¥10.0 $7TI8.S b LT 127%
Year Ended
December 11, Increase
1995 1994 3 .3
Service income $14549 $1.0653 $1K9 6 M 6%
Operating, sclling, general and
administrative expenses Ti64 547 8 IRE.6 344
Operating income before depreciation
and amortization (a) $TIR.S 35175 $201.0 1K WG

(a) See footnote (1) on page M.

The Scripps Acquisition accounted for $52.3 million of the $186.0 million increase in service income from 1995 1
1996. Of the remaining increase of $133.7 million, $33.5 million Is attributable 10 subscriber growth, $84.5 million
is attributable 1o changes in rates, $4.7 million is attributable o growth in cable advertising sales and $11.0 millien
relates 10 other product offerings. The Maclean Hunler Acquisition accounted for $270.1 million of the $389.6
million increase in service income from 1994 (o 1995, Of the remaining increase of $119.5 million, $46.0 million
is atinbutable 10 subscriber growth, $34.6 million relates 1o changes in rates, which includes the change in the
estimated effects of cable rate regulation, $14.0 million results from growth in cable advenising sales and $4.9
million relates o growth in other product offerings.

The Scripps Acquisition sccounted for $30.9 million of the $94 5 million increase in operating, selling, general and
sdministrative expenses from 1995 1o 1996, Of the remaining increase of 363 6 million, $21.7 million is attributable
i increases in the costs of programming as a result of subscriber growih, additional channel oifenings and changes
in rates, $25.3 million is attributable 1o increases in cosis associated with implementation of three regional customer
service call centers and increases in the cost of labor, $4.2 million is atnibutable 1w growth in cable advertising sales
and $12.4 million is attributable to increases in other volume relaled expenses. The Maclean Hunler Acguisition
accounted for $143.7 million of the $188.6 million increase in operating. selling. general and adminisirative expenses
from 1994 to 1995, Of the remaining increase of $44.9 million, $22 6 million is attributable 10 increases in the costs
of cable programming as a result of subscriber growth, additional channel offerings and changes in rates, $7.2 millivon
is attributable to increases in expenses associated with the growth in cable advertising sales and $15. 1 million resulis
from increases in the cost of labor and other volume related expenses. It is anticipated that the Company's cost of
cable programming will increase in the future as cable programming rates increase and additional sources of cable
programming become available.
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As a result of the QVIC Acquisition, the Company commenced consolidating the financial results of QVC effective
February |, 1995, The following table presents actual financial information fur the year ended December 31, 1996
and pro forma financial information for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994, Fro foma financial
information is presented herein for purposes of analysis and may not reflect what actual operating results would have
been had the Company owned QVC since January |, 1994 (dollars in millions).

Electronic Retailing

Year Ended
December 31, Increase
199 1995 s &

Net sales from electronic retailing 518358 51,6192 32166 134%
Cost of goods sold from electronic retailing 1.110.9 9764 1345 138
Operating, selling, general and administrative

expenses 4246 KT 4 3.2 96
Operating income before depreciation

and amortization (a) $300.13 $2554 $49 17.6%
Gross margin 10.5% 9. 7%

Year Ended
December 31, Increase
1993 1994 3 %

Net sales from clectronic retailing $1.619.2 $1,374.5 12447 17.8%
Cost of goods sold from electronic retailing 976.4 8395 1369 163
Operating, selling, general and administrative

expenses K74 1261 613 IRB
Operating income before depreciation

and amortization (a) $255.4 S2UMY 3465 223%
Gross margin 19.7% IRG%

(a) Sec footnote (1) on page 34.

Effective April 1, 1995, QVC consolidated the results of its UK operations. These operations accounted for $50.3
million of the sales increase from 1995 o 1996. Ninc months of sales from these operations accounted for 3484
million of the sales increase from 1994 1o 1995. The remaining increases of $166.3 million and $196.3 million from
1995 1o 1996 and 1994 10 19935, respectively, are primarily atiributable o increases of 7.2% and % 2% in the average
number of QVC homes receiving QVC services in the US over the respective prior year periods.

An allowance for returned merchandise is provided as a percentage of sales based on historical experience. The return
provision was approximately 21 percent of gross sales for each of the years ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and
19594,

The $134.5 million and $136.9 million increases in cost of goods sold from electronic retailing from 1993 o 1996
and 1994 1o 1995, respectively, are directly related 1o the growth in net sales. The 02 percentage point decrease in
gross margin from 1995 10 1996 and 0.8 percentage point increase in gross margin from 1994 1o 1% are due o
slight changes in product mix from year to year.

The growth in and consolidation of QVC's UK operations, effective April 1, 1995, resulted in in~reases in operating.
selling, general and administrative expenses of $17.4 million and $25.8 million from 1995 10 1996 and 1994 10 1995,
respectively. The remaining increases of $19.8 million and $35.5 million from 1995 1w 1996 and 1994 10 1995,
respectively, are attributable o higher sales volume, increases in o "vertising costs and additional costs ausclated with
new businesses




Cellular Communications

The following table sets forth the operating nesults for the Company’s cellular communications segment (dollars in
millions);

Year Ended
December 31, Increase
1996 1993 $ X, 3
Service income $426.1 $1749 3512 13.7%
Operating, selling, general and administrative
cApcnses 2659 237.1 PR 121
Operating income before depreciation
and amortization (a) $160.2 S$137TH 5224 16 3%
Year Ended
December 31, Increase
1993 1994 3 .
Service income $3749 $286.1 SHE N 3 0%
Operating, selling, general and administrative
expenses 237.1 LYK 673 39.6
Operating income before depreciation
and amortization (a) 31378 $116.3 3215 IN5%

(a) Sec footnote (1) on page 34.

Of the respective $51.2 million and $88.8 million increases in service income from 1995 1o 19496 and 1994 10 1995,
$69.6 million and $99.6 million, respectively, are attributable 10 the Company’s subscriber growth. Offseiting the
increases from 1995 10 1996 and 1994 10 1995 are decreases of $19.3 million and $25.0 million, respectively,
resulting from reductions in the average rate per minute of use in these reapective perinds. The remaining changes
from 1995 to 1996 and 1994 to 1995 are attributable 1o growth in roamer revenue and other products of $900,000
and $14.2 million, respectively. The Company expects that the decrease in average minules-of-use per cullular
subscriber will continue in the future, which is consistent with industry trends

Of the respective $28 8 million and 367.3 million increases in operating. selling. general and administrative capenses
from 1995 1o 1996 and 1994 1o 1995, $24.3 million and $38.2 million, respectively, me related 1o subscriber growth,
including the costs to scquire and service subscribers. The remaining increases of $4.5 million and $29.1 million,
respectively, are due to increases in other expenses, including subscriber retention costs, administrative costs and thell
of service in 1995

Consolidated Analysis

The $25.3 million decrease in depreciation expense from 1995 (o 199 is primanly attributable 1o the eftects of the
rebuild of cerwin of the Company’s cellular equipment in 1995 (see below ) olfset, in pan, by the effects ol capital
up:nduum. during 1995 and 1996 and the effects of the Scripps Acquisition in 1996 The $157.7 million increase
in depreciation expense from 1994 1o 1995 is attributable to the effects of the acquisitions of QVC and Maclean
Hunter, the effects of the rebuild of cenain of the Company's cellular equipment in 1995 and capital expenditures
during the periods, offset, in pan, by the effects of asset disposals during the periods

In 1995, the Company's cellular division purchased $172.0 million of switching and cell sile equipment which
replaced the existing switching and cell site equipment (the "Cellular Rebuild™). The Company substantially
completed the Cellular Rebuild during 1995. Accordingly, during 1995, the Company charged $110.0 million to
depreciation expense which represented the difference between the net book value of the equipment replaced and
the residual value realized upon its disposal.
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The $34.6 million and $194.8 million increases in amortization expense from 1995 to 1996 and 1994 w0 1998,
mwddy.npimﬂrmﬁuuhumﬂutﬂmdumﬁmdkripmc&in 1996 and the effects of
the acquisitions of QVC and Maclean Hunter in 1995 and 1994, respectively.

The $16.1 million increase in interest expense from 1995 10 1996 is primarily attributable o an increase in the
w;‘lmﬂqhn;mmnﬂmhmhylmininmmnrmm 1995 1o 1996 and the
effects of capitalized interest. The $211.3 million increase in interest cxpense from 1994 1o 1995 is primarily due
1o increased levels of debt associated with the acquisitions of QVC and Maclean Hunter.

The Company anticipates that, for the foresceable future, interest expense will be a significant cost to the Company
and will have a significant adverse effect on the Company’s ability 1o realize net carnings. The Company belicves
it will continue to be able to meet its obligations through its ability both to generate operating income belore
depreciation and amortization and 1o obtain external financing.

The $107.2 million decrease in investment income from 1995 to 1996 is primanily attributable 10 the effects of the
gain realized in the Heritage Transaction in 1995 (see below), offset. in part, by the gain recognized upon the
exchange of the shares of TBS held by the Company for Time Warner Stock in 1996, The $205.2 million increase
in investment income from 1994 to 1995 is principally due to the $177.2 million in gains related to the Heritage
Transaction and the sale of Nextel common stock in 1995. The remaining increase for this period is due 1o the effects
of the QVC Acquisition and an increase in the Company's cash, cash equivalents and shori-term investments, offset
by $15.3 million of losses recorded relating 10 the net realizable value of certain of the Company’s invesiments.

In January 1995, the Company exchanged its investments in Heritage Communications, Inc. with TCI for 13.3
million publicly-traded Class A common shares of TCI with a fair market value of $290.0 million. Shortly thereafier,
the Company sold 9.1 million unrestricted TCI shares for total proceeds of $188.1 million (collectively, the "Heritage
Transaction™), As a result of these transactions, the Company recognized a pre-tax gain of $141.0 million as
investment income in its 1995 consolidated statemeni of operations.

The increases in equity in net losses of affiliates for both periods are due to the timing of investments in and changes
in losses incurred by Sprint Spectrum, TCGH (as defined below), the Company’s international investees and certain
programming investees, Based on Sprint Spectrum’s current operations and business plan, the Company anticipates
that its proportionate share of Sprint Spectrum’s losses will be significant in future years

Through June 27, 1996, the Company held investments in Telepont Communications Group Inc. ("TCGI"). TCG
Partners and certain local joint ventures (the “Joint Ventures™) managed by TCGI and TCG Panners. On June 27,
1996, TCGI sold approximately 27 million shares of its Class A Common Stock (the "TCGI Class A Stock™). for
$16 per share, in an initial public offering (the “TCGI IPO”). In connection with the TCGI 1PO, TCGI, the Company
and subsidiaries of Cox, TCl and Continental Cablevision (“Continental” and collectively with Cox. TCl and the
Company, the "Cable Stockholders”) enlered into an agreement pursuant to which TCGI was reorganized (the
“Reorganization”). The Reorganization consisted of, among other things: (i) the acquisition by TCGI of TCG
Partners; (ii) the acquisition by TCGI of additional interests in the Joint Yentures (including 100% of those interests
held by the Company), and (iii) the contribution o TCGI of $269.0 million aggregate principal amount of
indebtedness, plus accrued interest thereon, owed by TCGI 1o the Cable Stockholders (except that TCI retained &
$26 millioa subordinated note of TCGI), including $53.8 million principal amount and $4.1 million of accrued
inierest owed to the Company. In connection with the Reorganization, the Company received 25 6 million shares of
TCGH's Class B Common Stock (the “TCG] Class B Stock”). Each share of TOGH Class B Stock is entitled 10 vouag
power equivalent to ten shares of TOGI Class A Stock and is convertible, at the option of the halder, ino one share
of TCGI Class A Stock. The Company recorded a $40.6 million increase in its proportionate share of TCGI's net
assets as o gain from equity offering of affiliate in its 1996 consolidated statement of operations. After giving effect
to the Reorganization and the TCGI [PO, the Company owns 19.5% of the outstanding TCGI Class B Stock
representing a 19.1% voting interest and a 16.1% equity interest. The Company continues 10 account for its interest
in TCGI under the equity method. Assuming conversion of the TCGI Class B Siock held by the Company into TCGI
Class A Stock, the Company's investment would have a fair value of approximately $781.5 million based on the
quoted market price of the TCGI Class A Stock as of December 31, 1996

The $8.9 million decrease in other income from 1995 1o 1996 is primarily atinbutable 1o the seitlement of cenain
litigation in 1996 offset, in part, by an increase in foreign exchange gainas
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The $42.3 million and $51.3 million increases in income tax expense from 1995 10 1996 and 1994 10 1995 are
primarily atiributable to increases in QVC's income before income taxes and the consolidation of QVC for financial

reporting purposes in 1995,

The $44.3 million increase in minority interest income from 1994 to 1995 is attributable w0 minority interests in the
net income (loss) of QVC, Maclean Hunter and Comcast UK Cable.

In May 1996, the Company expensed unamortized debt acquisition costs of $1.8 million in connection with the
prepayment of a portion of a subsidiary’s outstanding debt, resulting in an extraondinary loss, net of tax of 310
million. The Company incurred debt extinguishment costs wtaling 39.4 million during 1993 in connection with the
refinancing of certain indebledness, resulting in an extraordinary loss, net of tax, of $6.1 million or $.02 per share.
During 1994, the Company paid premiums and expensed unamortized debt acquisition costs totaling $18.0 million,
primarily in connection with the redemption of its $150.0 million, 11-7/8% senior subordinated debentures due 2004,
resulting in an extraordinary loss, net of tax, of $11.7 million or $.05 per share.

For the years ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994, the Company s distributions from Garden State and carnings
before extraordinary items, income tax expense (benefit), equity in net losses of affiliates and fixed charges (interest
expense) were $770.0 million, $615.6 million and $269.8 million, respectively. Such earnings were adequate to cover
the Company's fixed charges, of $572.9 million, including capitalized interest of $32.1 million, for the year ended
December 31, 1996, Excluding the pre-tax gains of $177.2 million recognized in 1993 in connection with the
Heritage Transaction and sales of the Company's Nextel shares, such carnings were not adequate to cover the
Company's fixed charges of $531.1 million and $313.4 million for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994,
respectively, including capitalized interest of $6.4 million in 1995. The Company's fixed charges include non-cash
interest expense of $97.0 million, $60.2 million and $53.5 million for the years ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and
1994, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994, the inadequacy of these carnings to cover fixed
charges is primarily due to the substantial non-cash charges for depreciation expense, including the 1995 charge
associated with the Cellular Rebuild, and amortization expense.

The Company believes that its losses will not significantly affect the performance of its normal business activities
because of its existing cash, cash equivalents and shori-term investments, its ability to generate operating ‘ncome
before depreciation and amortization and its sbility 1o obtain external financing.

The Company believes that its operations are not materially affected by inflation.

Regulatory Developments

The Company has settled the majority of outstanding proceedings challenging its rates charged for regulated cable
services. In December 1995, the FCC adopted an order approving a negotiated settlement of rate complaints pending
sgainst the Company for cable programming service tiers ("CPSTs") which provided 36.6 million in refunds, plus
interest, given in the form of bill credits during 1996, 1o 1.3 million of the Company's cable subscribers. As pari
of the negotiated settlement, the Company agreed to forego certain inflation and external cost adjustments for systems
covered by its cost-of-service filings for CPSTs. The Company currently is seeking to justify rates for basic cable
services and equipment in certain of its cable systems in the State of Coanecticut on the basis of a cost-of-service
showing. The State of Connecticut has ordered the Company to reduce such rates and to make refunds 1o subscribers.
The Company has appealed the Connecticut decision to the FCC. Recent pronouncements from the FCC, which
generally support the Company's position on appeal, have caused the State of Connecticut (o reexamine its prios
ruling. While the Company cannot predict the outcome of this action, the Company believe: 'hat the ultimate
resolution of these pending regulatory matiers will not have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or liquidity.
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Board of Directors and Stockholders

Comcast Corporation
Philadelphia. Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Comcast Corporation and its subsidiaries as of
December 31, 1996 and 1995, and the relaied consolidaied statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficiency)
and of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1996, These financial siaiements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of QVC, Inc. ("QVC”) as of
and for the year ended December 31, 1996 and as of and for the eleven month period ended December 31, 1995 and
the consolidated Mnancial statements of Comcast International Holdings, Inc. (“International™) and the financial
statemnents of Garden State Cablevision L.P. ("Garden State”) for the year ended December 31, 1994, QVC and
International are consolidated with the Company. The Company's investment in Garden State is accounted for under
the equity method. QVC's financial statements reflect total assets constituting 17% and 20%, respectively, and total
revenues constituting 45% and 44%, respectively, of the Company's consolidated total assets and revenues as of and
for the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995. The Company's combined equity in the net losses of International
and Garden State for the year ended December 31, 1994 of $39 million is included in the Company's consolidated
financial statements. The financial stsiements of QVC, International and Garden Siate were audited by other auditors
whose reports have been fumnished 1o us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in the
Company's consolidated financial statements for QVC, International and Garden Staie for the periods specified
above, is based solely upon the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a lest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as cvaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and
the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, such consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Comcast Corporation and its subsidiaries as of December 31,
1996 and 1995, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 1996 in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Deloitie & Touche LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 28, 1997
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
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COMCAST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
{Amounts in millions, except per share data)
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COMCAST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
{Dollars in millions)
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COMCAST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
(Dollars in millions, except per share data)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1995 AND 1994

1.

BUSINESS

Comcast Corporation and its subsidiaries (the "Company”) is principally engaged in the development,
management and operation of wired and wircless telecommunications and the provision of content.

Wired telecommunications includes cable and telecommunications services in the United States (“US”) and the
United Kingdom (“UK"). The Company's consolidated domestic cable operations served approximately 4.3
million subscribers and passed approximately 7.0 million homes as of December 31, 1996, The Company owns
a 50% interest in Garden State Cablevision L.P. ("Garden State™), a cable communicalions company scrving
more than 204,000 subscribers and passing more than 294,000 homes in the Siate of New Jersey. In the UK,
a subsidiary of the Company, Comcas UK Cable Pantners Limited ("Comcast UK Cable™), holds ownership
interests in four cable and telephony businesses that collectively have the potential to serve over 1.6 million
homes.

Wireless telecommunications includes cellular services, personal communications services provided through the
Company's investiient in Sprint Spectrum and direct 10 home satellite television through the Company’s equity
interest in and distribution amangements with Primestar Partners, LP. ("Primestar”). The Company provides
cellular telephone communications services pursuant 1o licenses granied by the Federal Communications
Commission ("FOC”) in markets with a population of more than 8.4 million, including the area in and around
the City of Philadelphia. Pennsylvania, the State of Delaware and a significant portion of the State of New

Jersey.

Content is provided through QVC, Inc. and its subsidiaries ("QVC”), an electronic retailer, Comcast Content and
Communication Corporation ("C3") and other investments, including Comcast Spectacor, LP. {"Comcast-
Spectacor”) and E! Entertainment Television, inc. ("E! Entertainment”). Through QVC, the Company markets
a wide variety of products and reaches, on a full and part-time basis, over 61 million homes in the US, over five
million homes in the UK and over four million homes in Germany.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all wholly owned or controlled
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions among consolidated entities have been
climinated. Included in the Company's consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 1996 and 1995 are net
assets of foreign subsidiaries of $143.7 million and $115.2 million, respectively.

Managemeni's Use of Extimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitics a1 the date of the financial stastements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Values

The estimated fair value amounts presenied in these notes to consolidated financial statements have been
determined by the Company using available market information and appropriate methodologies. However,
m:idmbhhﬂgmmhmquhdiniwiunwiHMMdeuhpthtmlmufrm value. The
estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could realize in a
current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have
a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. Such fair value estimates are based on pertineat
information available to management as of December 31, 1996 and 1993, and have ol been comprehensively
revalued for purposes of these consolidated financial statements since such dates
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1995 AND 1994 (Continued)

Cash Eguivalents and Short-term Investments

Cash equivalents consist principally of US Government obligations, commercial paper. repurchase agreements
and certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less when purchased. Shori-lerm investments
consist principally of US Government obligations, commercial paper, repurchase agreements and certificates of
mummummmmmm.mminlmmﬁmcﬂmmr.
cash equivalents and short-term investments, classified as available for sale secuniies, approximate thewr faur
values. As of December 31, 1996, shori-term investments also include the Compiny’s mvestment in Time
Wamner, Inc. ("Time Warner”) common stock (see Note 4).

Inventories - Electronic Retailing
Inventories, consisting primarily of products held for sale, are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is
determined by the first-in, firsi-oul method.

Investments, Principally in Affiliates

Investments in enatities in which the Company has the ability 1o exercise significant influence over the operating
and financial policies of the invesice and investments in partnerships which are not controlled by the Company
are accounted for under the equity method. Equity method investments are recorded at original cost and adjusted
periodically 1o recognize the Company's proportionate share of the investees’ net income or losses afier the date
of investment, additional contributions made and dividends received. The differences between the Company’s
recorded investments and its proporiionate interests in the book value of the invesiees’ nel assets are being
amortized 10 equity in net income or loss, primarily over a period of twenty years, which is consistent with the
estimated lives of the underlying assets,

Unrestricted publicly traded investments, including options to purchase such securities, are classified as available
for sale and are recorded at their fair value, with unrealized gains or losses resulting from changes in fair value
betwoen measurement dates recorded as a component of stockholders’ equity (deficiency)

Restricted publicly traded investments and investments in privately held companies are staled at cost, adjustcd
for any known diminution in value.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment &re stated at cost. Depreciation is provided by the straight-line method over estimated
uszful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements B-40 years
Operating facilities 5-20 vears
Orher equipment 2:10 years

Improvements that extend asset lives are capitalized; other repairs and maintenance charges are expensed as
incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation applicable to assels sold or retired are removed from
the accounts and the gain or loss on disposition is recognized as a component of depreciation expense.

Dieferred Charges

Franchise and license acquisition costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over their legal or estimated useful
lives of 12 1o 40 years. The excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired is being amortized on a
straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of 20 10 40 years.

Valuasion of Long-Lived Asseis

The Company periodically evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets, including property and equipment
and deferred -harges, using objective methodologies. Such methodologies include evaluations based on the cash
flows generated by the underlying nasets or other determinants of fair value

- b -



COMCAST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1995 AND 1994 (Continued)

Fareign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of the Company's foreign subsidiaries, where the functional currency is the local currency.
are translated into US dollars at the December 31 exchange rate. The related translation adjustments are recorded
as a scparate component of stockholders' equity (deficiency). Revenucs and expenses are translated using
average exchange rates prevailing during the year. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included
in other (income) expense.

Revenue Recognition

Service income is recognized as service is provided. Credit risk is managed by disconnecting services to cable
and cellular customers who are delinquent. Net sales from electronic retailing are recognized at the time of
shipment to customers, An allowance for returned merchandise is provided as a percentage of sales based on
historical experience. The return provision was approximately 21 percent of groas sales for each of the years
ended December 31, 1996 and 1995,

Siock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 1996, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS") No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” SFAS No. 12} encourages, but does not
require, companies 10 record compensation cost for stock-based compensation plans at fair value. The Company
has elected to continue 1o account for stock-based compensation in accordance with Accounting Principles Board
("APB") Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock lssued to Employees,” and related interpretations, as permitted
by SFAS 123, Compensation expense for stock options is measured as the sxcess, if any, of the quoted market
price of the Company’s stock at the date of the grant over the amount an employee must pay 1o acquire the
stock. Compensation expense for restricted stock awards is recorded annually based on the quoted market price
of the Company's stock at the date of the grant and the vesting period. Compensation expense for stock
appreciation rights is recorded annually based on the changes in quoted market prices of the Company's stock
or other determinants of fair value at the end of the year (see Noie 6).

Pastretirement and Postemployment Beneflis
The estimated costs of retiree benefits and benefits for former or inactive employees, after employment but

before retirement, are accrued and recorded as a charge o operations during the years the employees provide
services.

Investment Income

Investment income includes interest income and gains, net of losses, on the sales of marketable secunitics and
long-lerm investments. Gross realized gains and losses are recognized using the specific identification method
(see Note 4). In 1996 and 1995, investment income also includes impairment losses resulting from adjustments
10 the net realizable value of cerain of the Company's long-term investmenis.

Capitalized Inferest

Interest is capitalized as part of the historical cost of acquiring qualifying assets, including invesunents in equity
method invesiees while the investee has activities in progress necessary to commence its planned principal
operations. Capitalized Interest for the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995 was $32.1 million and 36 4
million, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences between the financial
reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company's assets and lisbilities and expected benefits of utilizing net
operating loss carryforwands. The impact on deferred taxes of changes in tax rates and laws, if any, applied to
the years during which temporary differences are expecied to be settled, are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements in the period of enactment.
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Loss per Share

Fu:m-dd December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994, the Company’s common stock equivalents have an
antidilutive effect on the Joss per share and, therefore, have not been used in determining the total weighted
average number of common shares outstanding. Fully diluted loss per share for 1996, 1995 and 1994 is
antidilutive and, therefore, has not been presented.

Derivative Financial Insirumenis

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, including interest rate exchange agreements (“Swaps”),
interest rate cap agreements ("Caps”), interest rate collar agreements ("Collan”) and foreign exchange option
contracts ("FX Options”), to manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange
rales.

Swaps, Caps and Collars are maiched with either fixed or variable rate debt and periodic cash payments are
sccrued on a settlement basis as an adjustment 1o interest eapense. Any premiums associated with these
instruments are amortized over their term and realized gains or losses as & result of the termination of the
instruments are deferred and amortized over the shoner of the remaining term of the instrument or the
underlying debt. Writien options are marked-to-market on a current basis in the Company's consolidated
statement of operations. Cains and losses related to qualifying hedges of foreign currency denominated debt are
offset against the translation adjustment included in stockholders’ equity (deficiency). Other FX Options are
marked-to-market on & current basis in the Company's consolidated statement of operations.

The Company does not hold or issue any derivative financial instruments for trading purposes and is not a pary
to leveraged instruments (see Note 5). The credil risks associated with the Company's derivative financial
instrumenis are controlled through the evaluation and monitoring of the creditworthiness of the counterpariies.
Although the Company may be exposed to losses in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties, the
Company does nol expect such losses, if any, to be significant.

Sale of Stock by a Subsidiary or Equity Method Investee

Changes in the Company's proportionate share of the underlying equity of a consolidated subsidiary or equity
method invesiee which result from the issuance of additional securities by such subsidiary or investee are
recognized as gains or losses in the Company's consolidated stastement of operations unless gain realization is
not assured in the circumatances. Oains for which realizstion is not assured are credited directly 1o additional

capital.

New Accounting Pronowncementy

In June 1996, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities,” which will be adopted by the
Company in 1997, as required by this statement. Under the provisions of this statement, afler a transfer of
financial assets, an enlity recognizes the financial and servicing assets it controls and the liabilities it has
incurred, derecognizes financial assets when control has been surrendered and derecognizes liabilities when
extinguished. The Company does not expect that adoption of this standard will have a significant impact on it
financial position or results of operations.

In February 1997, the FASB issued SFAS No. 128, "Earnings Per Share.” This standard. which clarifies and
supersedes the current authoritative accounting literature regarding the computation and disclosure of earnings
per share, is applicable to interim and annual periods ending afier December 15, 1997 and may not be applied
earlier. The Company does not expect adoption of this standard to result in significant changes (o the Company’s
calculation or presentation of loss per share.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years' consolidated financial statements to conform 1o those
classifications used in 1996,

- 4B -




COMCAST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1995 AND 1994 (Continued)

3. ACQUISITIONS AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

E! Entertainment

As of December 31, 1996, the Company owned a 10.4% interest in E! Enlerainment, an enleriainment
programming service that currently is distributed 1o more than 42 million subscribers. The Company has the
right, by virtue of various agreements among the shareholders of E! Entertainment, to purchwse an additional
58.4% interest in E! Entertainment from Time Wamer for $321.1 million. In January 1997, the Company and
The Walt Disncy Company ("Disney”) entered into an agreement to form a new limited lisbility company
{"Newco”) that will be owned 50.1% by the Company and 49.9% by Disney. Puruani 10 the agreement, the
Company will contribute to Newco its 10.4% interest in E! Entenainment. the right to exercise its oplion 10
purchase the Time Warner interest and $132.3 million in cash. Disney will contribute 1o Newco 3188 8 million
in cash, Newco will use the cash contributed by the Company and Disney 1o purchase the Time Wamner interest.
Following such purchase, Newco will own a 68.8% interest in E! Entertainment. To fund the cash portion of
its contribution, the Company will borrow $132.3 million from Disney in the form of two 10-year, 7% notes
(the "Disney Notes™). These transactions (collectively, the "E! Acquisition™) are expected to close in the fird
quarter of 1997, subject to regulatory approval and cenain other conditions.

Scripps Cable

In November 1996, the Company acquired the cable television operations ("Scripps Cable”) of The E.W. Scripps
Company (“E.W. Scripps”) in exchange for 93.048 million shares of the Company's Class A Special Common
Stock, par value $1.00 per share (the "Class A Special Common Stock”™), valued at $1.552 billion (the "Scripps
Acquisition”). Scripps Cable passed more than 1.3 million homes and served more than B00,000 subscribers as
of December 31, 1996, with 60% of its subscribers localed in Sacramento, California and Chattanooga snd
Knoxville, Tennessee. The Company has accounted for the Scripps Acquisition under the purchase method and
Scripps Cable was consolidated with the Company effective November 1, 1996. As the consideration given in
exchange for Scripps Cable was shares of Class A Special Common Stock, the Scripps Acquisition had no
significant impact on the Companys consolidated stalement of cash flows.

The allocation of the purchase price 10 the assets and lisbilities of Scripps Cable is preliminary pending a final
appraisal and the final purchase price adjustment between the Company and EW, Scripps. The terms of the
Scripps Acquisition provide for, among other things, the indemnification of the Company by EW. Scripps for
certain liabilities, including tax liabilities, relating to Scripps Cable prior 10 the acquisition date.

Comcant-Speclacor

In July 1996, the Company completed its acquisition (the "Sports Venture Acquisition™) of a 66 interest in the
Philadelphia Flyers Limited Partnership, a Pennsylvania limited partnership ("PFLEP"), the assets of which, after
giving effect 1o the Sports Venture Acquisition, consist of (i) the National Basketball Association ("NBA")
franchise 1o own and operate the Philadelphia 76ers basketball team and related assets (the “Sixers™), (ii) the
National Hockey League ("NHL") franchise to own and operate the Philadelphia Flyers hockey ieam and related
assets, and (ili) two sdjscent arenas, leasehold interests in and development rights related 1o the land underlying
the arenas and other adjacent parcels of land located in Philsdelphia, Pennsylvania (collectively, the " Arenas™)
Concurrent with the completion of the Sports Venture Acquisition, PFLP was renamed Comcast Spectacor, L P

{"Comcast-Spectacor”).

The Sports Venture Acquisition was completed in two steps. In April 1996, the Company purchased the Sixers
for $125.0 million in cash plus assumed net lisbilities of $11.0 million through a partnership controlled by the
Company. To complete the Sports Venture Acquisition, in July 1996, the Company contribuled its intorest in
the Sixers, exchanged approximately 3.5 million shares of the Company's Class A Special Common Stock and
£,170 shares of the Company’s newly issued 5% Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock” -
see Note 6), and paid $15.0 million in cash for its current interest in Comcast-Speciacor. The remaining 34%
interest in Comcast-Spectacor is owned by a group, including the former majority owner of PFLP, who also
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manages Comcast-Spectacor (the “Minonity Group®). In connection with the Sports Venture Acquisition.
Comcast-Speciacor assumed the outstanding liabilities relating 1o the Sixers and the Arenas, including =
morigage obligation of $155.0 million. The Company accounts for its interest in Comcast-Spectacor under the
equity method. The issuance of the Preferred Siock and the Class A Special Common Stock in the Sports
Venture Acquisition had no impact on the Company’s consolidated statement of cash flows due to their non-cash

Sprint Spectrum

The Company, Tele-Communications, Inc. ("TCI"), Cox Communications, Inc. ("Con,” and together with the
Company and TCI, the "Cable Parents”) and Sprint Corporation (“Sprint,” and together with the Cable Parents,
the "Parents”), and certain subsidiaries of the Parenis (the "Partner Subsidiaries™) engage in the wireless
communications business through a limited pannership known as “Sprint Spectrum,” a development stage
enterprise. The Company owns 15% of Sprint Spectrum and accounts for its investment in Spant Spectrum
under the equity method (see Note 4).

Sprint Spectrum was the successful bidder for 29 personal communications services (TPCS™) hicenses 1n the
auction conducted by the FCC from December 1994 through mid-March 1995 The purchase price for the
licenses was $2.11 billion, all of which has been paid to the FCC. In addition, Sprint Spectrum has invested,
and may continue 10 invest, in other entitics that hold PCS licenses. may acquire PCS licenses in future FOC
auctions or from other license holders and may affiliate with other license holders,

The Partner Subsidiaries have commitied to contribute $4.2 billion in cash to Spnint Spectrum through 19949, of
which the Company's share is $630.0 million. Of this funding requirement. the Company has made total cash
contributions 10 Sprint Spectrum of $452.8 million through December 31, 1996 and issued a $105.0 million
guaranty on a portion of Sprint Spectrum’s outstanding debt. The Company anticipates that Sprint Spectrum’s
capital requirements over the next several years will be significant. Requirements in excess ol committed capital
are planned 1o be funded by Sprint Spectrum through external financing. including, but not limited 1o, vendos
financing, bank financing and securities offered 1o the public. In August 1996, Sprint Spectrum sold $750.0
million principal amount st maturity of Senior Notes and Senior Discount Notes due in 2006 in a public offening.
In October 1996, Sprint Spectrum closed three credit agreements which provided 32 .0 billion in bank financing
and $1.1 billion in vendor financing. The timing of the Company's remaining capital contributions 10 Sprint
Spectrum is dependent upon a number of factors, including Sprint Spectrum’s working capital requirements. The
Company anticipates funding iis remaining capital commitments to Sprint Spectrum through its cash flows from
operating activities, its existing cash, cash equivalents, shori-lerm investments and lines of credit or other
enternal financing, or by a combination of these sources

ove

In February 1995, the Company and TCI acquired all of the outstanding stock of QVC nol previously owned
by them (approximately 65% of such shares on a lully diluted basis) fiw 346, in cash, per share (the "QVC
Acquisition”), representing a total cost of approximately $1.4 billion. The QVC Acquisition, including the
exercise of certain warrants held by the Company, was financed with cash contnbutions from the Company and
TC1 of $296.3 million and $6.6 million, respectively, borrowings of 31.1 billion under a $1.2 billion QVC credil
facility and existing cash and cash equivalents held by QVC Following the acquisition, the Company and TC]
owned, through their respective subsidiaries, 57 45% and 42 55%, respectively, of QVC. The Company, through
a management agreement, is responsible for the day to day operations of QYC. The Company has accounted
for the QVC Acquisition under the purchase method and QVIC was consolidaied with the Company elffective
February 1, 1995,
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Maclean Hunter
In December 1994, the Company, through Comcast MHCP Holdings, L.1.C. (the "LLC"), acquired the U5 cable

television and aliemate access operations of Maclean Hunter Limited ("Maclean Hunter”) from Rogers
Communications Inc. and all of the outstanding shares of Barden Communications, Inc. (collectively, such
acquisitions are referred 10 as the "Maclean Hunter Acquisition”) for approximaiely $1.2 billion in cash. The
Company and the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”) invested $305.6 million and
$250.0 million, respectively, in the LLC, which is owned $5% by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and 45% by CalPERS, and is managed by the Company. The balance of the Maclean Hunter Acquisition was
financed through borrowings under a credit facility of a wholly owned subsidiary of the LLC. The Company
has accounted for the Maclean Hunter Acquisition under the purchase method and Maclean Hunter was
consolidated with the Company effective December 22, 1994

Cellular Rebuild

In 1995, the Company's cellular division purchased $172.0 million of swilching and cell site equipment which
replaced the existing switching and cell site equipment (the “Cellular Rebuild”). The Company substantially
completed the Cellular Rebuild during 1995. Accordingly, during 1995, the Company charged $110.0 million
to depreciation expense which represented the difference between the net book value of the equipment replaced
and the residual value realized upon its disposal.

Unaudited Pro Forma Information
The following unaudited pro forma information for the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995 has been

presented as If the Scripps Acquisition and the QVC Acquisition had occurred on January 1, 1995 This
unaudited pro forma information is based on historical results of operations adjusied for acquisition costs and,
in the opinion of management, is not necessarily indicative of what the results would have been had o2+
Company operated the acquired entities since January 1, 1993 (dollars in millions, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

1994 1995
REVEIEE & v aaiiin e v a8 a wherat e e et e e i H.I90 60 $3.772.0
Loss before extraordinary ftems . . . ... .............. iMm3) {H1.5)
Netloss ....covivrnnes e T B B (80.3) (R9.6)
Netloss pershare ... ... ... ....-.- IS eF I TEY (.24) (.27)
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4, INVESTMENTS, PRINCIPALLY IN AFFILIATES

December 31,

1993

(Dollasz in millions)
Equitymethod .. .............-. o $936.4 SHTER
Public companies . ........ ... oo 165.5 1701
Privately held companes . ... ................ 758 518
$1.177.7 $906 4
e

Equiry Method

The Company records its proportionate interests in the net income (loss) of substantially all of its investees three
months in arears, other than the UK Investees. The Company’s recorded investments exceed its proportionate
interests in the book value of the investees’ net assets by $233.2 million as of December 31, 1996 (primarily
related to the investments in Comcasi-Spectacor and Sprint Spectrum). Such excess is being amortized to equity
in net income or loss, primarily over a period of twenty years, which is consistent with the estimated lives of
the underlying assets. The original cost of investments accounied for under the equity method totaled $1.241
billion and $962.2 million as of December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively. Summarized financial information

for the Company's equity method investees for 1996, 1995 and 1994 is presented below (in millions).

S UK
Spectum  TOOI  lavewess  QVC Cher  Combused
Year Ended December 31, 1996
Combined Resylts of O \
Revenues, Bel . .. ... .....o00oneen $0.1  $1929 %1552 $4400 $TER2
Operating, selling. general and
sdministrative expenses ... ... ... .. 208.0 180.9 140.9 4860 10158
Depreciation and amortization . . . ... .. 1.9 5712 516 6.0 176.7
Operating Ioss . . .. ............... (2098) (452) (433) (1060)  (404.3)
Net beg 1) . cvvvsvivpannssansas (344.9) (B4.8) (712.2) (14086)  (642.7)
c : .
Equity in current period net loss . ... .. ($51.7)  (815.1) (328.4) (5459) ($1413)
Amaontization income (expense) . ...... 0.6 (1.1) (0.3) (2.7 {1.49)
Total equity innet loss ... ........ ($51.1) _($162) _($289) (548.6) (5144 H)
Year Ended December 31, 1995:
Combined Results of O |
Revenues, pel . ... ....ccoiieicaas 3 $1B0.5 $1417 259 S$1l44 510648
Operating, selling. general and
sdministrative expenses . .. ... ... .. 216 I67.8 156.6 154.7 MIH |IMAS
and amortization . .. ... .. 0.2 44 4 52.2 o 576 674
Operating (loss) income .. .......... (218) (LT (651)  S82  (910) (1514)
Mel (loss) income (1) .. .. ... .00 (31.2) (72.1) (91.2) 8.3 (116.1) (2K2.3)
Equity in current period net (loss)
INCOME . ..ot iannnnn s ($4.7)  (3138) (3$37.5) 1 (329.8) (K13}
Amortization (expense) income . .. .. .. (0.5) (2.1) 1.2 (1.9) [ER]]
Total equity in net (loss) income . . .. __(852) _(315.7) $17.9) 555 (331.7) _(SRb6)
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Sprimt UK
Specypm  JOUI  levesees  QVC Other  Combweed

Year Ended December 31, 1994:

Revenbied, BEL . . .. ....coonrasssns $1258 19716 313367 $1387 51,6988
Operating, sclling, general and
administrative expenses . . .. ... ..., 1288 1250 1,1382 1124 15244
and amortization . ....... n3 39 449 541 1544
Operating (loas) income . ........... (25.3) (60.3) 1536 (48.0) 200
Net (loss) income (1) .. ............ (39.6) (658) 41.1 (2.7 (137.0)
Equity in current period net (loss)
IO oo i o e e s R ($7.3) ($25.1) 361 ($142) (3403)
Amortization (expense) income . . .. .. . 2.1) 49 (3.4) (0.6}
Total equity in net (Joss) income . ... (59.4) (§25.1) $11.2 ($17.6) (3409)
Speiat UK
Specum  JOOI  Javesioss Qvc Ocher  Combined
Combined Financial Position
As of December 31, 1996
Current assels .. . ... .cocvvvnmnnnns $4775 $9888  $1383 $2927 518973
Noncurmenl BESEIs . . . . .. ..o v e e ans 29218 1,0371 T4 12622 59125
Current liabilitles . . . .............. 1131 2003 204.1 2805 B01.0
Noncurrent liabilities . ............. 6828 10110 4276 11808 330213
As of December 31, 1995
Current mssels .. . .......««-- S 1.3 $598 $257.2 $1189 41372
Moncurment assels . . . ... ... TR 22428 6949 663.0 GAT6 42881
Current liabilities . . .. ............. 0.1 1244 107.1 66.8 1184
Noncurrent liabilities .. . ... ........ 400.0 565.9 T17.2 1,683

(1) Net (loss) income also represents (loss) income from continuing openations before extraordinary items and cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principle.

Sprini Spectrum. The Company made its initial investment in 1994 and, as of December 31, 1996, holds a
;MﬂndlimimdpmmmiplmdI!linsﬁmsmm.lunﬂmmmwmthwimlm
communications business (see Note 3). The investment in Sprint Spectrum is accounted for under the equity
nmlndhlldmlhm:'lmm}pimmmdiuunmnmhnmﬂ-putmﬂp'lbn-d
of direciors.

TCGI. Through June 1996, the Company held investments in Teleport Communications Group, Inc. ("TCGI"),
TCG Partners and certain local joint ventures (the “Teleport Joint Ventures”) managed by TCGI and TCG
Partners. TCGI is one of the largest competitive allernative access providers in the US in terms of route miles.
The Company had a 20.0% investment in TCGI and interests in the Teleport Joint Ventures ranging from |12.4%
1o 20.3%. On June 27, 1996, TOGI sold approximately 27 million shares of its Class A Common Stock (the
“TCGI Class A Stock™), for $16 per share, in an initial public offering (the “TCGI IPO"). In connection with
the TOG! IPO, TCGI, the Company and subsidiaries of Cox, TCl and Continental Cablevision ("Continental™
and collectively with Cox, TCI and the Company, the “Cable Stockholders”) entered into an agreement puniant
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to which TOGI was reorganized (the "Reorganization”). The Reorganization consisted of, among other dhings:
{l]lh:l:quiﬁﬁnnhyTCﬂquTmmm}lhequhﬂhﬂbyTCGldmimuuuinﬂleTﬂeput
Joint Ventures (including 100% of those interests held by the Company); and (iii) the contribution to TCGI of
$269.0 million aggregate principal amount of indebtedness, plus accrued interest thereon, owed by TCGI to the
Cable Stockholders (except that TCI retained a $26 million subordinated note of TCGI), including $53.8 million
principal amount and $4.1 million of accrued interest owed to the Company. In conmection with the
Reorganization, the Company received 25.6 million shares of TCGI's Class B Commeon Stock (the “TCGI Class
B Stock”). Each share of TCGI Class B Stock is entitled o voting power equivalent to ten shares of TOGI Class
A Stock and is convertible, at the option of the holder, into one share of TCGI Class A Stock. The Company
recorded a $40.6 million increase in its proportionate share of TCGI's net assets as a gain from equity offering
of affiliate in its 1996 consolidated statement of operations (the "TOGI Gain™). After giving effect 1o the
Reorganization and the TOGI IPO, the Company owns 19.5% of the outstanding TCGI Class B Stock

g & 19.1% voting interest and a 16.1% equity interest. The Company continues to account for its
interest in TCG! under the equity method bared upon its voting interest maintained through the TCGI Class B
Stock, its representation on TCOI's board of directors and its participation in a TCGI stockholder agreement
granting certain rights to a control group. Assuming conversion of the TCGI Class B Stock held by the Company
into TOGI Class A Stock, the Company’s investment would have a fair value of approximately $781.5 million,
based on the quoted market price of the TCGI Class A Stock as of December 31, 1996,

UK Investees. As of December 31, 1996, Comcast UK Cable, a consolidated subsidiary of the Company, holds
2 27.5% interest and & 50.0% interest in Birmingham Cable Corporation Limited and Cable London PLC. In
addition, Comcast UK Cahle has historically held investments in Cambridge Holding Company Limiled
("Cambridge Cable") and Cable Programme Partners-1 Limited Partnership ("CPP-17). In March 1996, Comcast
UK Cable purchased the 50.0% interest in Cambridge Cable that it had not previously owned for cash and
spproximately 8.9 million of its Class A Common Shares (the "Cambridge Acquisition”). Following the
Cambridge Acquisition, Comcast UK Cable owns 100.0% of Cambridge Cable and has consolidated the financial
position and results of operations of Cambridge Cable beginning on March 31, 1996. During 1995, CPP-1, which
previously developed and distributed cable programming in the UK, sold its only channel and wound down its
operations to a minimal level of activity. As a result, the Company reduced the carrying value of its 16.4%
interest in CPP-1 to zero.

In September 1994, Comcast UK Cable consummated an initial public offering (the "IPO”) of 15.0 million of
its Class A Common Shares for net proceeds of $209.4 million. As a result of the IPO and related transactions,
the Company recorded an increase in its proportionate share of Comcast UK Cable’s net assets as an increase
in additional capital of $59.3 million. In addition, as a result of the Cambridge Acquisition, the Company
recorded the increase in its proportionate share of Comcast UK Cable's nel assets as an increase in additional
capital of $11.6 million. The increases in the Company’s proportionate share of Comcast UK Table’s nel assets
as & result of these transactions were recorded directly 1o additional capital since gain realization was not assured
based on the star-up nature of the operations of Comcast UK Cable and its affiliates. As a result of these
transactions, the Company beneficially owns 23.7% of the total outstanding Comcast UK Cable common shares
Because the Class A Common Shares are entitled 10 one vote per share and the Class B Common Shares are
entitled to ten voles per share, the Company, through its ownership of the Class B Common Shares, contrcls
77.6% of the total voting power of all outstanding Comcast UK Cable common shares and continues 1o
consolidate Comcast UK Cable.

QVC. Through January 31, 1995, QVC's fiscal year end was January 31, and therefore, the Company recorded
its equity interest in QVIC's net income two months in arrears. For the year ended December 11, 19935, the
Company recorded its proportionate interest in QVC's net income for the period from November 1, 1994 through
January 31, 1995, Such results were not previously recorded by the Company since QVC's results of operations
were recorded two months in armears. QVC's results of operations and financial position, subsequent to January
31, 1995, are not separately presented as QVC was consolidated with the Company effective February |, 1995

+“4
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(see Note 3).The summarized financial information for the ycar ended December 31, 1994 includes financial
information for QVC for the twelve months eaded October 31, 1994,

Other. The Company's 13 other equity invesiees include investments in wired iclecommunications (including
Garden Stale - see Note 1), wircless telecommunications and conlent providers (including Comcast-Spectacor -
mﬂmil.mmmmmmhmdhthqum
in certain of its equity method invesices. The equity method of accounting is utilized for these investments based
mhtmﬂinm{lmﬂwmmhmm.pﬂmpﬁmhnm
|nmm.mmmmm;mmﬂmmmrm.lnmm
cunpnny'lﬁ&imhwspmitmmmrwnkhmhymdmdliﬂﬂuwﬁy
dmﬂnﬂmdnmﬂmww:mﬂhu,m&mmydmmmuumm
equity method investments to be individually significant 10 its consolidated financial position, results of

or liquidity. ﬁmﬁw.hmyhmimhﬂwmﬁwﬂﬂnndﬂwfw
these entities in this filing on Form 10-K.

E;nnptfuSﬁum{mmuhmydﬂmhumyﬂumﬂﬁ;niﬁmmm
commitments with respect to any of its investments. However, 1o the extent the Company does not fund its
investees” capital calls, it exposes itself to dilution of its ownership interests.

Public Companies
The following is & summary of the Company's investments in unrestricted publicly-traded companies (dollars
in millions):

Decomber 11, |94 December 11, 1993
Carrying  Unsalized Carying  Unrealised
Yalwe  Oain (Loss) Valge  Qain (Low)
Nextel Communications, Inc.
(Mextel™) (1) . cvv v in i $754 $142 $30.2 ($0.9)
Turner Broadcasting System, Inc.
Flar v 7 13 § ¢ ) (AR 447 358
OB 2.0 5000 01 v 8 5 0 R 90.1 (9.0) 952 (0.7
$1655 852 $170.1 _ $342

= -

(1) As of December 31, 1996 and 1995, the Company held 3.3 million and 693,000 shares of Nextel common
stock, respectively. The investment includes options, which eapire in Seplember 1997, to acquire an
additional 25.0 million shares of Nextel common stock at $16 per share, As of December 31, 1996, these
options have been adjusted to their fair value of $32.6 million, as required by Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles issued during 1996, reflecting an unrealized gain of $12.6 million. As of December
11, 1995, these options were recorded at their cost of $20.0 million and had an estimated fair value of $99.7
million. At December 31, 1995, the associated unrealized gain was not reflected in the above table or in
the Company's consolidated balance sheet. In 1997, the Company sold these options to Nexte! for $25.0
million.

(2) The Company's investment in TBS was exchanged for shares of Time Warner during 1990, The above table
excludes the Company's investment in Time Warner as of December 31, 1996 (see below).

In February 1996, in connection with certain preemptive rights of the Company under previously existing
agreements with Nextel, the Company purchased an additional B.16 million shares, classified as long-term
investments available for sale, of Nexiel common stock at $12.25 per share, for a total cost of $99.9 million,
During the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, the Company sold 5.6 million shares and | 1.3 million
shares, respectively, of Nextel common stock for $105.4 million and $212 6 million, respectively, and recognized

. 5% .
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pre-tax gains of $35.4 million and $36.2 million, respectively, as investment income in its consolidated vtatement
of operations.

The Company received 1.36 million shares of Time Wamer common sock (the “Time Warner Stock™) in
exchange (the “Exchange™) for all of the shares of TBS stock (the “TBS Stock™) held by the Company as a result
of the merger of Time Warner and TBS in October 1996. As a result of the Exchange, the Company recognized
a gain of $47.3 million in the fourth quaner of 1996, representing the difference between the Company’s
historical cost basis in the TBS Stock of $8.9 million and the new basis for the Company's investment in Time
Warner Stock of $56.2 million, which was based on the closing price of the Time Warner Stock on the merger
date of $41.375 per share. In December 1996 and January 1997, the Company sold 92,300 shares and 1.27
million shares, respectively, of the Time Warner Stock, representing the Company’s entire interest in Time
Warner, for $3.7 million and 348 6 million, respectively, As of December 11, 1996, the 1.27 muilion shares of
Time Warner Stock held by the Company were recorded at fair value of $47 4 million and included in short-term
investments in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

In January 1995, the Company exchanged its investments in Heritage Communications, Inc. with TCT for 133
million publicly-traded Class A common shares of TCl with a fair market value of $290.0 million. Shonly
thereafier, the Company sold 9.1 million unrestricted TCl shares for total proceeds of $1BR.1 million
(collectively, the “Heritage Transaction™). As a result of these transactions, the Company recognized a pre-tax
gain of $141.0 million as investment income in its 1995 consolidated statement of operations

Privately Held Companies
It is not practicable 1o estimate the fair value of the Company's investments in privately held companies due
to a lack of quoted market prices and excessive costs involved in determining such fair value
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5. LONG-TERM DEBT
December 11,

199 1993
{Dollars in millions)
Notes payable to banks and insurance companies, due

in installments through 2004 . ... ... .00 ann vl $4.6625 $4476.5
Senior participating redeemable zero coupon notes, due 2000 .. . . .. 4479 402 4
11.20% Senlor discount debentures, due 2007 ... ......... 31392 LT
10% Subordinated debentures, due 2003 . . .. ... ... 126.6 1246
10-1/4% Senior subordinated debentures, due 2001 .. ... ......... 125.0 1250
9.3/8% Senior subordinated debentures, due 2005 . .. ... ... .. 250.0 250.0
9.1/8% Senior subordinated debentures, due 2006 . .. ... ... 2500 T 2500
9.1/2% Senlor subordinated debentures, due 2008 . ... ........... 200.0 2000
10-5/8% Senior subordinated debentures, due 2012 .. ... .. .. . 300.0 3000
Convertible subordinated debi:
1-3/8% / 5-172% Siep-up convertible subordinated
debentures, due 2005 . ... ... i i e 250.0 2500
1-1/8% Discount convertible subordinated debentures, due 2007 . . . 34123 3127.%
Other debt, due in installments principally through 2000 . . ...... .. 9.7 189
73322 7.029.2
Less cumenl poFtIOn - . ... .cicisassaaasaan s en ey 2295 RS 4

i'.-' m; 7 EI“E ﬁ

The maturities of long-term debl outstanding as of December 31, 1996 for the four ycars after 1997 are as
follows:

L R P oA A P e $671.5
DO o e e 4625
PO i e 668, |
11| 1, 2624

Zere Notes i
The senior participating redeemable zero coupon notes, due 2000 (the “Zero Notes™), have an aggregaie face
amouni payable al maturity of $629.4 million, accreting at 11% per annum If, st maturity, or an carlier
redemption date, BSE.WMNMinmm.dwpivnmnmu.udeuminud
by applicable procedures, of the Company's cellular subsidiaries is greater than the accreted value plus certain
premiums, then such greater amount will constitute the redemption price. The holders of the Zero Notes have
the right, upon request of the holders of the majority of the notes, 1o require the Company to redeem the Zero
Noles al any time on or after March 3, 1998, The accreted value of the Zero Notes, without giving effect to the
aliernative formula ba: .d on the private market value of the cellular business, of 34479 million as of
December 31,1996 has been presented above as a 1998 maturity. As of December 31, 1996, $209.7 million
-ncn-udvﬂudﬂ!?ﬂuﬂmhpljlhl:.Hquwr‘inp!hn.ciﬂwincnhwﬂuﬂmy'lm
A Special Common Stock.
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2007 Discownt Debentures

In November 19935, Comcast UK Cable received net proceeds of $291.1 million from the sale of $517.3 mullion
principal amount at maturity of its 11.20% senior discount debentures due 2007 (the “2007 Discount
Debentures™). Interest accretes on the 2007 Discount Debentures at 11 20% per annum, compounded semi-
annually from November 15, 1995 to November 15, 2000, afier which daie interest will be paid in cash on each
May 15 and November 15, through November 15, 2007.

Convertible Subordinated Debt

The 3-3/8% / 5-1/2% step-up convertible subordinated debentures due 2005 are convertible into the Company s
Class A Special Common Stock at a conversion price of $24.50 per share. Interest on the debentures accrues
ut a rate per annum of 3-18% from the date of issuance to September 8, 1997 From and after such time, the
Company will have the right to redeem the debentures for cash. Interest will accrue at a rate per annum of $-
172% from September 9, 1997 10 maturity, or earlier redemption

The 1-1/8% discount convertible subordinated debentures due 2007 are convertible into the Company s Class
A Special Common Stock st a conversion rate equal 1o 19.3125 shares per $1,000 principal amount at matunity
The conversion price will not be adjusted for accrued interest or onginal issue discounl. The debentures were
issued at 55.363% of their principal amount of $541.9 million a1 maturity resulting in a 6% effective annual
yield to maturity. At any time on or after October 15, 1997, the Company may redeem such debentures for cash

Debt Extinguishments

In May 1996, the Company expensed unamortized debt acquisition costs of $1.8 million in connection with e
prepayment of a portion of a subsidiary’s outstanding debt, resulting in an extraondinary loss, net of tax of $1.0
million. The Company incurred debt extinguishment costs totaling $9 4 million during 1995 in conncction with
the refinancing of certain indebtedness, resulting in an extraordinary boss, et of tax, of 561 million or $ 012 per
share. During 1994, the Company paid premiums and expensed unamortized debt acquisition costs totaling $18.0
million, primarily in connection with the redemption of its $150.0 million, 11-7/M% Senior subordinated
dchentures due 2004, resulting in an extraordinary loss, net of tax, of $11.7 million or $ 05 per share

Interest Rates
Fixed interest rates on notes payable io banks and insurance companics range from K.6% 1o 10.57%. Bank debt
interest rates vary based upon one or more of the following rates at the option of the Company!

Prime rate to prime plus |%;
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 8% 10 2%, and
Centificate of deposit rate plus 4% 10 2%.

As of December 31, 1996 and 1995, the Company’s effective weighted average inlerest rate on ity vanable rate
bank and insurance company debi outstanding was 6.53% and 7.1 3%, yespectively

Interest Rate and Forelgn Currency Risk Management

The Company is exposed 1o market risk including changes in interest rates and foreign currency eachange rates.
To manage the volatility relating o these exposures, the Company enlers inlo vanous derivalive transactions
pursuant to the Company's policies in arcas such as counterpanty exposure and hedging practices Positions are
monitored using techniques including market value and sensilivity analyses.

The use of interest rate risk management instruments, such as Swaps, Caps and Collass, is required under the
terms of certain of the Company's outstanding debt agreements. The Company’s policy is to manage inlcrest
costs using 8 mix of fixed and variable rate debi. Using Swaps, the Company agrees 1o exchange, at specified
intervals, the difference between fixed and variable interest amounts calculated by reference 1o an agreed-upon
notional principal amount. Caps are used 1o lock in a maximum interest rate should vanable rates rise, but cnable
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the Company 10 otherwise pay lower market rates. Collars limit the Company s exposure to and benefits from
interest rate fluctuations on variable rate debt to within a certain range of rates

The following table summarizes the terms of the Company’s existing Swaps, Caps and Collars as of
December 31, 1996 and 1995 (dollars in millions):

Notional Average Estumated
Amount Maturities Interest Rate Fair Value
As of December 31, 1996
Variable 10 Fixed Swaps 51,0800 1997- 2000 5.85% $74
Caps 2500 1997 H.55%
Collars 6200 1997 1994 HO9R% / 5.16% ol
As of December 31, 1995
Variable to Fixed Swaps $650.0 1997- 2000 6.05% ($6.5)
Caps 2%0.0 1997 B20%
Collars 300.0 19497 T.21% | 5.0 [{V R

The notional amounts of interest rate agreements, as presented in the above table, are used (o measure interest
mbcpnidumiwd-nddumlmmﬂh:mntu[npmmtnnnmm The estimated fair value
approximates the proceeds (costs) to settle the outstanding contracts. While Swaps, Caps and Collars represent
an integral part of the Company's interest rale risk management program. their incremental effect on interest
capense for the years ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994 was not significant.

The Company has entered into certain FX Options as a normal part of its foreign cumrency risk management
efforts. During 1995, Comcast UK Cable entered into certain forcign exchange put option conltracts ("FX Puts™)
which may be settled only on November 16, 2000. These FX Puts are used to limit Comcast UK Cable’s
exposure Lo the risk that the eventual cash outflows related 10 net monetary liabilities denominated in currencics
other than its functional currency (the UK Pound Sterling or "UK Pound”) (principally the 2007 Discount
Debentures) are adversely affected by changes in exchange rates. As of December 11, 1996 and 1995, Comcast
UK Cable had £250.0 million notional amount of FX Puts 1o purchase LS dollars at an exchange rate of 31 15
per £1 00 (the "Ratio™). The FX Puts provide a hedge. W the exient the exchange rate falls below the Hatio,
against Comcast UK Cable’s net monetary Habilities denominated in US dollar since gains and losses realized
on the FX Puts are offset against foreign exchange gains or losses realized on the underlying net liabilities
Premiums paid for the FX Puts, of $21.4 million, have been recorded as assets in the Company's consolidated
balance sheet. These premiums are being amortized over the terms of the related contracts. As of December 3,
1996. the FX Puts had a carrying value of $18.4 million and an estimated fair value of $5.5 million. The
differences between the carrying amounts and the estimated fair value of the FX Puls were not significant as
of December 31, 1995,

In the fourth quarter of 1995, in order 10 reduce hedging conts, Comcast UK Cable sold foreign eschange call
option contracts ("FX Calls™) 1o exchange £250.0 million not jonal amount Comeast UK Cable received 351
million from the sale of these contracts. These contracts may only be settled vn their expiration dates. OF these
contracts, £200.0 million notional amount, with an exchange ratio of $1.70 per £1.00, expired unexercised in
November 1996 while the remaining contract, with a £50.0 million notional amount and an exchange ratio of
$1.62 per £1.00, has a settlement date in November 2000. In the fourth quarter of 1996, in order to continue
10 reduce hedging costs, Comcast UK Cable sold additional FX Calls, for proceeds of $3.5 mithon, 10 exchange
£200.0 million notional amount al an average exchange ratio of $1.75 per £1.00. These contracts may only be
settled on their expiration dates during the fourth quarter of 1997. The FX Calls are marked-io-market on a
current basis in the Company's consolidated statement of operations.
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As of December 31, 1996 and 1995, the estimated fair value of the liabilities related 1o the FX Calls, as recorded
in the Company's consolidated balance sheet, was $12.2 million and $5.8 million, respectively. Changes in fair
value between measurement dates relating to the FX Calls resulted in exchange losses of $2.2 million during
the year ended December 31, 1996 in the Company's consolidated statement of operations. There were no
significant exchange gains or losses relating to these contracts during the year ended December 31, 1995

Esntimated Fair Value

The Company's long-term debt had estimated fair values of $7.323 billion and $7.089 billion as of December 31,
1996 and 1995, respectively. The estimated fair value of the Company s publicly traded deht is based on guoted
marke! prices for that debt. Interest rates that are currently available 1 the Company for issuance of debt with
similar terms and remaining maturities are used 10 estimate fair value for debt issues for which quoted marker
prices are not available.

Debi Covenants

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries’ loan agreements contain restnictive covenants which limit the
subsidiaries’ ability to enter into armangements for the acquisition of property and equipment, investments,
mergers and the incurrence of additional debt. Cenain of these agreements require that cenain ratios and cash
flow levels be maintained and contain certain restrictions on dividend payments and advances of funds to the
Company. The Company and its subsidiaries were in compliance with such restrictive covenants foe all periosds
presented. In addition, the stock of certain subsidiary companies is pledged as collateral for the notes payable
to banks and insurance companies.

As of December 31, 1996, $376.8 million of the Company's cash, cash equivalents and shon-term investments
is restricted 1o use by subsidiaries of the Company under contractual or other arrangements, including $213.7
million which is restricted 10 use by Comcast UK Cable

Restricted net assets of the Company's subsidiaries were approvimately $2.4 billion as of December 31, 1996
The restricted net assets of subsidiaries exceeds the Company's consolidated net assets as certain of the
Company's subsidiaries have a stockholders’ deficiency.

Lines and Letters of Credit

As of February 1, 1997, certain subsidiaries of the Company had unused lines of credit of $1.679 billion. The
availability and use of these unused lines of credit is restricted by the covenants of the related debi agreements
and to subsidiary general purposes and dividend declaration. In addition, of the itotal unused lines of credt,
$625.0 million was established by a subsidiary for debt refinancing.

As of December 31, 1996, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries had unused imevocable standby letiers
of credit totaling $102.3 million 10 cover potential fundings associated with several projecis.

6. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)

Preferred Stock

The Company s authorized o issue, in one or more series, up 1o a maximum of 200 million shares of preferred
stock without par value. The shares can be issued with such designations, preferences, qualifications, privileges,
limitations, restrictions, options, conversion rights and other special or related rights as the Company’s Hoand
of Directors (the “Board™) shall from time to time fix by resolution

In July 1996, in connection with the Sports Venture Acquisition (see Note 3), the Company issued 6,370 shares
of Preferred Stock. Each holder of shares of the Preferred Stock is entitled 1o receive cumulative cash dividends
al the annual rate of $250 per share, payable quarterly in arrears. The Preferred Stock is redeemable, at the
option of the Company, beginning in July 1999 at a redemption price of $5,000 per share plus accrued amd
unpaid dividends, subject to certain conditions and conversion adjustments, The Preferred Stock is convertibie,
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at the option of the halder, into shares of the Company's Class A Special Common Stock at a ratio of 209.1175
shares of Class A Special Common Stock for each share of Preferred Stock, subject to cerain conditions. The
holders of the Preferred Stock are not entitled 1o any voting rights except as otherwise provided by the
Company's Anticles of Incorporation or by applicable law.

Common Stock

Class A Special Common Stock is generally nonvoting and each share of Class A Common Stock is entitled
1o one vote, Each share of Class B Common Stock is entitled to fifleen votes and is convertible, share for share,
into Class A or Class A Special Common Stock, subject to certain restrictions.

As of December 31, 1996, 20.7 million shares of Class A Special Common Stock were reserved for issuance
upon conversion of the Company's convertible subordinated debentures.

Repurchase Program

Concurrent with the announcement of the Scripps Acquisition in October 1995, the Company announced that
its Board authorized a market repurchase program (the "Repurchase Program™) pursuant to which the Company
may purchase, al such times and on such terms as it deems appropriate, up to $500.0 million of its outstanding
common stock, subject 1o certain restrictions and market conditions. During the years ended December 31, 1996
and 1995, the Company repurchased 10.5 million shares and 680,000 shares, respectively, of its common stock
for aggregate consideration of $180.0 million and $12.4 million, respectively, pursuant to the Repurchase
Program. During January 1997, the Company repurchased an additional 450,000 shares of its common stock for
aggregate consideration of $7.6 million. The Repurchase Program will terminate in May 1997. In addition, as
of December 31, 1996, the Company has put options outstanding on 4.0 million shares of its Class A Special
Common Stock (see Note 9).

Share Exchange

In December 1995, the Company issued 751,000 shares of its Class A Special Common Stock o the Company's
Retirement-Investment Plan in exchange for an equivalent number of shares of its Class A Common Stock held
as an investment of the Plan. The Class A Common Stock was subsequently retired.

Stock-Based Compensarion Plans

As of December 31, 1996, the Company and its subsidiaries have several stock-based compensation plans for
certain employees, officers, directors and other persons designated by the applicable compensation commilices
of the Boards of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries. These plans are described below,

Comcast Option Plan. The Company maintains qualified and nonqualified stock option plans for certain
employees, directors and other persons under which fixed stock options are granted and the option price is not
less than the fair value of a share of the underlying stock at the date of grant (collectively, the "Comcast Option
Plan"}. Under the Comeast Option Plan, 36.1 million shares of Class A Special Common Stock and 658,000
shares of Class B Common Stock were reserved as of December 11, 1996. Option terms are gu>eraliy from five
to 10 years, with options generally becoming exercisable between two and 9% years from the date of grant.
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A summary of the activity of the Comcast Option Plan as of and for the years ended December 31, 1996, 1995,
and 1994 is presented below (options in thousands):

1996 1993 1994
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average - Average
Exercise Excrcise Exercise

Outstanding at
beginning of year 14208 51425 11,868 31373 7.512 $9.34
1,308 17.41 2,809 1588 5.165 19.61
Exercised (199) 8mn (267) 9.13 (527) B.55
Canceled (466) 16.08 (292) 15.42 (282) 1384
Outstanding at
end of year 14,851 14.54 14,208 14.25 11,868 13.73
Exercisable at end of year 6875 §13.40 5812 51313 4950 31312
Outstanding st
beginning of year 229 §4.87 362 $4.74 46K $4.57
Exercised (229) 4 87 (129) 452 [L1%} i
Canceled (4) 492 (25) 484
Outstanding at
end of year 229 487 362 474
Exercisable al end of year 216 4 86 206 L4660
Class B Commen Stock
Outstanding at beginning
and end of year 658 $5.70 658 §5.70 654 $5.70
Exercisable at end of year 658 $5.70 557 §5.45 34 $5.59

|
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mmm;mﬁmﬁmmmmwmasmmcmmmckmmm
the Comcast Option Plan as of December 31, 1996 (options in thousands):

Options Eaercisabl
Weighted-
Range of Number Average Weighted- Number Weighied-
Exercise Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisabie Average
Prices 2127196 Contractval Life Exercise Price a0 120156  Esercise Price
$6.22 0 3992 2,851 28 Yeans $7.14 1811 $7.12
$10.17 1o $14.63 3,828 5.3 Yean 1178 2247 1114
$15.00 10 $17.63 2,652 8.7 Years 15.95 59 15.57
$17.75 10 $23.28 5,520 5.6 Yeann 19.61 2,758 19.33
14,851 6,878

mww[-i:vdunduuumtnnmmASpmnlCmmsmmpmumm
Comcast Option Plan during 1996 and 1995 was $9.71 and $9.67, respectively. The falr vais2 of each option
grant is cstimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 1996 and 1995: dividend yield of .53% and .63% for 1996 and
1995, respectively; expected volatility of 34.9% and 40.7% for 1996 and 1995, respectively; risk-free interest
rate of 6.8% and 7.6% for 1996 and 1995, respectively; expected option lives of 9.9 years and 10.2 years for
IMNIM.MHH;M![M:[IMHJIMHMym

QVC Tandem Plan. QVC established a qualified and nonqualified combination stock option/Stock Appreciation
Rights ("SAR") plan (collectively, the "QVC Tandem Plan") during 1993 for employces, officens, directors and
mmwuhwmmuduvﬁamdnm. Under the QVC
Tandem Hu.llw:pthnpﬂuhwﬂlrmmmwfwwnu.um#wmmmdem
, of a share of the underlying common stock of QVC (the “QVC Common Stock”) at the date of grant
As of the latest valuation date, the fair value of a share of QVIC Common Stock was $385.19. If the SAR feature
of the QVC Tandem Plan is elected by the eligible participant, the participant receives 75% of the excess of the
fair value of a share of QVC Common Stock over the exercise price of the option o which it iy attached at the
exercise date. Option holders have stated an inteation not 10 exercise the SAR feature of the QVC Tandem Plan.
Because the exercise of the option component is more likely than the exercise of the SAR feature, compensation
expense is measured based on the stock option component. Under the QVC Tandem Plan, option/SAR terms
nmmﬁmmdmﬂmmwmlﬂmﬂlyhcmduumiubhumhwrmf:m
the date of grant. As of December 31, 1996, 263,000 shares of QVC Common Stock were reserved under the
pl-'l.w::mﬂdﬂ.ﬂmilﬂmwumﬁdmﬂmwﬁuiuwmmmbu 1,
1996. No compensation expense was recognized under this plan during the year ended December 31, 1995
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A summary of the activity of the QVC Tandem Plan as of and for the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995
is presented below (options/SARS in thousands):

1993
Weighled- Weighted-
Average Average
Options/ Exercise Options/  Exercise
SARs  Price SARs Price

Outstanding st

beginning of year 142 $177.05
Ciranted 26 270.1) 142 $177.0%
Canceled (4) 17705
Outstanding at

end of year 164 19216 142 177.05
Exercisable st end of year 36 5177.08

The following table summarizes information about the options/SARs outstanding under the QVC Tandem Plan
as of December 31, 1996 (options/SARs in thousands):

Options/SARs Excrcisable
Weighted-
Number Average Numh:r
Exercise Outstanding Remaining
Price 2130156 Contractyal Life ll_liﬂ.l.ﬁ
$177.08 157 8.3 Yeans L7,
522.31 3 9.5 Yean
585.19 _4 98 Yeans o
164 6

The weighted-average fair value at date of grant of a QVC Common Stock option/SAR granied during 1996
and 1995 was $385.13 and $96.05, respectively. The fair value of cach option grant is estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for
grants in 1996 and 1995; no dividend yield for both years; expected volatility of 20% for both years; risk-free
interest rate of 6.8% and 7.5% for 1996 and 1993, respectively, eapecied option lives of 10 years for both 1996
and 1995; and a lorfeiture rate of 3.0% for both years,

Had compensation expense for the Company's two aforementioned stock-based compensation plans been
determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for swands under those plans under the provisions of SFAS
No. 123, the Company's net loss and net loss per share would have been increased 1o the pro forma amounts
indicated below (dollars in millions, except per share data):

129 1995
Net loss — As repored ($51.5) (341.9)
Net loss — Pro forma {61.0) (50.7)
Net loss per share -- As reported 321 (5.18)
Net loss per share ~ Pro forma (.24) (.21)

The pro forma effect on net loss and net loss per share for 1996 and 1995 by applying SFAS No. 123 may not
be indicative of the pro forma effect on nel income or loss in future years since SFAS No. 123 does not take
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into consideration pro forma compensation expense related 10 awards made prior 10 January 1. 1995 and since
additional awards in future years are anticipated,

(ither Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Company maintains a restricted stock program under which managemens coii ;o ma, be grnted
restricted shares of the Company's Class A Special Common Stock. The shares awarded vest annually, generally
over a period not 1o exceed five years from the date of the award, and do not have voting or dividend nights
until vesting occurs. At December 31, 1996, there were 1.4 million unvested shares granted under the program,
of which 281,000 vested in Janvary 1997. During the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, 951,000 and
135,000 shares were granted under the program, respectively, with a weighted-average grant date market value
of $19.16 and $20.61 per share, respectively. Compensation expense recognized during the yean ended
December 31, 1996, 1995, and 1994 under this program was $5.5 million, $4.6 million, and 34 4 million,
respectively. There was no significant difference between the amount of compensation expense recognized by
the Company during the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995 and the amount that would have been
recognized had compensation expense been determined under the provisions of SFAS 123,

The Company and QVC established SAR plans during 1996 and 1995 for certain employees, officers, directors,
and other persons (the *QVC SAR Plana®). Under the QVC SAR Plans, eligible participants are entitled to receive
a cash payment from the Company or QVC equal to 100/ of the excess, if any, of the fair value of a share of
QVC Common Stock at the exercise date over the fair value of such a share a1 the grant date. The SAHRs have
a term of ten years from the date of grant and become exercisable over four to five years from the date of grant.
During each of the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, 11,000 SARs were awarded and 21,000 SARs were
outstanding st December 31, 1996, of which 3,000 were exercisable. Compensation expense related to the plans
of $4.5 million and $1.1 million was recorded during the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively.
There was no significant difference between the amount of compensation expense recognized and the amount that
would have been recognized had compensation expense been determined under the provislons of SFAS 123,

INCOME TAXES

As a result of the Company's recent acquisitions, the Company’s dzferred income tax liability and deferred
charges were increased for temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the income tax
reporting basis of the assets acquired at the dates of their acquisition, as described below (dollars in millions)

Year Ended December 31,

199 1993 1994
Scnpps Cable . ... ........... $499.2
Interest in Comcast-Spectacor . . M4
Qve 87
Maclean Hunter i SARK ()

Al their dates of acquisition, Scripps Cable and QVC had net deferred income tax lisbilities of $1001.7 million
and $31 2 million. respectively. which were sssumed by the Company.

The Company poans with it B0% o swre owsed sebsadanes 0 Niling consolidated federal income tax returns
Both QVC and the dewect subsadiary of the LLC file scparmie consolwdated foderal income tan retums The
increases in the Company's comssllossd cumess foderal mcome tax expense, shown in the table below, ia
primanly attributable 1o QVC « federsl mosme @ cxpesse hewng consoludated with the Company s for financial
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Income tax expense (benefit) consists of the fullowing components:

Yemi [inded | eiilus VI,
Luad 1994

{Dollars in millions)

Curment oxpense

PO o aia i i TR $E10 452 8.1

BRI im0 R 8 L T— 213 141 124
105.3 59.5 20.5

Deferred expense (benefit)

Federal ......... o L PR S B (20.4) (22.0) (27.9)

MO o e R R B e AR (0.5) 4.6 (1.8)
(20.9) (174) (29.7)

Income tax expense (bemefit) , . ................ S84 4 $42.1 (39.2)

The effective income tax expense (benefit) of the Company differs from the statutory amount because of the
effect of the following itema:

Year Ended December 31,

1994
(Dollars in millions)

Federal tax ot statutory Fale . . .. ... cocovornenns (35.6) 5159) ($31.5)
Non-deductible deprecistion and amortization ... ... .. 320 237 2
State income taxes, net of federal benefit . ... . .. ... i 148 12.3 69
Non-deductible foreign losses and aqnit;r in

net losses of affiliates . . R B 275 173 10.6
Additions 10 valuation ll.lnwmu ........... AR 18.3 1.4 0.6
3 R g P L W PO e (2.6) i3 1.0
Income tax expense (benefit) . .. ................. $84.4 $42.1 ($9.2)
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Deferred income tax benefit resulied from the following differences between financial and income tax

reporting:
Year Ended December 31,

1996 1993
+  (Dollars in millions)

Depreciation and amortization . . . ............ {$60.2) ($68.3) (336.3)
Accrued expenses not cumrently deductible . . . . .. (63) xmn (22.3)
Non-deductible reserves for bad debts,

obsolete inventory and sales returns . .. ...... (1.0) (142)
Non-taxable temporary differences associated

with sale or exchange of securities ... ....... w09 121
Losses (income) from affiliated partnerships . . . . . 256 (24) (1.0
Utilization of net operating loss carryforwards . . . . 410 8.3
Deferred tax assets arising from current

period losses . ........... Arfemeso Ry (21.0) , (10.0)
Change in valuation allowance and other ... .... 2.1 165 1.6
Deferred income tax benefit . .. .. .. BeR [T Y ($20.9) (317.4) (529.7)

Significant components of the Company's net deferred tax liability are as follows:

December 31,
1996 1995
(Dollars in millions)
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards .. ......... $2809 $2579
Differences between book and
tax basis of property and equipment
and deferred charges . ......... .02 45 268
Reserves for bad debts, obsolete inventory
and sales refurng . ... ... e T e 629
OMREE: - cvswanis sam i e ma g e aEe e e 497 411
Less: Valuation allowance . . ... ........ (261.2) (244 9)
165.8 1460
Deferred tax liabilities, principally
differences between book and tax
basis of property and equipment and
deferred Chatges ... ...........ooveuiiin 2,228 1,604.2
Net deferred tax liabdlity . . . oo 0o oo iii v $2,062.5 $1,4382

The deferred tax liability is net of deferred tax assets of $78.0 million and $59.8 million as of December 31,
1996 and 1995, respectively, which are included in other current assets in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet. The Company's valuation allowance against deferred tax assets includes approximately $120.0 million
for which any subsequent tax benefits recognized will be allocated to reduce goodwill and other noncurrent
inwmm.hmmmﬁ;whwdﬂd'hmuwqum
carryforwards of $28.0 million for which s deferred tax assel has been recorded, which expire
pﬁmuﬂyln!ﬂlﬂndiﬂll.ltmnhh;uopuuiuhmcmﬂmﬂ.hwhirh\rlluuinndlnwm have
been established, expire in periods through 2011,
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8. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

The Company made cash payments for interest of $456.8 million, $459.1 million and $261.6 million during the
years ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

The Company made cash payments for income taxes of $101.4 million and $35.4 million during the yeary ended
December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively. Cash payments for income laxes during the year ended
December 31, 1994 were not significant.

. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commdiiments

Beginning in January 1998, the Company has the right to purchase the minority interests in Comcast-Spectacor
from the Minority Group for the Minority Group's pro rata portion of the fair market value (on a going concemn
basis as determined by an appraisal process) of Comcast-Specitacor. The Minority Group also has the right
(1ogether with the Company’s right, the “Exit Rights”) 10 require the Company to purchase its interests under
the same tenms. The Company may pay the Minority Group for such interests in shares of the Company's Class
A Special Common Stock, subject to cenain restrictions. If the Minority Group exercises its Exit Rights and the
Company clects not to purchase their interest, the Company and the Minority Group will use their best efforts
1o sell Comcast-5Speciacor.

Assuming consummation of the E! Acquisition, afier the 18 month anniversary of the closing date of the E!
Acquisition, Disney, in cerain circumstances, is entitled to cause Newco 1o purchase Disney’s entire interest in
Newco al its then fair market value (as determined by an appraisal process). If Newco elects not to purchase
Disney's interests, Disney has the right, at its option, to purchase either the Company's entire interest in Newco
or all of the shares of stock of E! Entertainment held by Newco, in cach case at fair market value. In the event
that Disney exercises its rights, as described above, a portion or all of the Disney Notes may be replaced with
a three year noie due 1o Disncy,

Liberty Media Corporation ("Liberty”), a majority owned subsidiary of TCL may, st certain tmes following
February 9, 2000, trigger the exercise of certain exil rights with respect (o its investment in QVC. If the exit
rights are triggered, the Company has first right 1o purchase Liberty's stock in QVC at Liberty's pro rata portion
of the fair market value (on a going concern or liquidation basis, whichever is higher, as determined by an
appraisal process) of QVC. The Company may pay Liberty for such stock, subject 1o certain rights of Libeny
to consummale the purchase in the most tax-efficient method available, in cash, the Company’s promissory note
maturing not more than three years after issuance, the Company's equity securities of any combination thereof.
If the Company elects not to purchase the stock of QVC held by Liberty, then Liberty will have a similar right
to purchase the stock of QVC held by the Company. If Liberty elects not to purchase the stock of OVC held
by the Company, then Liberty and the Company will use their best efforts 1o sell QVC.

As a result of the Maclean Hunter Acquisition, at any time afier December |8, 2001, CalPERS may elect 1o
liquidate its interest in the LLC at a price based upon the fair value of CalPERS' interest in the LLC, adjusted,
under certain circumstances, for cerain performance criteria relating to the fair value of the L1C or 1o the
Company's common stock. Except in certain limited circumstances, the Company. at its option, may satisfy this
liquidity arrangement by purchasing CalPERS' interest for cash, through the issuance of the Company s common
stock (subject to certain limitations) or by selling the LLC.

As pant of the Repurchase Program, the Company sold put options on 1.0 million and 3.0 million shares of its
Class A Special Common Stock during the years ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, respeciively. The pul
options give the holders the right 1o require the Company to repurchase such shares at specified prices on
specific dates in January through March 1997. As of December 11, 1996, the Company has reclassified $69.6
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million. the amount it would be obligated to pay to repurchase such shares upon exercise of the put options, to
|mmymhhmmmquﬁquMMMnﬂi
be reclassified to additional capital in the first quarter of 1997 upon expiration or settlement of the options. The
M“hpﬁuﬁnﬁduﬂﬁmhnﬂlﬂfﬁunﬂﬂpﬁﬂiuﬂh&uﬁnﬂiﬂvﬂuwu
not significant as of December 31, 1996 and 1995.

Minimum annual rental commitments for office space and equipment under noncancellable operating leases as
of December 31, 1996 are as follows:

(Dollars

in millions)
1997 $524
1998 48.7
1999 425
2000 363
200i 36.2
Thereafter 1598

Rental expense of $54.7 million, $44.6 million and $21.9 million for 1996, 1995 and 1994, respeciively, has
been charged 1o operations.

Contingencies
mw;muwmummmﬂﬁmmﬁummmmmuﬂ
accounts receivable relating to the Company's electronic retailing operations. The Company sold accounts
receivable at face value of $687.0 million and $530.2 million under this agreement in 1996 and 1995,
mwﬁuly.ﬁﬂmymﬂunhlhﬂdmmumdlwﬁbhmmmlwum
mmﬂmwwhmﬂdmmm-lpdfﬂmdqumfm
under the program as a deposit with the third party 1o secure its obligations under the agreement.

The uncollected balance of accounts receivable sold under this program was $317.7 million and $283.1 million
as of December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively, of which $284.5 million and $234.5 million, respectively,
mmmuuﬂrhw.ﬂummtuﬂhmﬂmeivﬂ.ﬁmmﬂdmumﬁﬂn;
10 the possible repurchase of uncollectible accounts was $73.2 million and $71.6 million as of December 31,
1996 and 1995, respectively. The receivables sold under the program are considered, for financial reporting
purposes, to be financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk. The carrying value of accounts receivable,
adjusted for the reserves described above, approximates fair value as of December 31, 1996 and 1995,

TthnmpuyBnﬁhﬂn:ﬁmwﬁ:ﬁrﬁhhwﬁmmnﬁuhﬂmmﬂmmwm.
In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect 1o these actions will not materially
affect the financial position, results of operations or liquidity of the Company.

MCummrmmmeHrntmmwmcmwutumw for regulsted
cable services. In December 19935, the FCC adopted an order approving a megotisted settlement of rate
complaints mﬁuumhwhcﬂlw“mhmr}whkhmvﬂdh.ﬁ
million in refunds, plus interest, given in the form of bill credits during 1996, 1o 1.3 million of the Company’s
cable subscribers. As part of the negotiated settlement, the Company agreed (o forego certain inflation and
external cost adjustments for systems covered by its cost-of-service filings for CPSTs. The Company currently
'umkinliajuuifrmfwbﬂcnﬁlmmmlpmuﬁnmﬂnoﬂuuﬂujmhﬂumd
Connecticut on the basis of a cost-of-service showing. The State of Connecticut has ordered the Company to
reduce such rates and 10 make refunds to subscribers. The Company has appealed the Connecticut decision to
mmc.nmwmum,mmmywhcmﬂwuw.
have caused the State of Connecticutl 10 reexamine ita prior ruling. While the Company cannot predict the
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outcome of this action, the Company belicves that the ultimate resolution of these pending regulatory matiers
will not have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

10. FINANCIAL DATA BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

The following represents the Company's significant business scgments, including: "Domestic Cable
Communications,” the most significant of the Company’s wired telecommunications operations; ~Electronic
Retailing,” the most significant of the Company s content businesses; and "Cellular Communications.” the most
significant of the Company's wircless telecommunications operations. The remaining components of the
Company's operations are not independently significant 1o the Company's consolidated financial position or
results of operations and are included under the caplion "Corporate and Ukher” (dollars in millions).

Domitic:
Cabsle Electronsc Cellulas Corporste

1996 Communicaions  Kgtwlng  Commesscations  and Otheri)} Towl
REVENDES . . ....covnvnnnrrnnnnsns 51,6409 $1.8358 $426.1 $135.6 4,038 4
Depreciation and smortization ........ 4162 107.7 1172 572 698 3
Operating income (loss) . ............ 39 1926 410 (120.5) S0R9
Interest cApense . . . .....ccoicnn s 2283 6352 924 1549 5408
T P S e R 69383 2,162.7 13683 16193 12.088.6
Longtermdebt . ..........0000000n 3,078.1 BA26 1,104 4 20776 7.102.7
Capital expenditures ............... 2909 636 1160 199.9 6704
Equity in net (losses) income of

affiliates ..........0oiiiiiinn. (221 02 (1229) (144 8)
1993
ROVEOUES . ...ocvvvaunaviniananas 514549 514877 $3749 $45.4 $313629
Depreciation and amortization ........ ns B6.| 2057 247 689.0
Operating income (loss) . . ... ........ 460 1458 (67.9) (94.1) 1298
Interest expense . ................. 2456 753 747 129.1 5247
F T P S P PR 4,531.1 2,096.4 13494 16014 9.580.3
Longaermdebt .. ......c0o000vvuin 29842 2113 9289 21194 6,941 8
Capital expenditures .. ............. 2378 28.1 2287 1284 6230
Equity in net (losses) income of

affiliates ... ... ... ............. (17.6) 03 (69.3) (86.6)
1994
REVBAUEE . ... oo vvnerrnannrsvannns $1.065.3 5 $285.1 $239 $1,375.3

and amortization . ... .. . 229.5 99 17.1 1365

Operating income (loss) . . ......... . 2880 26.4 (74.6) 2398
Interest CXpEnse .. .........00000:2 1511 586 103.7 3134
ABBIIE & o siwisnanin s inans s e 4,504.8 B4.1 1,200.2 9709 6,763.0
Longtermdebt . ... ............ 52 28529 7445 1,213, 48105
Capital expenditures .. ............. 1717 719 6] 2699
Equity in net (losses) income of

fTIIEAE ... v sse i (83) 1.2 ' (41.8) (40.9)

-

(1) Corporate and other includes certain elimination entries related 10 the segments presented
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11. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth Total

Ouarier Ouarter  Ouaner 2) Quaner () Yeur
{Dollers in millions, except per share data)

1996
REVEDUES .. .. cccuvnnasnanasnss $950.7 $945.6 59746 $1.167.5 $4,018.4
Operating income before

depreciation and amortization (1) . . . 270.1 296.1 25958 3452 1,207.2

ingincome ......cc 0000, 1113 128.7 129.1 1378 508.9

{Loss) income before extraordinary

e e (34.6) 178 (10.0) (25.7) (32.5)
Extraordinary em .. ............ (1.0) (1.0)
Met (loss) income (4) . ........... (3M.6) 168 (10.0) (25.7) (51.5)
{Loss) income per share before

extraordinary Mem . ... .....0.0s (.14) o7 {.04) (.10) (.21
MNet (loss) income per share .. ... ... (.14) 07 (.04) (.10} (.21)
Cash dividends per share .. ........ 0233 0233 0233 0233 0913
1993
REVEMUES ... .covvvrvrnnrarnnns $661.6 $821.6 $870.2 $1,0055 $3,3629
Operating income before

depreciation and amortization (1) . . . 219.6 2608 264 1 1745 10188
Operating income (3) . ........... (23.9) 1173 116.5 1199 e
Loss before extraordinary items (3) . . . {0.6) (29.3) (2.0) (59) (37.8)
Extraordinary Hems .. ......000000 (54) (0.7) i6.1)
Metloss (3) ......cc0cceinaucns (0.6) (29.3) (7.4) (6.6) (41.9)
Loss per share before

extraordinary items ... ....... . (.12} {.01) {03) {.16)
Extraordinary items per share . ... ... (02) (.02)
Net loss pershare . .. ............ (.12) (03) (03) (.18)
Cash dividends per share . . . ....... 0231 0233 0213 0233 0933

(1) Operating income before depreciation and amortization is commonly referred 10 in the Company’s businesses as
“mﬁucﬂm.'m:ﬂmu:mdnm'lﬂWhpﬂumhuth
wummmmmm-ﬂnﬂ—uw-ﬂﬁwhmuuuw
intensive mmdmmy'lhﬂmdhmm;ﬂﬂﬁ:ﬂmﬂwmm-d
amortization expense, operating cash flow is frequently used as one of the bases for comparing businesses in the
Cmpny'lmwmhﬂnhummnwmmummwﬂh
operating activities, as those terms are defined under generally accepted accounting principles, and should not be
considered as an allernative 10 such measuroments as an indicator of the Company's performance.

2) mhdmhhﬁﬂmdlmmﬂﬂﬁhmhmpﬁﬂhmimhm
withﬂumdmpthndmﬂndhtm'nﬂ.hnuummhnhhm*nm
statemeni of operations.

(3) Results of operations were affected by the Cellular Rebuild and the Heritage Transaction in the first quarier of 1995
and by the sale of Nextel shares in the thind quarter of 1995 (see Notes 3 and 4).

(4) Rnulhnfnpwuiomwnnﬂnhdhhﬁlﬂdnmdhuhﬂﬂnﬂhhu-umndqwolIm
(sec Note 4).

(5) R.uuluﬁnpumrﬂnnfu-ﬁmnflmiuhduhmhdm&hw'&untﬁhn
been consolidated effective November 1, 1996, and the gain on the Exchange (see Notes 3 and 4). The Company’s
consolidated results of operations for the fourth quarter of 1996 and 1995 are also affected by the seasonality of the
Company's electronic retailing operations.

-7 -




The information called for by Iiem 10, Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant (except for the information
regarding executive officers called for by ltem 401 of Regulation S-K which is included in Part | hereol as liem 4A in
accordance with General Instruction G(3)), ltem 11, Executive Compensation, liem 12, Security Ownership of Cerain
Beneficial Owners and Management, and ltem 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, is hereby incorporated
by reference to the Registrant's definitive Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of Sharcholders presently scheduled
to be held in June 1997, which shall be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the end
of the Registrant's latest fiscal year,
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{a) The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are included in Part 1, ltem X

Independent Auditors” REPOM . . ... oo vvvnniar i T
Consolidated Balance Sheet--December 31, 1996 and 1995 e — ]
Consolidated Statement of Operations—Years

Ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994 ... .. ... BN P e T 7
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows-Yearns

Ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994 .. ... ... .. ......... P PNt 1. |
Consolidated Statement of Siockholders’ Equity

(Deficiency)-Years Ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994 ., ... T e R 44
Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements . . .. ... ... ..o ioesans 45

ib} (i) The following financial statement schedules required to be filed by ltems B and 14(d) of Form 10-K are
included in Pan IV:

Schedule | = Condensed Financial Information of Registrant Unconsolidated (Parent Only)
Schedule 1 -- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules are omitied because they are nol applicable, not required or the required information
is included in the consolidated financial statements or noles therelo.

{c) Exhibits required to be filed by Item 601 of Regulation 5-K:

I la) Amended and Restated Anticles of Incorporation filed on July 24, 1990 (incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibit 3.1(a) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 1995),

i)y Amendment 10 Restated Articles of Incorporation filed on July 14, 1994 {incorporaied by
reference to Exhibit 3.1(b) to the Company's Annual Repont on Form 10:K for the year ended
December 31, 1995)

3le) Amendment 1o Restated Anticles of Incorporation filed on July 12, 1993 (incorporaled by
reference 1o Exhibit 3.1(c) o the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1995).

30id) Amendment 10 Restated Articles of Incorporation filed on June 24, 1996 (incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibit 4.1(d) 1o the Company’s Registration Statement on Form §-3, as amended,
filed on July 16, 1996).

Al Amended and Restated By-Laws (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit Mii) to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1991)

4.1 Specimen Class A Common Stock Centificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2(a) to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form 5.7 filed on September 17, 1980, File No. 2-
691 78).
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42

4.3(a)

4.3(b)

44

4.5

4.6

47

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

Specimen Class A Special Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(2)
to the Company*s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1986).

Indenture (including form of Note), dated as of May 15, 198, between Storer Communications,
Inc. and The Chase Manhatian Bank, N.A., as Trusice, relating to 10% Svbordinat=~d
Debentures due May 2003 of Storer Communications, © ¢. (incorporated by referei. - 10 Exhibil
4.6 to the Registration Statement on Form 5-1 (File No. 2-9893K) of SCI Holdings. Inc.)

First Supplemental Indeniure, dated December 3, 1986 (incorporated by reference to FExhibit 4 8
to the Current Report on Form B-K of Siorer Communications, Inc. dated December 3, 1986}

Amended and Hestated Indenture daied as of June §, 1992 among Comcast Cellular
Corporation, the Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, relating 1o $500,49 3,000
Series A Senior Participating Redecmable Zero Coupon Notes due 2000 and $300,493,000
Series B Senior Participating Redeemable Zero Coupon Notes due 2000 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement on Form 5-1 (File No. 33-46863) of
Comcast Cellular Corporation).

Indenture, dated as of October 17, 1991, betwern the Company and Morgan Guaranty Trust
Company of New York, as Trustee (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 2 1o the Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 31, 1991).

Form of Debenture relating to the Company’s 10-1/4% Senior Subordinated Debentures due
2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(19) w the Company’s Annual Report on Form [10-
K for the year ended December 31, 1991).

Form of Debenture relating to the Company”s $300,000,000 10-5/8% Senior Subordinated
Debentures due 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(17) to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992)

Form of Debenture relating to the Company's $200,000,000 9-1/2% Senior Subordinated
Debentures due 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(18) o the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992)

Indenture, dated as of February 20, 1991, between the Company and Bankers Trust Company,
as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form 5-3, File No. 33-32830, filed on January 11, 1990)

Form of Debenture relating the Company’s 3-38% / 5-1/2% Step-up Convertible Subordinated
Debentures Due 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(14) to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form [0-K for the year ended December 31, 1993).

Form of Debenture relating to the Company®s 1-1/8% Discount Conventible subordinated
Debentures Due 2007 (incorporated by reference 1o Enhibit 4 1o the Company’™s Current Repont
on Form 8-K filed on November 15, 1993).

Form of Debenture relating to the Company's $250.0 million 9-V8% Senior Subordinated
Debentures due 2005 (incorporated by reference wo Exhibit 4.1 10 the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-0Q for the quarier ended June 3, 1995)

Form of Debenture relating 1o the Company's $250.0 million 9-1/8% Senior Subordinated

Debentures doe 2006 {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 10 the Compazy’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995).
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4.14

4.14(n)

4.135

10.1r%

10.2r%/

103+

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.10*

"

Indenture dated as of November 15, 1995, between Comcast UK Cable Partners Limited and
Bank of Montreal Trust Company, as Trustee, in respect of Comcast UK Cable Partners
Limited's 11.20% Senior Discount Debentures due 2007 (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit
4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 313.96931) of Comcast UK Cable
Partners Limited).

Form of Debenture relating to Comcast UK Cable Partners Limited's ! 1.20% Senior Discount

Debentures due 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 10 the Registration Statement on
Form 5-1 (File No. 33-96932) of Comcast UK Cable Partners Limited).

Form of Ststement of Designations, Preferences and Rights of 5% Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1(e) to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form 5-3 filed on July 16, 1996).

Credit Agroement, dated as of Sepiember 14, 1995, between Comcast Cellular Communications,
Inc., the banks listed therein, The Bank of New York, Barclays Bank PLC, The Chase
Manhattan Bank, N.A., PNC Bank, National Association, and The Toronto-Dominicn Bank, as
Amanging Agents, and Toronto Dominion (Texas), Inc., as Administrative Agent.

Credit Agreement, dated as of September 19, 1993, between Comcast Holdings, Inc., the banks
listed therein, The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A., as Amanging Agent, Bank of Montreal, CIBC
Inc., The Loag-term Credit Bank of Japan, Limited, Royal Bank of Canada and Societe
Cenerale, s Managing Agents, and The Chase Manhatian Bank, N.A, as Administrative

Agent.

Comeast Corporation 1986 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated,
effective December 10, 1996.

Comcast Corporation 1987 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated, effective December 10,
1996.

Comcast Corporation 1996 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated, effective December 10,
1996.

Comcast Corporation 1996 Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated, effective
December 10, 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 filed on December 24, 1996).

Comcast Corporation 1990 Restricted Siock Plan, as amended and restated, effective
December 18, 1996,

1992 Executive Split Dollar Insursnce Plan (incorporaied by reference 1o Exhibit 10(12) 1o the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992).

Comcast Corporation 1996 Cash Bonus Plan, as amended and restated, effective December 10,
1996,

Comcast Corporation 1996 Executive Cash Bonus Flan, dated August 15, 1996,

Constitutes a managemen! contract or compensalory plan or mrangement

Pursuant to liem 601(b)4)iiiMA) of Regulation 5-K. the Registrant agrees lo fumnish a copy of
the referenced agreement 1o the Commission upon request.
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10.11*

10,12

10.13

10.14

10.15{a)

10.15(by™/

10.15(cy*/

10.15(dy*/

10.16

10.17

Form of Compensation and Deferred Compensation Agreement and Stock Appreciation Bonus
Plan for Ralph J. Roberts (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(13) to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 11, 1993)

The Comcast Corporation Retirernent-Investment Plan, as amended and restaled elfective
January 1, 1993 (revised through September 30, 1995) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 w the Company's Registration Statement on Form 5-8 filed on October §, 1995)

Defined Contribution Plans Master Trust Agreement, between Comcast Corporation and State
Street Bank and Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 1o the Company”s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on October 5. 1995).

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of December 2, 1992, among Storer Communications, Inc.,
TKR Cable 1, Inc., TKR Cable 11, Inc., TKR Cable [, Inc.. Tele-Communications, Inc., the
Company and each of the Departing Subsidiaries that are signatories thereto (incurporated by
reference to Exhibit 4 to the Company's Current Repont on Form E-K filed on December 17,
1992, as amended by Form 8 filed January 8, 1993).

Credit Agreement, dated as of December 2, 1992, among Comcast Storer, Inc. and The Bank of
New York, The Bank of Nova Scotia, Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, The Chase
Manhatian Bank (National Association), Chemical Bank, LTCB Trust Company and The
Toronto-Dominion Bank, as managing agents, and The Bank of New York, as administrative
agent (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 5 to the Company's Current Repont on Form 8-K
filed on December 17, 1992, as amended by Form 8 filed January B, 1993)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of November 30, 1994, 10 the Credit Agreement dated as of
December 2, 1992, among Comcast Storer, Inc., the banks named therein and The Bank of
New York, as administrative agent.

Amendment No. 2, dated as of December 13, 1995, 1o the Credit Agreement dated as of
December 2, 1992, as amended, among Comcast Siorer, Inc., the banks named therein and The
Bank of New York, as administrative agent.

Amendment No. 3 and Waiver, dated as of February 29, 1996, 1o the Credit Agreement dated
as of December 2, 1992, as amended. among Comcast Storer, Inc.. the banks named therein
and The Bank of New York, as administrative agent.

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 15, 1992, among Comcast Storer, Inc., Stor=r
Communications, Inc.. Comcast Storer Finance Sub, Inc. and each of the respective purchasers
named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6 1o the Company’s Current Repin: on
Form 8-K filed on December 17, 1992, as amended by Form K filed January B, 1993)

Payment Agreemeni, dated December 2, 1992, among the Company, Comuast Storer, Inc., 5CI
Holdings, Inc., Storer Communications, Inc. and each of the Remaining Subsidiaries that are
slgnatories thereto (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 7 1o the Company's Current Report on
Form B-K filed on December 17, 1992, as amended by Form B filed January B, 1991)

~

Constitutes a management contract of compensatory plan of arrangement

Pursuant to ltem 601(b)4)XiiiXA) of Regulation 5-K, the Registrant agrees to furnish a copy of
the referenced agreement lo the Commission upon request
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10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

inx3

10.23

1024

1025

10.26

10.27(a)

10.27(b)

10.28(a)

Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement, dated as of December 2, 1992, among Comcast
Storer, Inc., Comcast Cable Communications, Inc., Storer Communications, Inc., the banks
party to the Credit Agreement dated as of December 2, 1992, the purchasers of the Senior
Motes under the separate Note Purchase Agreemenits cach dated s of November 13, 1992, the
Senlor Lenders (as defined therein) and The Bank of New York as collateral agent for the
Senior Lenders (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit K to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 17, 1992, as amended by Form 8 filed January B, 1993).

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated December 2, 1992, between the Company and Comcast Storer,
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 9 1o the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on December 17, 1992, as amended by Form B filed January 8, 1993).

Pledge Agreement, dated as of December 2, 1992, between Comcast Cable Communications,
Inc. and The Bank of New York (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form B-K filed on December 17, 1992, as amended by Form 8 filed January
8, 1993).

Pledge Agreement, dated as of December 2, 1992, between Comcast Storer, Inc. and The Bank
of New York (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 11 1o the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 17, 1992, as amended by Form K filed January 8, 1991)

Pledge Agreement, dated as of December 2, 1992, between Storer Communications, Inc. and
The Bank of New York (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 12 1o the Company®s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 1992, as amended by Form B filed January 8,
1993).

Note Pledge Agreement, dated as of December 2, 1992, beiween Comcast Storer, Inc. and The
Bank of New York (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 13 10 the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 1992, as amended by Form B filed January 8, 1993).

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of December 2, 1992, between Siorer Communications, Inc. and
The Bank of New York (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 1w the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 1992, as amended by Form B filed January 8,
1993).

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of December 2, 1992, between Comcast Storer Finance Sub, Inc.
and The Bank of New York (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 15 1o the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 17, 1992, as amended by Form 8 filed January 8,
1993).

Amended and Restated Option Agreement, dated Scptember 11, 1995, between Nextel
Communications, Inc. and Comcast FCI, Inc. (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit M o
Amendment No. 15 to the Company's Schedule 13D dated September 13, 1995 filed with
respect to Nextel Communications, Inc.).

Share Purchase Agreement, dated June 18, 1994, between Comcast Corporation and Rogens
Communications Inc. (incorporated by reference o Exhibit 10(3) 1o the Company’s Quanerly
Hepart on Form 10-Q for the quaner ended June 30, 1994).

First Amendment 1o Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 12, 1994, by and
between Comcast Corporation and Rogers Communications Inc., to the Share Purchase
Agreement dated June 18, 1994 (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.9 1o the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 6, 1993).

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 4, 1994, among Comcast Corporation, Liberty

Media Corporation, Comcast QMerger. Inc. and QVC, Inc. (incorporated by reference 1o
Exhibit 99.49 1o Amendment No. 21 1o the Schedule 13D of the Company relating to common

stock of QVC, Inc. filed on August K, 1994).
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10.28(b)

10.29

10.30(a)

10.30{by*/

10131

1032

10.33

10.34

10.35

"

First Amendment 10 Agreement and Plan of Merger, daied as of February 3, 1995 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit (cX35) to Amendment No. 17 1o the Tender Offer Statement on
Schedule 14D-1 filed on February 6, 1995 by QVC Programming Holdings, Inc., Comcast

on and Tele-Communications, Inc. with respect to the tender offer for all outstanding
shares of QVC, Inc.).

Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement, dated as of February §. 1995, among Comcast
Corporation, Comcast QVC, Inc,, QVC Programming Holdings, Inc., Liberty Media
Corporation, QVC Invesiment, Inc. and Liberty QVC, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.5 to the Company's Quanerly Report on Form 10-Q for the quaner ended March 31, 1995)

Credit Agreement, dated as of February 15, 1995, among QVC, Inc. and the Banks listed
therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit (bX6) 1o Amendment No. 21 1o the Tender Offer
Swutement on Schedule 14D-1 filed on February 17, 1995 by QVC Programming Holdings, Inc..
Comecast Corporation and Tele-Communications, Inc. with respect 10 the tender offer for all
outstanding shares of QVC, Inc ).

Amendment, dated as of July 19, 1996, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of February 15,
1995, among QVC, Inc. and the Banks listed therein.

Credit Agreement, dated as of September 14, 1994, among Comcast Cable Tri-Holdings, Inc.,
The Bank of New York, The Chase Manhattan Bank (National Association), PNC Bank,
Nstional Association, as Managing Agents, and the Baak of New York, as Administrative
Agent, and the banks named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 10 the Current
Report on Form B-K of the Company filed on November 2, 1994).

Comcast MHCP Holdings, L1.C. Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company
Agreement, dated as of December 18, 1994, among Comcast Cable Communications, Inc.. The
California Public Employees' Retirement Sysiem and, for certain limited purposes, Comcast
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 1o the Company’s Current Repont on
Form 8-K filed on January 6, 1993).

Credit Agreement, dated as of December 22, 1994, among Comcast MH Holdings, Inc., the
banks listed therein, The Chase Manhattan Bank (National Association), NationsBank of Texas,
N.A. and the Toronio-Dominion Bank, as Amanging Agents, The Bank of New York. The
Bank of Nova Scotia, Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and Morgan Guaranty Trust
Company of New York, as Managing Agents and NationsBank of Texas, N.A., as
Administrative Agent (incorporaied by reference to Exhibit 10.2 wo the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on January 6, 1995).

Pledge Agreement, dated as of December 22, 1994, between Comcast MH Holdings, Inc. and
NationsBank of Texas, N.A., as the secured party (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 1o
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 6, 1993).

Pledge Agreement, dated as of December 22, 1994, between Comcast Communications
Properties, Inc. and NationsBank of Texas, N.A., as the Secured Party (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 10 the Company's Current Report on Form B-K filed on January 6.
1995).

Pursuant to liem 60 1(bH4NiliHA) of Regulation 5-K, the Registrant agrees to furnish a copy ol
the referenced agreement to the Commission upon reguest.
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1036

1037

10,39

10.40

1041

10421/

21

231
232
233
234

]

Affiliste Subordination Agreement (as the same may be amended, modified, supplemented,
waived, extended or restated from time o lime, this “Agreement”), dated as of December 22,
1994, among Comcast Corpocation, Comcast MH Holdings, Inc., (the "Borrower”), any affiliate
of the Borrower that shall have become a party thereto and NationsBank of Texas, N.A., as
Administrative Agent under the Credit Agreement dated as of December 22, 1994, among the
Borrower, the Banks listed therein, The Chase Manhattan Bank (National Association),
NationsBank of Texas, N.A. and The Toronto-Dominion Bank, as Ammanging Agents, The Bank
of New York, The Bank of Nova Scotia, Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and Morgan
Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as Managing Agents, and the Administrative Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 1o the Company’s Cument Report on Form 8-K filed
on January 6, 1995).

Registration Rights and Price Protection Agreement. dated as of December 22, 1994, by and
between Comcast Corporation and The California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company's Current Report on Form B-K filed
on January 6, 1995).

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Parinership of MajorCo, LP. a Delaware
Limited Partnership, dated as of January 31, 1996, among Sprint Spectrum, L.F., TCI Network
Services, Comcast Telephony Services and Cox Telephony Partnership (incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibit 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 12,
1996).

Parents Agreement, dated as of January 11, 1996, between Comcast Corporation and Sprint
Corporation (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed on February 12, 1996).

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and amonag The E.W. Scripps Company, Scripps Howard,
Inc., and Comcast Corporation dated as of October 28, 1995 (incorporated by reference 1o
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form 5-4 filed, as amended. on
November 13, 1996).

Voting Agreement by and among Comcast Corporation, The EW. Scripps Company. Sural

and The Edward W. Scripps Trust, dated as of October 2, 1995 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.2 1o the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed, as

amended, on November 13, 1996).

Credit Agreement, dated as of November 15, 1996, among Comcast SCH Holdings, Inc . the
banks listed therein, Nationsbank of Texas, N.A., as Documentation Agent. The Chase
Manhattan Bank, as Syndication Agent, The Bank of New York, The Chase Manhattan Bank
and Nationsbank of Texas, N.A., as Managing Agents. and The Bank of New York, as
Administrative Agent.

List of Subsidiaries.
Consents of Arthur Andersen LLP.
Consent of Arthur Andersen - Birmingham.
Consent of Arthur Andersen - London
Consents of Deloiite & Touche LLFP.

Pursuant 1o lem 601(b)X4NiliXA) of Regulation 5-K, the Registrant agrees to furnish a copy of
the referenced agreement to the Commission upon request.
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235 Consent of Deloitic & Touche - Birmingham.

236 Consent of Deloitte & Touche - London

217 Consent of KPMG Peat Marwick LLP.

238 Consent of Price Waterhouse LLP.

1 Financial Data Schedule.

99.1 Report of Independent Public Accountants 1o QVC, lnc., as of December 31, 1996 and 1995
and for the year ended December 31, 1996 and for the cleven-month period ended December
31, 1995.

92 Report of Independent Public Accountants to Ciaden State Cablevision L P, for the year ended

December 31, 1994 (incorporated by reference 10 Exhibit 99.2 1o the Company's Annual Repor
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995).

993 Report of Independent Public Accountants to Comcast International Holdings, Inc., for the year
ended December 31, 1994 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 1o the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994).

99.4 Consolidated financial statements of Sprint Spectrum Holding Company, L.P. and subsidianies,
deuhpmmumm-dudluﬂ:ymuddmll. 1996 and 1995, for
the period from October 24, 1994 (date of inception) to December 31, 1994 and for the
cumulative period from October 24, 1994 (date of inception) to December 11, 1996,

995 Consolidated and combined financial statements of Teleport Communications Ciroup, Inc. and
its subsidiaries as of December 31, 1996 and 1995 and for the years ended December 31, 1996,
1995 and 1994 (incorporated by reference to Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data, of the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Telepon Communications Group, Inc. for the year
ended December 31, 1996 (File No. 0-20913)).

99.6 Consolidated financial statements of Binningham Cable Corporation Limited and subsidianies as
of December 31, 1996 and 1995 and for the years ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994
(incorporated by reference to pages 46 thinagh 57 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K of
Comcast UK Cable Pariners Limited for the year ended December 31, 1996 (File No. 0-
24792)).

9.7 Consolidated financial statements of Cable London PLC and subsidiaries as of December 31,
1996 and 1995 and for the years ended December 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994 (incorporaied by
reference to pages S8 through 69 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Comcast UK Cable
Pariners Limited for the year ended December 31, 1996 (File No. 0-24792))

(d) Reports on Form 8-K

(i) Comcast Corporation filed a Current Report on Form 8-K under liem § on November 4. 19 relating 10
its earnings release for the quaner ended September 30, 1996

(i) Comcast Corporation filed a Current Report on Form 8-K under liem 2 on November 27, 1996 relating
10 its purchase of the cable television operations of The EW. Scripps Company, which included
Comecast Corporation's Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as of and
for the nine months ended September 30, 1996 and for the year ended December 11, 1995.
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Pursuani to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report 1o be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in Philadelphia, Peansylvania
on March 31, 1997.

Comgcast Corporation

By: /s/ Brian L. Roberts
Brian L. Roberts
President and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE JITLE DATE

fo/ Ralph J. Roberts

Ralph J. Roberts Chalrman of the Board of March 31, 1997
Directors; Director

fsf Julian A. Brodsky

Julian A. Brodsky Vice Chairman of the Board of March 31, 1997
Directors; Director

fs/ Brian L. Roberts

Brian L. Robens President; Director (Principal March 31, 1997
Executive Officer)

/s Lawrence S, Smith

Lawrence 5. Smith Executive Vice President March 11, 1997
(Principal Accounting Officer)

fo/ John R. Alchin

John R. Alchin Senior Vice President, Treasurer March 31, 1997
{Principal Financial Officer)

f</ Daniel Aaron
Daniel Aaron Director March 31, 1997

IS Gustave G, Amsterdam
Gustave G. Amsterdam Director March 11, 1997

/4 Sheldon M. Bonovitz
Sheldon M. Bonovitz Director March 31, 1997

s/ Joseph L. Castle Il
Joseph L. Castle I Director March 31, 1997
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SIONATURE IImE ’ DATE

fs/ Bernard C. Watson

Bernard C. Watson Director March 31, 1997
/s/ Irving A. Wechsler

Irving A. Wechsler Director March 31, 1997
/of Anne Wealer

Anne Wexler Director March 31, 1997
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